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Independent Auditors’ Report
to the Members of
Shikhar Insurance Company Limited
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Financial Statements of M/s Shikhar Insurance Company Limited (hereinafter
referred to as ‘the Company’) which comprise the Statement of Financial Position as at Ashad 31, 2078 (July 15, 2021),
and the Statement of Profit or Loss, Statement of Comprehensive Income, Statement of Changes in Equity and Statement
of Cash Flows attached thereto, for the year then ended and notes to the financial statements, including a summary
of Significant Accounting Policies and other Explanatory Notes & information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid Financial
Statement read together with Notes forming part of the financial statement presents fairly, in all material respects, the
Financial Position of the company as at Ashad 31, 2078 (July 15, 2021), and its Financial Performance, Changes in
Equity, Cash Flow for the year then ended and a Summary of Significant Accounting Policies and Other Explanatory
Information in accordance with Nepal Financial Reporting Standards (NFRSs) and comply with Companies Act, 2063
and Insurance Act, 2049.

Basis of Opinion:

We conducted our audit in accordance with Nepal Standards on Auditing (NSAs) issued by the Auditing Standard Board
of Nepal. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Financial Statement section of our report. We are independent of the Entity in accordance with the Code of Ethics
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Nepal together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to
our audit of the Financial Statement, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with those
requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in the audit of the
financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of the audit of the financial
statements, as a whole and in forming our opinion thereon, we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our report.

S.N. Key Audit Matters How the matters were addressed in our Audit

1. Revenue Recognition (Premium Income) | Our audit procedures on recognition of premium income
Premium income comprises major part of | included:
revenue which is recorded on issue of the policy | 1. Obtaining clear understanding of the process of issuing

as prescribed by the directives of Insurance the policies as per directives issued by the Insurance
Board. Unearned premium income is Board and understanding the process of booking such
recorded/adjusted as estimated by actuarial income.

valuation report. Estimation of income can be | 5
right only if the factors involved are incorporated
in the system and extracted correctly from the
system.

. Tested the design, implementation, and operating
effectiveness of key controls over revenue recognition.

3. Verified underwriting documents and premium calculation
thereon as per regulatory requirements and internal
policies of the company on sample basis along with
premium receipt, verified premium ceded as per
Reinsurance agreement/treaty with Rei rers.

4. Verified unearned premium income gg
appointed actuary in his actuarial

Our results:
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S.N. Key Audit Matters

How the matters were addressed in our Audit

2. Insurance Claim

Insurance claim is the major area of expense
for the insurance companies.

Total Claim incurred include paid claim,
outstanding claim and claim Incurred but Not
(Enough) Reported IBN(E)R,

The provision and payment of claims was one
of the areas which required significant auditor
attention and one of the matters of most
significance in financial statement.

Our Audit procedures on insurance claim Included:

1. Obtaining clear understanding of the process/ guidelines
as per directives Issued by the Insurance Board for
processing claim as well Internal operational guidelines
relating to claim processing.

2. Performed test of controls, test of details and analytical
review procedures on outstanding claims.

3. Verified the claim paid and provision on sample basis
with proof for payment, documentation as well as surveyor
report and understanding the process of accounting.

4. In case of IBN(E)R, these provisions have been captured
by the Actuary appointed by the company. The actuarial
valuation of liability in respect of IBNR and IBN(E)R claims
as at July 15, 2021 is as certified by the company’s
appointed actuary and we had verified the amount and
related liability based on such report.

Our Results:
Based on work carried out as above, we considered the
insurance claim expenses be acceptable.

3. Valuation of investments at amortized cost
and measured at fair value through PL

Investment of the Company comprises of
investment in quoted /unquoted equity
instruments and fixed deposits of various banks
and financial institutions.

Valuation of the aforesaid securities have been
done in accordance with NAS 39 read with
NFRS 9. The investment in fixed deposit is
recognized at Amortized Cost whereas
investments in equity instruments quoted and
unquoted, are valued at Fair Value through
Profit & Loss on the reporting date.

Given the varieties of treatments recommended
for valuation of investment based on investment
objective targeted by the management, nature
of cash flows, complexity of calculations and
significance of amount involved in such
Investments, thus, we have considered It as a
Key Audit Matter in our audit.

Our Audit procedures on valuation of investment included:

1. We tested the design, implementation, and operating
effectiveness of key controls over valuation process of
investments.

2. Review of investments of the company and its valuation
in accordance with NFRS.

3. Assessment of the business model adopted by the
management and the nature of expected cash flow of
the investments on the basis of available
evidence/circumstances and ensured that classification
of investment is commensurate with nature of cash flows
and management intention of holding the investments.

4. For the investment’s valuation at amortized cost, we have
verified the Accrued Interest, amortization schedule on
test basis.

5. For Investments (quoted) valued through PL, we reviewed
the fair value considering the closing price in NEPSE as
on the reporting date.

Our Results:

Based on work carried out as above, we considered the
valuation of Investments at amortized cost and measured at
fair value to be acceptable.

4. Information Technology Controls

IT controls include recording of transactions,
generating reports in compliance with reporting
requirement of Insurance Board and other
compliances to regulators is an important part
of the process. Hence the company’s financial
and reporting processes are highly dependent
on the effective working of Core Insurance
Software.

Our Audit procedures on Information Technology Controls
included:

1. Understanding the Core Insurance Software

existing in the company.
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S.N. Key Audit Matters How the matters were addressed in our Audit

We have considered this as a key audit matter | 3. Walkthrough of access control of the users.
as any control lapses, validation failures, incorrect | 4 Reviewing the reports generated by the system on sample

input data and wrong extraction of data may basis.
result in incorrect reporting to the management,
shareholders, and regulators. Our Results:

Based on work carried out as above, we considered the
controls in the Information technology to be acceptable.

Information other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

The company's management is responsible for the presentation of the other information. The other information comprises
the information included in the company's Annual Report such as Report of Board of Directors/Chairman's Statement
but does not include the financial statements and our auditor's report thereon. Our opinion on the financial statements
does not cover the other information and accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion or, except as explicitly stated
above, any form of assurance conclusion there on. Our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether, based on audit work done by us on financial statement, the other information therein is materially
misstated or inconsistent with the financial statements.

However, we have not received the other information to be part of Annual Report prior to the date of this Auditor's
Report.

Responsibilities of Management and those charged with Governance for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these Financial Statements in accordance with
Nepal Financial Reporting Standard (NFRS), and for such internal control as management determines is necessary
to enable the preparation of the Financial Statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error.

In preparing the Financial Statements, management is responsible for assessing the company’s ability to continue as
a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the company or to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Financial Statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but it is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with NSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these Financial Statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with NSAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

a. ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Financial Statements whether due to fraud, error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting material misstatement resulting from fraud
is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of the internal control.

b. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
company'’s internal control.

c. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.

d. Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on
the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the Financial Statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditors' report. However, future events or conditions may cause the company to
cease to continue as a going concern.
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e.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure, and content of the Financial Statements, Including the disclosures, and
whether the Financial Statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business activities
within Company to express an opinion on the Financial Statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision,
and performance of the audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing
of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during
our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with the relevant ethical
requirement regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationship and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
To the best of our knowledge and according to explanations given to us and from our examination of the books of
account of company, necessary for the purposes of our audit to the extent for the scope of our audit:

a.

Kathmandu
Date: May 31, 2022

We have obtained all the information and explanations along with replies to our queries, which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of the audit.

In our opinion, the financial statements comprising of Statement of Financial Position, Statement of Profit or Loss,
Statement of Comprehensive Income, Statement of Changes in Equity, Statement of Cash Flows prepared in
accordance with the requirements of Companies Act, 2063 and format prescribed by Insurance Board are in
agreement with the books of Accounts.

In our opinion, books of accounts and records of the company have been maintained as required by prevailing
laws.

To the best of our information and according to the explanations provided to us and so far, as appeared from the
examination of the books of accounts, we have not come across any cases where Board of Directors or any
employee have acted contrary to the legal provision relating to accounts, or committed any misappropriation or
caused any loss or damage to the company.

We have not come across any fraudulence in the accounts, so far as it appeared from our examination of the books
of accounts.

To the best of our knowledge, Company has maintained Insurance Fund, and other mandatory reserves in line with
directives issued by Insurance Board.

We did not obtain any information indicating engagement of the company in activities other than insurance business
as approved/licensed by the Insurance Board.

We did not obtain any information indicating company's activities which is prejudicial to the interest of the Insured.
The company has acted as per directives of Insurance Board.

We did not obtain any information indicating issuance of insurance policy other than as approved by Insurance
Board.

It appears that all the financial and other information/subject matters which is required to be informed to the
shareholders as per prevalent laws has been provided to the shareholders.

To the best of our knowledge, the company is eligible and capable to bear its long-term liabilities from the assets
of the company.

. The internal control system implemented by the company is found to be effective.

»

B.K. Agrawal, FCA ~
Managing Partner
For: B.K. Agrawal & Co.
Chartered Accountants
UDIN: 220601CA000180T7eR

Member Crowe Global




Shikhar Insurance Company Ltd.

Statement of Financial Position
As at Ashadh 31, 2078 (15th July, 2021)

Fig. in NPR

Notes Current Year| Previous Year
Assets
Intangible Assets 4 - 873,207
Property, Plant and Equipment 5 661,237,904 623,883,859
Investment Properties 6 - -
Deferred Tax Assets 7 89,896,106 75,562,819
Investment in Subsidiaries 8 - -
Investment in Associates 9 52,803,602 79,346,813
Investments 10 3,146,686,587| 3,034,494,126
Loans 11 - -
Reinsurance Assets 12 3,721,090,663| 2,088,524,379
Current Tax Assets (Net) 21 65,616,985 67,578,880
Insurance Receivables 13 789,823,856 1,214,045,662
Other Assets 14 371,228,557 225,800,837
Other Financial Assets 15 256,069,546 149,983,847
Cash and Cash Equivalents 16 352,212,651 538,197,550
Total Assets 9,506,666,457| 8,098,291,979
Equity & Liabilities
Equity
Share Capital 17(a) 1,758,524,000| 1,057,310,600
Share Application Money Pending Allotment 17(b) - 194,674,500
Share Premium 17(c) 95,712,963 -
Insurance Fund 17(d) 1,210,908,307| 1,057,310,600
Catastrophe Reserves 17(e) 110,818,388 132,381,114
Retained Earnings 17(f) 186,621,189 428,319,186
Other Equity 17(9) 481,017,351 452,866,903
Total Equity 3,843,602,198( 3,322,862,903
Liabilities
Provisions 18 80,491,122 153,812,656
Gross Insurance Contract Liabilities 19 4,813,946,717| 3,136,727,230
Deferred Tax Liabilities 7 - -
Insurance Payables 20 134,313,375 975,066,482
Current Tax Liabilities (Net) 21 - -
Loans and Borrowings 22 216,548,738 183,386,418
Other Financial Liabilities 23 125,581,072 101,356,378
Other Liabilities 24 292,183,235 225,079,912
Total Liabilities 5,663,064,259( 4,775,429,076
Total Equity and Liabilities 9,506,666,457| 8,098,291,979

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these Financial Statements.

As per our report on even date

Dip Prakash Panday Ramesh Kumar Luitel Saurav J.B. Rana Rajendra Prasad Shrestha B.K. Agrawal, FCA
Chief Executive Officer Director Director Chairman Managing Partner
B.K. Agrawal & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Suraj Rajbahak Dinesh Bajra Bajracharya Skand Amatya Dr. Shrujana Shrestha

Chief Financial Officer Director Director Director

Kathmandu, Nepal
Date: May 31, 2022
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Shikhar Insurance Company Ltd.

Statement of Profit or Loss

For the Year Ended Ashad 31, 2078 (July 15, 2021)

Fig. in NPR

Current Year

Previous Year

Notes
Income:
Gross Earned Premiums 25
Premiums Ceded 26
Net Earned Premiums 27
Commission Income 28
Investment Income 29
Net Gains/ (Losses) on Fair Value Changes 30
Net Realised Gains/ (Losses) 31
Other Income 32
Total Income
Expenses:
Gross Claims Paid 33
Claims Ceded 34
Gross Change in Contract Liabilities 35(a)
Change in Contract Liabities Ceded to Reinsurers 35(b)
Net Claims Paid
Commission Expenses 36
Service Fees 37
Employee Benefits Expenses 38
Depreciation and Amortization Expenses 39
Impairment Losses 40
Other Expenses 41
Finance Cost 42
Total Expenses
Net Profit/(Loss) For The Year Before Share of Net Profits
of Associates Accounted for Using Equity Method and Tax
Share of Net Profit of Associates accounted using Equity Method 9
Profit Before Tax
Income Tax Expense 43
Net Profit/ (Loss) For The Year
Earning Per Share 50
Basic EPS
Diluted EPS

3,754,085,910
(2,599,468,031)

3,305,592,653
(2,097,909,592)

1,154,617,879

1,207,683,060

498,099,878
241,986,510
37,643,288
77,908,011
32,223,285

538,847,556
273,349,679
2,471,160
18,389,424
2,032,667

2,042,478,851

2,042,773,546

2,203,988,377
(1,311,409,304)
1,510,078,227

1,665,832,392
(806,123,579)
(62,664,587)

(1,484,627,878)|  (10,566,031)
918,029,422| 786,478,195
34,357,057| 29,963,930
11,738,207| 11,436,046
407,937,477| 398,246,687
20,176,426| 18,046,925
14,930,340 -
179,675,260 160,454,671
8,815,432 20,736,373

1,595,659,621

1,425,362,827

446,819,230 617,410,719
(5,043,212)  (62,695,152)
441,776,018 554,715,567
129,788,077| 145,457,233
311,987,941 409,258,334
18.15 28.39

18.15 23.68

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these Financial Statements.

As per our report on even date

Dip Prakash Panday Ramesh Kumar Luitel Saurav J.B. Rana Rajendra Prasad Shrestha B.K. Agrawal, FCA
Chief Executive Officer Director Director Chairman Managing Partner
B.K. Agrawal & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Suraj Rajbahak Dinesh Bajra Bajracharya Skand Amatya Dr. Shrujana Shrestha
Chief Financial Officer Director Director Director
Kathmandu, Nepal
Date: May 31, 2022
1
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Shikhar Insurance Company Ltd.

Statement of Other Comprehensive Income
For The Year Ended Ashad 31, 2078 (July 15, 2021)

Fig. in NPR

Current Year| Previous Year

Net Profit/ (Loss) For The Year 311,987,941 409,258,334

Other Comprehensive Income

a) Items that are or may be Reclassified to Profit or Loss
Changes in Fair Value of FVOCI Debt Instruments - -
Cash Flow Hedge - Effective Portion of Changes in Fair Value - -
Exchange differences on translation of Foreign Operation - -
Share of other comprehensive income of
associates accounted for using the equity method - -
Income Tax Relating to Above ltems = -
Reclassified to Profit or Loss = -

b) Items that will not be Reclassified to Profit or Loss
Changes in fair value of FVOCI Equity Instruments - -
Revaluation of Property, Plant and Equipment/ Intangible Assets 18,850,000 14,096,000
Remeasurement of Post-Employment Benefit Obligations - -
Share of other comprehensive income of
associates accounted for using the equity method - -

Income Tax Relating to Above ltems (5,655,000) (4,228,800)
Total Other Comprehensive Income For the Year, Net of Tax 13,195,000 9,867,200
Total Comprehensive Income For the Year, Net of Tax 325,182,941 419,125,534

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these Financial Statements.

As per our report on even date

Dip Prakash Panday Ramesh Kumar Luitel Saurav J.B. Rana Rajendra Prasad Shrestha B.K. Agrawal, FCA
Chief Executive Officer Director Director Chairman Managing Partner
B.K. Agrawal & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Suraj Rajbahak Dinesh Bajra Bajracharya Skand Amatya Dr. Shrujana Shrestha
Chief Financial Officer Director Director Director

Kathmandu, Nepal
Date: May 31, 2022
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Shikhar Insurance Company Ltd.

Statement of Cash Flows

For The Year Ended Ashad 31, 2078 (July 15, 2021)

Fig. in NPR

Cash Flow From Operating Actvities:

Cash Received

Gross Premium Received

Commission Received

Claim Recovery Received from Reinsurers

Realised Foreign Exchange Income other than on Cash and
Cash Equivalents

Others (to be specified)

Other Income

Cash Paid

Gross Claims Paid

Reinsurance Premium Paid
Commission Paid

Service Fees Paid

Employee Benefits Expenses Paid
Other Expenses Paid

Others (to be specified)

Income Tax Paid
Net Cash Flow From Operating Activities [1]

Cash Flow From Investing Activities

Acquisitions of Intangible Assets

Proceeds From Sale of Intangible Assets
Acquisitions of Investment Properties

Proceeds From Sale of Investment Properties
Rental Income Received

Acquisitions of Property, Plant & Equipment
Proceeds From Sale of Property, Plant & Equipment
Payment for acquisition of Subsidiaries/ Investment in Subsidiaries
Investment in Associates

Receipts from Sale of Investments in Subsidiaries
Receipts from Sale of Investments in Associates
Purchase of Equity Instruments

Proceeds from Sale of Equity Instruments

Purchase of Mutual Funds

Proceeds from Sale of Mutual Funds

Purchase of Preference Shares

Proceeds from Sale of Preference Shares

Purchase of Debentures

Current Year

Previous Year

3,921,227,169
542,208,438
1,720,700,771

32,404,714

(2,203,988,377)
(3,560,685,479)
(12,931,485)
(36,105,951)
(471,630,858)
(418,125,722)

(147,814,469)

3,468,579,943
537,366,038
565,857,047

11,392,567

(1,635,142,575)
(2,295,691,324)
(37,792,896)
(34,901,469)
(394,954,966)
(159,667,672)
(1,334,788)

(179,683,593)

(634,741,249)

(155,973,688)

17,030,045
(38,050,640)
61,947

53,934,571

(121,385,733)

(135,000)

13,789,843
(16,385,012)
30,271

(61,145,811)
63,654,134
(2,702,904)

438,134

(146,361,000)

Proceeds from Sale of Debentures 15,000,000
Purchase of Bonds - -
Proceeds from Sale of Bonds 20,000,000 18,475,000
Investments in Deposits (571,060,000)
Maturity of Deposits 72,310,000 531,250,000
Proceeds from Finance Lease - -
Loans Paid - -
Proceeds from Loans - -

Continue...
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Shikhar Insurance Company Ltd.

Statement of Cash Flows

For The Year Ended Ashad 31, 2078 (July 15, 2021)

Fig. in NPR
Current Year Previous Year
Interest Income Received 222,926,418 245,230,730
Dividend Received 2,026,499 3,185,014
Others (Seed Money in Micro Insurance Pool) - (345,571)
Total Cash Flow From Investing Activities [2] 228,853,107 92,917,830
Cash Flow From Financing Activities
Interest Paid (8,815,432) (20,736,373)
Payment of Finance Lease - -
Proceeds From Issue of Share Capital 218,231,663 194,674,500
Share Issuance Cost Paid (2,463,719) (868,436)
Dividend Paid - -
Dividend Distribution Tax Paid (20,211,589) -
Others - -
Increase (Decrease) in Bank Loan Overdraft 33,162,320 28,819,545
Total Cash Flow From Financing Activities [3] 219,903,243 201,889,236
Net Increase/(Decrease) In Cash & Cash Equivalents [1+2+3] (185,984,899) 138,833,377
Cash & Cash Equivalents At Beginning of The Year/Period 538,197,550 399,364,174
Effect of Exchange Rate Changes on Cash and Cash Equivalents - -
Cash & Cash Equivalents At End of The Year/Period 352,212,651 538,197,550
Components of Cash & Cash Equivalents
Cash In Hand 7,816 917,614
Cheques In Hand - 232,123,856
Term Deposit with Banks (with initial maturity upto 3 months) - -
Gold Coin 939,110 855,819
Balance With Banks 351,265,725 304,300,261

Notes:
Statement of Cash Flows is prepared using Direct Method.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these Financial Statements.

As per our report on even date

Dip Prakash Panday Ramesh Kumar Luitel Saurav J.B. Rana Rajendra Prasad Shrestha B.K. Agrawal, FCA
Chief Executive Officer Director Director Chairman Managing Partner
B.K. Agrawal & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Suraj Rajbahak Dinesh Bajra Bajracharya Skand Amatya Dr. Shrujana Shrestha
Chief Financial Officer Director Director Director

Kathmandu, Nepal
Date: May 31, 2022
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Shikhar Insurance Company Ltd.
Notes to the Financial Statements
For The Year Ended Ashad 31, 2078 (July 15, 2021)
Fig. in NPR

1 General Information
Shikhar Insurance Company Limited (herein after referred to as the ‘Company’) was incorporated on 15th
Jestha 2061 and operated as general insurance company after obtaining license on 16th Kartik 2061 under
the Insurance Act 2049.

The registered office of the Company is located at Thapathali Kathmandu. The Company's shares are listed
on Nepal Stock Exchange Ltd.

The financial statements are approved for issue by the Company's Board of Directors on 31/05/2022.

2 Basis of Preparation

(a) Statement of Compliance
The Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with the Nepal Financial Reporting
Standards (NFRS) issued by the Nepal Accounting Standards Board (ASB), as per the provisions of
The Nepal Chartered Accountants Act, 1997. These confirm, in material respect, to NFRS as issued
by the Nepal Accounting Standards Board. The Financial Statements have been prepared on a going
concern basis. The term NFRS, includes all the standards and the related interpretations which are
consistently used.

(b) Basis of Measurement
The Financial Statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for following Assets
& Liabilities which have been measured at Fair Value amount:
i. Certain Financial Assets & Liabilities which are required to be measured at fair value
ii. Defined Employee Benefits
iii. Insurance Contract Liabilities which are required to be determined using actuarial valuation for
Liability Adequacy Test (LAT).

Historical cost is generally Fair Value of the consideration given in exchange for goods & services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is
directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique.

In addition, for Financial Reporting purposes, Fair Value measurements are categorized into Level 1,
or 2, or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs to the Fair Value measurements are observable &
the significance of the inputs to the Fair Value measurement in its entirety, which are described as
follows:

o Level 1 - Inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical Assets or Liabilities
that the entity can access at the measurement date;

e Level 2 - Inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within Level 1, that are observable
for the Asset or Liability, either directly or indirectly; and

e Level 3 - Inputs are unobservable inputs for the Asset or Liability.

(c) Use of Estimates
The preparation of these Financial Statements in conformity with NFRS requires management to make
estimates, judgements and assumptions. These estimates, judgments and assumptions affect the
reported balances of Assets & Liabilities, disclosures relating to Contingent Liabilities as at the date of
the Financial Statements and the reported amounts of Income & Expenses for the years presented.
Actual results may differ from these estimates. Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Changes in estimates are reflected in the Financial Statements in the period in which
changes are made and, if material, their effects are disclosed in the Notes to the financial statements.
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(d) Functional and Presentation Currency
These Financial Statements are presented in Nepalese Rupees (NPR) which is the Company’s functional
currency. All financial information presented in NPR has been rounded to the nearest rupee except
where indicated otherwise.

(e) Going Concern
The financial statements are prepared on a going concern basis. The Board of Directors have considered
a wide range of information relating to present and future conditions, including future projections of
profitability, cash flows and capital resources while assessing the going concern basis. Furthermore,
Board is not aware of any material uncertainties that may cast significant doubt upon Company’s ability
to continue as a going concern and they do not intend either to liquidate or to cease operations of it.

(f) Changes in Accounting Policies
Accounting policies are the specific principles, bases, conventions, rules and practices applied by the
Company in preparing and presenting financial statements. The Company is permitted to change an
accounting policy only if the change is required by a standard or interpretation; or results in the financial
statements providing reliable and more relevant information about the effects of transactions, other
events or conditions on the entity's financial position, financial performance, or cash flows.

(g) Recent Accounting Pronouncements
Accounting standards issued and effective

All the accounting standard made effective by the ASB are applied while preparing the financial statement
of the Company.

Accounting standards issued and non-effective
NFRS 17 "Insurance Contracts"
NFRS 16 "Leases"

(h) Carve-outs
N.A.

Significant Accounting Policies
This note provides a list of the significant policies adopted in the preparation of these Financial Statements.

(a) Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE)

i) Recognition
Freehold land is carried at historical cost and other items of property, plant and equipment are stated
at cost of acquisition or construction less accumulated depreciation when, it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and it can be used for more
than one year and the cost can be measured reliably.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it meets the recognition criteria as mentioned above. The carrying amount
of any component accounted for as a separate asset is derecognised when replaced. All other repairs
and maintenance are charged to profit or loss during the reporting period in which they are incurred.

ii) Revaluation
After recognition as an asset, lands and buildings whose fair value can be measured reliably, have
been carried at revalued amount at the date of revaluation less any subsequent accumulated
depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment losses. Valuations are being performed to
ensure that the fair value of a revalued asset does not materially differ from its carrying amount as
at the reporting date. Valuation of the land and buildings are undertaken by professionally qualified
valuers.

An increase in the carrying amount as a result of revaluation, is recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity under the heading of revaluation reserve. However, the increase
is recognised in profit or loss to the extent that it reverses a revaluation decrease of the same asset
previously recognised in profit and loss. A decrease in the carrying amount as a result of revaluation,
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is recognised in profit or loss. However, the decrease is recognised in other comprehensive income
to the extent of any credit balance existing in the revaluation surplus in respect of that asset.

Additionally, accumulated depreciation as at the revaluation date is eliminated against the gross
carrying amount of the asset and the net amount is restated to the revalued amount of the asset.
Upon disposal, any revaluation reserve relating to the particular asset being sold is transferred directly
to retained earnings.

iii) Depreciation
Depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipment other than Freehold Land i.e. the Company’s Freehold
Building, Plant & Machinery, Vehicles & Other Assets is provided on "Straight Line Method (SLM)/
based on Useful Life estimated by technical expert of the management.

The Assets Useful Life/ Rate of Depreciation and Residual Values are reviewed at the Reporting date
and the effect of any changes in estimates are accounted for on a prospective basis.

Useful Life of Property, Plant and Equipment based on SLM is categorised as stated below:

List of Asset Categories Useful Life (In Years) for SLM
Land Not Applicable
Buildings 50
Leasehold Improvement Lease Period
Furniture & Fixtures 20
Computers and IT Equipments 5
Office Equipment 10
Vehicles 10
Other Assets 8

iv) Derecognition
An item of Property, Plant and Equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no Future Economic
Benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the Asset. Any Gain or Loss arising on the
disposal or retirement of an item of Property, Plant and Equipment is determined as the difference
between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the Asset and is recognized in the Statement
of Profit or Loss.

v) Impairment
Assets are tested for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognized for the amount by which
the Asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is higher of
an asset's fair value less cost of disposal and value in use. Value in use is based on the estimated
future cash flows, discounted to their present value using pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and risk specific to the assets. Assets that suffer
an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at the end of each reporting
period. In case of such reversal, the carrying amount of the asset is increased so as not to exceed
the carrying amount that would have been determined had there been no impairment loss.

vi) Capital Work-In-Progress
These are expenses of capital nature directly incurred in the construction of buildings, major plant
and machinery and system development which are to be capitalized. Capital Work in Progress would
be transferred to the relevant asset when it is available for use. Capital Work in Progress is stated
at cost less any accumulated impairment losses.

(b) Intangible Assets

i) Recognition
Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial
recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortization and any
accumulated impairment losses. Internally generated intangibles, excluding capitalized development
costs, are not capitalized and the related expenditure is reflected in statement of profit or loss in the

year in which the expenditure is incurred.
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Subsequent expenditure on intangible assets is capitalized only when it increases the future economic
benefits embodied in the specific asset to which it relates. All other expenditure is expensed as
incurred.

ii) Amortization
The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be either finite or indefinite. An intangible asset
shall be regarded as having an indefinite useful life when, based on an analysis of all of the relevant
factors, there is no foreseeable limit to the period over which the asset is expected generate net cash
inflow for the entity.

Amortisation is recognised in income statement on straight line method over the estimated useful
life of the intangible assets or diminishing balance method from the date that it is available for use
since this most closely reflects the expected pattern of consumption of the future economic benefits
embodied in the asset. The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset
with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at each financial year end. Changes in the expected
useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset
are considered to modify the amortisation period or method, as appropriate, and are treated as
changes in accounting estimates. The amortisation expense on intangible assets with finite lives is
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Useful Life of Intangible Assets based on SLMis categorised as stated below:

List of Asset Categories Useful Life (In Years) for SLM
Softwares 10
Licences Licence Period

iii) Derecognition
An Intangible Asset is derecognised when no Future Economic Benefits are expected to arise from
the continued use of the Asset. Any Gain or Loss arising on the derecognition is determined as the
difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the Asset and is recognized in
the Statement of Profit or Loss.

iv) Impairment of Assets

The Company assesses at each reporting date as to whether there is any indication that Intangible
Assets may be impaired. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated
to determine the extent of impairment, if any. An impairment loss is recognised in the Statement of

Profit or Loss to the extent, asset's carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is higher of an asset's fair value less cost of disposal and value in use. Value in use is based
on the estimated future cash flows, discounted to their present value using pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and risk specific to the assets.

(c) Investment Properties

Cost Model:

Property that is held for rental income or for capital appreciaiton or both, is classified as investment
property. Investment properties are measured initially at cost, including related transaction cost. It is
subsequently carried at cost less accumulated depreciation. Subsequent expenditure is capitalised to
the asset’s carrying amount only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the
expenditure will flow to the Company and the cost can be measured reliably. All other repairs and
maintenance costs are expensed when incurred.

Land is carried at historical cost, however, buildings are depreciated over their estimated useful lives
as mentioned above.

Investment properties are derecognised either when they have been disposed of, or when the investment
property is permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefit is expected from its disposal.
Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an investment property are recognised in the
statement of profit or loss in the year of retirement or disposal.
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Transfers are made to (or from) investment property only when there is a change in use. For a transfer
from investment property to PPE, the deemed cost for subsequent accounting is the fair value at the
date of change in use. If PPE becomes an investment property, the Company accounts for such property
in accordance with the policy stated under PPE up to the date of change in use.

(d) Cash & Cash Equivalent
For the purpose of presentation in the Statement of Cash Flows, Cash & Cash Equivalents includes
Cash In Hand, Bank Balances and short term deposits with a maturity of three months or less.

(e) Financial Assets

i) Initial Recognition & Measurement
Financial Assets are recognized when, and only when, the Company becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the Financial Instrument. The Company determines the classification of its Financial
Assets at initial recognition.

When Financial Assets are recognized initially, they are measured at Fair Value, plus, in the case
of Financial Assets not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to
the acquisation of the Financial Asset. Transaction costs of Financial Assets carried at Fair Value
through Profit or Loss are expensed in the Statement of Profit or Loss.

ii) Subsequent Measurement

a) Financial Assets carried at Amortized Cost (AC)
A Financial Asset is measured at amortized cost if it is held within a business model whose
objective is to hold the asset in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms
of the Financial Asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. Interest income in these financial
assets is measured using effective interest rate method.

b) Financial Assets at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVTOCI)
A Financial Asset is measured at FVTOCI if it is held within a business model whose objective
is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling Financial Assets and the
contractual terms of the Financial Asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. These financial assets
are measured at fair value and changes are taken to statement of other comprehensive income.

c) Financial Assets at Fair Value through Profit or Loss (FVTPL)
A Financial Asset which is not classified in any of the above categories are measured at FVTPL.
These financial assets are measured at fair value and changes are taken to statement of profit
or loss.

iii) De-Recognition

A Financial Asset is derecognized only when the Company has transferred the rights to receive cash
flows from the Financial Asset. Where the Company has transferred an Asset, the Company evaluates
whether it has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the Financial Asset. In
such cases, the Financial Asset is derecognized. Where the Company has not transferred substantially
all risks and rewards of ownership of the Financial Asset, the Financial Asset is not derecognized.
Where the Company retains control of the Financial Asset, the Asset is continued to be recognized
to the extent of continuing involvement in the Financial Asset.

iv) Impairment of Financial Assets
The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is objective evidence that a financial
asset or group of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial assets is
deemed to be impaired if, there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events
that has occurred since the initial recognition of the asset (an incurred ‘loss event’) and that loss
event has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or the group of financial
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assets that can be reliably estimated. Evidence of impairment may include indications that a financial
asset or a group of financial assets is experiencing significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency
in interest or principal payments, the probability that they will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganization and observable data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated
future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate with defaults.

(f) Financial Liabilities

i) Initial Recognition & Measurement
Financial Liabilities are recognized when, and only when, the Company becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the Financial Instrument. The Company determines the classification of its
Financial Liabilities at initial recognition.

All Financial Liabilities are recognized initially at Fair Value, plus, in the case of Financial Liabilities
not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the issue of the
Financial Liability.

ii) Subsequent Measurement
After initial recognition, Financial Liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the
Effective Interest Method.

For trade and other payables maturing within one year from the date of Statement of Financial
Position, the carrying amounts approximate Fair value due to short maturity of these instruments.

iii) De-Recognition
A Financial Liability is de-recognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled
or expires. When an existing Financial Liability is replaced by another from the same lender on
substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an
exchange or modification is treated as a de-recognition of the original liability and the recognition
of a new liability, and the difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the Statement
of Profit or Loss.

(g) Offsetting financial instruments
Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the Statement of Financial
Position where there is legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention
to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable
right must not be contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the normal course of business
and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the Company or the counterparty.

(h) Reinsurance Assets
Reinsurance assets are the assets which are created against insurance contract liabilities of the amount
which are recoverable from the reinsurer. These assets are created for the resinsurer's share of insurance
contract liabilities.

A reinsurance asset is impaired if there is objective evidence, as a result of an event that occurred after
the initial recognition of the reinsurance asset, that the Company may not receive all amounts due to it
under the terms of the contract, and the event has a reliably measurable impact on the amount that the
company will receive from the re-insurer. If a reinsurance asset is impaired, the company reduces the
carrying amount accordingly and is recognized in statement of profit or loss.

(i) Share Capital
Financial Instruments issued by the Company are classified as Equity only to the extent that they do
not meet the definition of a Financial Liability or Financial Asset.

(i) Reserves and Funds

i) Share Premium: If the Company issues share capital at premium it receives extra amount other
than share capital such amount is transferred to share premium. The amount in share premium is
allowed for distribution of bonus shares.
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ii) Insurance Fund: The Company has allocated insurance fund for the amount which is 50% of the
net profit every year as per Regulator's Directive until the fund equals paid up capital.

iii) Catastrophe Reserves: The Company has allocated catastrophe reserve for the amount which is
10% of the distributable profit for the year as per Regulator's Directive.

iv) Fair Value Reserves: The Company has policy of creating fair value reserve equal to the amount
of Fair Value Gain recognized in statement of other comprehensive income as per regulator’s
directive.

v) Regulatory Reserves: Reserve created out of net profit in line with different circulars issued by
Insurance Board.

vi) Actuarial Reserves: Reseserve against actuarial gain or loss on present value of defined benefit
obligation resuting from, experience adjustments (the effects of differences between the previous
actuarial assumptions and what has actually occurred); and the effects of changes in actuarial
assumptions.

vii) Cashflow Hedge Reserves: Is the exposure to variability in cash flows that is attributable to a
particular risk associated with all or a component of a recognized asset or liability or a highly probable
forecast transaction, and could affect profit or loss. Reserve represent effective portion of the gain
or loss on the hedging instrument recognized in other comprehensive income.

viii) Revaluation Reserves: Reserve created against revaluation gain on property, plant & equipments
& intangible assets, other than the reversal of earlier revalaution losses charged to profit or loss.

ix) Other Reserves: Reserve other than above reserves, for e.g. deferred tax reserve, others (to be
specified)

(k) Insurance Contract Liabilities

i) Provision for unearned premiums
Unearned premiums reserve represents the portion of the premium written in the year but relating
to the unexpired term of coverage.

Change in reserve for unearned insurance premium represents the net portion of the gross written
premium transferred to the unearned premium reserve during the year to cover the unexpired period
of the polices.

ii) Outstanding claims provisions
Outstanding claims provisions are based on the estimated ultimate cost of all claims incurred but
not settled at the statement of financial position date, whether reported or not, together with related
claims handling costs.

iii) Provision for claim incurred but not reported (IBNR)
Significant delays are experienced in the notification and settlement of certain types of claims, the
ultimate cost of which cannot be known with certainty at the statement of financial position date.

The liability is calculated at the reporting date using a range of standard actuarial claim projection
techniques, based on empirical data and current assumptions that may include a margin for adverse
deviation.

Liability adequacy

At each reporting date, the Company reviews its unexpired risk and a liability adequacy test is
performed to determine whether there is any overall excess of expected claims and deferred
acquisition costs over unearned premiums. The calculation uses current estimates of future contractual
cash flows after taking account of the investment return expected to arise on assets relating to the
relevant non-life insurance technical provisions. If these estimates show that the carrying amount
of the unearned premiums is inadequate, the deficiency is recognized in the statement of profit or
loss by setting up a provision for liability.
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As per the circular issued by the Beema Samiti, the unearned premium reserve(UPR) are evaluated
at an overall Company Level and the Company is expected to hold UPR as suggested by LAT report
or Statutory UPR (50% of Insurance Premium and in case of marine insurance the amount kept at
reserve fund for at least three years shall not be considered to be profit) whichever is higher.

() Employee Benefits

i) Short Term Obligations
Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits that are expected to be settled
wholly within 12 months after the end of the period in which the employees render the related service
are recognized in respect of employees’ services up to the end of the reporting period and are
measured at the amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled. The liabilities are
presented as current employee benefit obligations in the Statement of Financial Position.

ii) Post - Employment Benefits

- Defined Contribution Plan
The Company pays Provident Fund contributions to publicly administered Provident Funds as
per local regulations. The Company has no further payment obligations once the contributions
have been paid. The contributions are accounted for as defined contribution plans and the
contribution are recognized as Employee Benefit Expense when they are due.

- Defined Benefit Plan

For Defined Benefit Plan , the cost of providing benefits is determined using the Projected Unit
Credit Method, with Actuarial Valuations being carried out at each Statement of Financial Position.
Actuarial Gains & Losses are recognized in the Other Comprehensive Income in the period in
which they occur. Past service cost is recognized immediately to the extent that the benefits are
already vested and otherwise is amortized on a Straight Line Basis over the average period until
the benefits become vested. The retirement benefit obligation recognized in the Statement of
Financial Position represents the present value of the defined benefit obligation as adjusted for
unrecognized past service cost, as reduced by the Fair Value of plan Assets (If Any). Any Asset
resulting from this calculation is limited to past service cost, plus the present value of available
refunds and reductions in future contributions to the plan.

iii) Long Term Employee Benefits
The liabilities for un-availed earned leaves are not expected to be settled wholly within 12 months
after the end of the period in which the employees render the related service. Leave Encashment
has been computed using Actuarial Assumptions and these are measured at the present value of
expected future payments to be made in respect of services provided by employees up to the end
of the year using the Projected Unit Credit Method. The benefits are discounted using the market
yields at the end of the year that have terms approximating to the terms of assumptions.

iv) Termination
Termination benefits are payable when employment is terminated by the Company before the normal
retirement date, or when an employee accepts voluntary retirement in exchange of these benefits.
The Company recognises termination benefits at the earlier of the following dates:

a) when the Company can no longer withdraw the offer of those benefits; and

b) when the entity recognises costs for a restructuring that is within the scope of NAS 37 and
involves the payment of termination benefits.

The termination benefits are measured based on the number of employees expected to accept the
offer in case of voluntary retirement scheme.

(m) Revenue Recognition

i) Gross Earned Premiums
Gross Earned Premiums are arrived at after deducting unearned premium reserves from Direct
Premium and Faculative Inward Premium. Direct premiums comprise the total premiums receivable
for the whole period of cover provided by contracts entered into during the reporting period. They
are recognised on the date on which the policy commences.
Shjk
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Unearned premiums are those proportions of premiums written in a year that relate to periods of
risk after the reporting date. Unearned premiums are calculated on a daily pro rata basis. The
proportion attributable to subsequent periods is deferred as a provision for unearned premiums.

ii) Reinsurance Premium
Direct Reinsurance premiums comprise the total premiums payable for the whole cover provided
by contracts entered into the period and are recognized on the date on which the policy incepts.
Premiums include any adjustments arising in the accounting period in respect of reinsurance contracts
incepting in prior accounting periods.

Unearned reinsurance premiums are those proportions of premiums written in a year that relate to
periods of risk after the reporting date. Unearned reinsurance premiums are deferred over the term
of the underlying direct insurance policies for risks- attaching contracts and over the term of the
reinsurance contract for losses occurring contracts.

Reinsurance premiums and claims on the face of the statement of profit or loss have been presented
as negative items within premiums and net claims, respectively, because this is consistent with how
the business is managed.

iii) Commission Income
Commission Income is recognised on accrual basis. If the income is for future periods, then they
are deferred and recognised over those future periods.

iv) Investment income
Interest income is recognised in the statement of profit or loss as it accrues and is calculated by
using the EIR method. Fees and commissions that are an integral part of the effective yield of the
financial asset are recognised as an adjustment to the EIR of the instrument.

Investment income also includes dividends when the right to receive payment is established.

v) Net realised gains and losses
Net realised gains and losses recorded in the statement of profit or loss include gains and losses
on financial assets and properties. Gains and losses on the sale of investments are calculated as
the difference between net sales proceeds and the original or amortised cost and are recorded on
occurrence of the sale transaction.

(n) Product Classification
Insurance contracts are those contracts when the Company (the insurer) has accepted significant
insurance risk from another party (the policyholders) by agreeing to compensate the policyholders if a
specified uncertain future event (the insured event) adversely affects the policyholders. As a general
guideline, the Company determines whether it has significant insurance risk by comparing benefits paid
with benefits payable if the insured event did not occur. Insurance contracts can also transfer financial
risk.

The Company has following portfolios under which it operates its business:

i) Fire Portfolio - Fire insurance business means the business of affecting and carrying out contracts
of insurance, otherwise than incidental to some other class of insurance business against loss or
damage to property due to fire, explosion, storm and other occurrences customarily included among
the risks insured against in the fire insurance business.

ii) Motor Portfolio - Motor insurance business means the business of affecting and carrying out
contracts of insurance against loss of, or damage to, or arising out of or in connection with the use
of, motor vehicles, inclusive of third party risks but exclusive of transit risks.

iii) Marine Portfolio - Marine insurance business means the business of affecting and carrying out
contracts of insurance against loss of consignment of goods during transit.

iv) Engineering Portfolio - Engineering insurance business means the insurance that provides economic
safeguard to the risks faced by the ongoing construction project, installation project, and machines
and equipment in project operation.
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v) Micro Portfolio - Micro insurance means the insurance done for the protection of life and property
of people or community with low-income and possessed to risk due to economic, social and
geographical reasons.

vi) Aviation Portfolio - Aviation Insurance provides coverage for hull losses as well as liability for
passenger injuries, environmental and third-party damage caused by aircraft accidents.

vii) Cattle and Crop Portfolio - Cattle and Crop Insurance provides insurance against loss of or
damange to Cattle and crops.

viii)Miscellaneous Portfolio - All the insurance business which doesn’t fall in above categories fall
under miscellaneous insurance business. Group Personal Accidents, Medical Insurances, Professional
indemnity insurance etc. fall under this category of business.

(o) Borrowing Costs
Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets,
which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use
or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready for
their intended use or sale.

Interest income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure
on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalization.

All other borrowing costs are recognized in statement of profit or loss in the period in which they are
incurred.

(p) Cash Flow Statement
Cash Flows are reported using the direct method, whereby major classes of cash receipts and cash
payments are disclosed as cash flows.

(q) Leases

Finance Leases

Leases in which the Company has substantial portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are classified
as Finance Leases. Assets acquired under Finance Leases are capitalised at the lower of the Fair Value
of the Leased Assets at the inception of the Lease Term & the Present Value of Minimum Lease Payments.
Lease Payments are apportioned between the Finance charge and the reduction of the outstanding
liability. The Finance Charge is allocated to periods during the Lease Term at a constant periodic Rate
of Interest on the remaining balance of the liability.

Operating Lease

Leases in which the Company doesn’t have substantial portion of the risks and rewards of ownership
are classified as Operating Leases. The company has recognized accrued lease for the period as an
expense on incremental basis (as per lease term) considering the general inflation as more appropriate
than Straight Line Method considering economic benefit rendered by leased assets and in accordance
with the provision contained in para 34 of NAS 17 Lease.

(r) Income Taxes
Income Tax Expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable & Deferred Tax.

i) Current Tax
Current Tax Expenses are accounted in the same period to which the revenue and expenses relate.
Provision for Current Income Tax is made for the Tax Liability payable on Taxable Income after
considering tax allowances, deductions and exemptions determined in accordance with the applicable
tax rates and the prevailing tax laws.

ii) Deferred Tax
Deferred Tax is recognized on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of Assets &
Liabilities in the Statement of Financial Position and their Tax Base. Deferred tax Assets & Liabilities
are recognized for deductible and taxable temporary differences arising between the tax base of

Assets & Liabilities and their carrying amount in Financial Statements, except when the Deferred
Income Tax arises from the initial recognition of goodwill, an Asset or Liability in a transaction that
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is not a business combination and affects neither accounting nor taxable Profits or Loss at the time
of the transaction.

Deferred Tax Assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the deductible Temporary differences and the carry forward of unused tax credits and
unused tax losses can be utilized.

Deferred Tax Liabilities are generally recognized for all taxable Temporary differences.

The carrying amount of Deferred Tax Assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part
of the Deferred Tax Asset to be utilized.

(s) Provisions, Contingent Liabilities & Contingent Assets

(i) Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a
result of past events, for which it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate of the amount can be made.
Provisions are measured at the present value of management’s best estimate of the expenditure
required to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period. The discount rate to
determine the present value is a Pre-Tax Rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the liability. The increase in the provision due to the passage
of time is recognized as interest expense.

Provisions for Contingent Liability are recognized in the books as a matter of abundant precaution
and conservative approach based on management's best estimate. However, Management believes
that chances of these matters going against the company are remote and there will not be any
probable cash outflow.

(ii) Contingent Liabilities
Contingent liabilities are recognized only when there is a possible obligation arising from past events
due to occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the
control of the Company or where any present obligation cannot be measured in terms of future
outflow of resources or where a reliable estimate of the obligation cannot be made. Obligations are
assessed on an ongoing basis and only those having a largely probable outflow of resources are
provided for.

(iii) Contingent Assets
Contingent assets where it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to the Company are
not recognized but disclosed in the Financial Statements.

(t) Foreign Currency Transactions
The Financial Statements of the Company are presented in Nepalese Rupees, which is the Company’s
Functional Currency. In preparing the Financial Statements of the Company, transactions in currencies
other than the Company’s Functional Currency i.e. Foreign Currencies are recognized at the rates of
exchange prevailing at the dates of the transactions.

(u) Earnings Per Share
Basic Earning per share is calculated by dividing the profit attributable to owners of the company by the
Weighted Average Number of equity shares outstanding during the Financial Year.

For diluted earning per share, the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue is adjusted to
assume conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares.

(v) Operating Segment
Operating Segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief
operating decision maker (CODM) as defined by NFRS 8, “Operating Segment”.

Company’s Income & Expenses including interest are considered as part of un-allocable Income &
Expenses which are not identifiable to any business segment. Company’s Asset & Liabilities are

6 considered as part of un-allocable Assets & Liabilities which are not identifiable to any business.
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Shikhar Insurance Company Ltd.

Notes to the Financial Statements
For The Year Ended Ashad 31, 2078 (July 15, 2021)

Fig. in NPR

4 Intangible Assets
Others

Particulars Softwares | Licenses| (to be specified) Total
Gross carrying amount
As at Ashad 31, 2077 4,212,779 - - 4,212,779
Additions - - - -
Disposals - - - -
Revaluation - - - -
Balance as at Ashad 31, 2078 4,212,779 - - 4,212,779
Accumulated amortization and impairment
As at Ashad 31, 2077 3,339,572 - - 3,339,572
Additions 873,207 - - 873,207
Disposals - - - -
Impairment losses - - - -
Impairment reversal - - - -
Balance as at Ashad 31, 2078 4,212,779 - - 4,212,779
Net Balance as at Ashad 31, 2077 873,207 - - 873,207
Net Balance as at Ashad 31, 2078 - - - -
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Shikhar Insurance Company Ltd.

Notes to the Financial Statements
For The Year Ended Ashad 31, 2078 (July 15, 2021)

6 Investment Properties

Fig. in NPR

Particulars

Building

Total

Gross carrying amount
As at Ashad 31, 2077
Additions

Disposals

Transfer/ adjustments

Balance as at Ashad 31,
Depreciation and impairment

As at Ashad 31, 2077
Depreciation charge
Disposals
Impairment losses
Impairment reversal
Transfer/ adjustments

Balance as at Ashad 31,

Net Carrying Amount

Balance as at Ashad 31,
Balance as at Ashad 31,
Capital work-in-progress as at Ashad 31, 2077 -

Additions
Capitalization
Disposals
Impairment losses
Impairment reversal

Capital work-in-progress as at Ashad 31, 2078 -
Net Balance as at Ashad 31, 2077 -
Net Balance as at Ashad 31, 2078 -

2078 -

2078 -

2077 -

2078 -

(i) Amounts recognised in statement of profit or loss for investment properties

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Rental income

Direct operating expenses from property that generated rental income
Direct operating expenses from property that didn't generated rental income
Profit from investment properties before depreciation

Depreciation charge

Profit from investment properties
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Shikhar Insurance Company Ltd.

Notes to the Financial Statements
For The Year Ended Ashad 31, 2078 (July 15, 2021)

7 Deferred Tax Assets/ (Liabilities)

Fig. in NPR

Particulars Current Year | Previous Year
Intangible Assets 411,798 252,786
Property, Plant and Equipment (40,634,146) | (39,017,966)
Fair Value Gains/ (Losses) (14,250,588) (2,006,421)
Provision for Leave Encashment 7,733,558 6,163,505
Impairment Loss on Property, Plant and Equipment - -
Impairment Loss on Financial Assets 634,769 -
Impairment Loss on Other Assets - -
Unamortized portion of Bond 928,774 928,774
Deferred Agency Commission (2,685,648) (4,739,906)
Insurance Contract Liabilities net of Insurance Assest 71,205,331 77,059,061
Provision for Gratuity 12,017,473 -
Deferred Commission Income 50,155,556 36,922,988
Provision for Other Loss 5,490,310 -
Share of Net Profit of Associates using Equity Method (1,111,081) -
Total 89,896,106 75,562,819

Movements in deferred tax assets/ (liablities)

Particulars Current Year | Previous Year
As at Ashad 31, 2077 75,562,819 42,956,516
Charged/(Credited) to Statement of Profit or Loss 19,988,287 36,835,103
Charged/(Credited) to Other Comprehensive Income (5,655,000) (4,228,800)
As at Ashad 31, 2078 89,896,106 75,562,819

8 Investments in Subsidiaries

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Investment in Quoted Susidiaries
Investment in Unquoted Susidiaries
Less: Impairment Losses

Total

Investment in Quoted Subsidiaries

Current Year Previous Year
Particulars Cost Fair Value Cost Fair Value
........... Shares of Rs..........each of .......... Ltd. - - - -
........... Shares of Rs..........each of .......... Ltd. - - - -
Total - - - -
Continue...
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Shikhar Insurance Company Ltd.

Notes to the Financial Statements
For The Year Ended Ashad 31, 2078 (July 15, 2021)

Fig. in NPR
Investment in Unquoted Subsidiaries
Current Year Previous Year
Particulars Cost Fair Value Cost Fair Value
........... Shares of Rs.......... each of .......... Ltd. - - - -
........... Shares of Rs.......... each of .......... Ltd. - - - -
Total - - - -
Information Relating to Subsidiaries
Percentage of Ownership
Particulars Current Year | Previous Year
........... Shares of Rs.............each of ................ Ltd. - -
........... Shares of Rs.............each of ................ Ltd. - -
........... Shares of Rs.............each of ................ Ltd. - -
........... Shares of Rs.............each of ................ Ltd. - -
9 Investments in Associates
Particulars Current Year | Previous Year
Investment in Quoted Associates - -
Investment in Unquoted Associates 52,803,602 79,346,813
Less: Impairment Losses - -
Total 52,803,602 79,346,813
Investment in Quoted Associates
Current Year Previous Year

Equity Equity
Particulars Cost |Fair Value Method Cost| Fair Value Method
Total - - - - - -
Investment in Unquoted Associates

Current Year Previous Year

Equity Equity
Particulars Cost |Fair Value Method Cost | Fair Value Method
106,187* Shares of Rs 100 each of
Machhapuchchhre Capital Limited 9,100,000 - 9,100,000 | 9,100,000 - 9,100,000
400,000 Shares of Rs 100 each of Kriti Venture Fund 40,000,000 - 40,000,000 | 40,000,000 -| 40,000,000
215,000 Shares of Rs 100 each of
Citizen Life Insurance Company Limited - - - | 21,500,000 -| 21,500,000
Add: Share of Profit or Loss for Earlier Years - - 1,439,050 - - 3,728,724
Add: Share of Profit or Loss for Earlier Years being
financial statements published in current year only - - 1,578,218 - - 1,421,761
Add: Share of Profit or Loss for Current Year - - 686,334 - - 3,596,329
Total 49,100,000 52,803,602 | 70,600,000 79,346,813

* After merger of Machhapuchre Capital Ltd & Kriti Capital & Investment Ltd, 106,187 units of share have been alloted.
(Previous holding in KCIL was 91,000 units)
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Shikhar Insurance Company Ltd.

Notes to the Financial Statements
For The Year Ended Ashad 31, 2078 (July 15, 2021)

Fig. in NPR
Information Relating to Associates
Particulars Current Year | Previous Year | Current Year | Previous Year
Name Machhapuchchhre Capital Limited Kriti Venture Fund
Place of Business Kathmandu Kathmandu
Accounting Method Equity Equity
% of Ownership 3.97% 11.28% 20.00% 21.62%
Current Assets
i) Cash and Cash Equivalents 42.127,676 9,628,425 7,289,881 12,461,377
ii) Other Assets 213,235,980 67,817,378 4,879,398 22,877,925
Non-Current Assets 74,645,607 8,532,437 199,394,422 161,435,995
Current Liabilities
i) Financial Liabilities 6,957,318 1,449,830 880,013 3,030,285
ii) Other Liabilities 11,274,343 1,134,695 - -
Non-Current Liabilities 4,683,102 3,143,015
Revenue 61,171,566 19,028,635 12,062,759
Interest Income - - 2,861,175 12,062,759
Depreciation and Amortization 1,437,189 2,415,335 - -
Interest Expenses 195,399 195,399 600,000
Other Expenses 25,739,103 - 4,088,193 -
Income Tax Expenses 9,596,690 891,670 (456,755) 2,105,675
Net Profit or Loss from Continuing Operations 24,203,185 (1,874,065) (1,370,263) 6,205,424
Post tax profit or Loss form Discontinued Operations
Other Comprehensive Income - - - -
Total Comprehensive Income 24,203,185 (1,874,065) (1,370,263) 6,205,424
Company's share of profits - - - -
Net Profit or Loss 960,387 (211,349) (274,053) 1,341,713
Other Comprehensive Income - - - -
S hi kKhar
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Shikhar Insurance Company Ltd.

Notes to the Financial Statements

For The Year Ended Ashad 31, 2078 (July 15, 2021)

10 Investments

Fig. in NPR

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Investments measured at Amortised Cost

i) Investment in Preference Shares of Bank and Financial Institutions

i) Investment in Debentures

i) Investment in Bonds (Nepal Government/ NRB/ Guaranteed by Nepal Government)
iv) Fixed Deposit of "A" Class Financial Institutions

v) Fixed Deposit of Infrastructure Banks

616,555,000

1,760,500,000

508,686,000
20,000,000
1,800,810,000

vi) Fixed Deposits in "B" Class Financial Institutions 242,600,000 259,600,000
vii) Fixed Deposits in "C" Class Financial Institutions 40,500,000 55,500,000
viii) Others Debentures of Public Company - -
Less: Impairment Losses - -
Investments measured at FVTOCI

i) Investment in Equity Instruments - -
i) Investment in Mutual Funds - -
iii)  Investment in Debentures - -
iv) Others (to be Specified)

Investments measured at FVTPL - -
i) Investment in Equity Instruments 439,638,506 369,533,926
ii)  Investment in Mutual Funds 31,985,659 18,973,511
iii) Others - -
Investment in Gratuity Fund (CIT) 13,516,733 -
Seed Money in Micro Insurance Pool 1,390,689 1,390,689
Total 3,146,686,587 3,034,494,126

a) Details of Impairment Losses

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Investment in Preference Shares of Bank and Financial Institutions

Investment in Debentures

Investment in Bonds (Nepal Government/ NRB/ Guaranteed by Nepal Government)
Fixed Deposit with "A" Class Financial Institutions

Fixed Deposit with Infrastructure Bank

Fixed Deposits with "B" Class Financial Institutions

Fixed Deposits with "C" Class Financial Institutions

Others (to be specified)

Total
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Shikhar Insurance Company Ltd.

Notes to the Financial Statements

For The Year Ended Ashad 31, 2078 (July 15, 2021)

b) Investments having expected maturities less than 12 months

Fig. in NPR

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Investment in Equity Instruments (Quoted)
Investment in Equity Instruments (Unquoted)
Investment in Mutual Funds

Investment in Preference Shares of Bank and Financial Institutions
Investment in Debentures

Investment in Bonds

Fixed Deposit with "A" Class Financial Institutions
Fixed Deposit with Infrastructure Bank

Fixed Deposits with "B" Class Financial Institutions
Fixed Deposits with "C" Class Financial Institutions
Others (to be specified)

334,807,561
104,830,945
31,985,659

1,760,500,000

242,600,000
40,500,000

150,892,061

18,973,511

20,000,000
1,777,310,000

254,600,000
55,500,000

Total

2,515,224,165

2,277,275,572

c¢) The Company has earmarked investments amounting to NPR 1,363,111,000 to Insurance

Board.

11 Loans

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Loans at Amortised Cost
Loan to Associates

Loan to Employees

Loan to Agent

Others (to be specified)
Less: Impairment Losses

Total

a) Expected recovery period within 12 months

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Loan to Associates
Loan to Employees
Loan to Agent

Others (to be specified)

Total

12 Reinsurance Assets

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Reinsurance Assets on:
Unearned Premiums

Provision for Premium Deficiency
IBNR and IBNER Claim
Outstanding Claims

Margin For Adverse Deviation
Less: Impairment Losses

1,521,368,415

202,655,779
1,988,080,122
8,986,347

1,373,430,009

210,533,474
494,108,968
10,451,928

Total

3,721,090,663

2,088,524,379
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Shikhar Insurance Company Ltd.

Notes to the Financial Statements

For The Year Ended Ashad 31, 2078 (July 15, 2021)

13 Insurance Receivables

Fig. in NPR

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Receivable from Reinsurers

Receivable from Other Insurance Companies
Others (to be Specified)

Less: Impairment Losses

Total

531,895,697 | 503,578,608
272,858,499 | 710,467,055
(14,930,340) -
789,823,856 | 1,214,045,663

a) Expected recovery period within 12 months:

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Receivable from Reinsurers

Receivable from Other Insurance Companies
Others (to be Specified)

Total

531,895,697 | 503,578,608
272,858,499 | 710,467,055
804,754,196 | 1,214,045,663

14 Other Assets

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Capital Advances

Prepaid Expenses

Claim Advance

Advance To Suppliers

Staff Advances

VAT Receivable

Printing and Stationery Stock

Stamp Stock

Deferred Expenses

Deferred Re-Insurance Commission Expenses
Deferred Agent Commission Expenses
Finance Lease Receivable

Less: Impairment Losses

Others (Receivable for Covid 19 Insurance)
Total

13,630,437
140,216,741

26,128,568

8,952,159

182,300,652

12,647,086
147,735,147

49,618,916

15,799,687

371,228,557

225,800,837
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Shikhar Insurance Company Ltd.

Notes to the Financial Statements

For The Year Ended Ashad 31, 2078 (July 15, 2021)

a) Expected to be recovered/ settled within 12 months

Fig. in NPR

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Capital Advances

Prepaid Expenses

Claim Advance

Advance To Suppliers

Staff Advances

VAT Receivable

Printing and Stationery Stock

Stamp Stock

Deferred Expenses

Deferred Re-Insurance Commission Expenses
Deferred Agent Commission Expenses
Finance Lease Receivable

Others (Receivable for Covid 19 Insurance)
Total

13,630,437
140,216,741

26,128,568

8,952,159

182,300,652

12,647,086
147,735,147

49,618,916

15,799,687

371,228,557

225,800,836

15 Other Financial Assets

Particulars Current Year | Previous Year
Security Deposits - -
Accrued Interest 29,575,406 29,571,858
Other Receivables 162,965,203 72,053,466
Other Deposits 40,973,872 38,780,042
Sundry Debtors 8,191,603 10,603,026
Others

Bank Guarantee Margin 675,889 1,091,353
Receivable against sale of share 15,803,471 -
Less: Impairment Losses (2,115,898) (2,115,898)
Total 256,069,546 149,983,847

a) Expected maturities within 12 months

Particulars Current Year | Previous Year
Security Deposits
Accrued Interest 29,575,406 29,571,858
Other Receivables 160,849,305 69,937,568
Other Deposits 40,973,872 38,780,042
Sundry Debtors 8,191,603 10,603,026
Other
Bank Guarantee Margin 675,889 1,091,353
Receivable against sale of share 15,803,471 -
Total 256,069,546 148,892,494
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Shikhar Insurance Company Ltd.

Notes to the Financial Statements

For The Year Ended Ashad 31, 2078 (July 15, 2021)

16 Cash and Cash Equivalents

Fig. in NPR

Particulars Current Year | Previous Year
Cash In Hand 7,816 917,614
Cheques In Hand - 232,123,856
Bank Balances

i) Balance with "A" Class Financial Institutions 273,669,881 229,362,302
i) Balance with "B" Class Financial Institutions 60,077,634 55,256,567
iii) Balance with "C" Class Financial Institutions 17,518,210 19,681,391
Less: Impairment Losses - -
Deposit with initial maturity upto 3 months - -
Others - Gold Coin 939,110 855,819
Less: Impairment Losses - -
Total 352,212,651 538,197,550

17 (a) Share Capital

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Ordinary Shares

As at Ashad 31, 2077
Additions during the year
i) Bonus Share Issue
ii) Share Issue

1,057,310,600

384,020,200
317,193,200

1,057,310,600

As at Ashad 31, 2078

1,758,524,000

1,057,310,600

Convertible Preference Shares (Equity Component Only)
As at Ashad 31, 2077

Additions during the year

As at Ashad 31, 2078

Irredeemable Preference Shares (Equity Component Only)
As at Ashad 31, 2077

Additions during the year

As at Ashad 31, 2078

Total

1,758,524,000

1,057,310,600

(i) Ordinary Shares

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Authorised Capital:

40,000,000 Equity Share @ Rs. 100
Issued Capital:

22,860,812 Equity Share @ Rs. 100
Subscribed and Paid Up Capital:
17,585,240 Equity Share @ Rs. 100

4,000,000,000

2,286,081,200

1,758,524,000

2,000,000,000

1,057,310,600

1,057,310,600

Total

1,758,524,000

1,057,310,600
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Shikhar Insurance Company Ltd.

Notes to the Financial Statements

For The Year Ended Ashad 31, 2078 (July 15, 2021)

(ii) Preference Share Capital

Fig. in NPR

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Authorised Capital:

Issued Capital:

Subscribed and Paid Up Capital:

Convertible Preference Shares of Rs. ...
........ Irredeemable Preference Shares of Rs. ..

Convertible Preference Shares of Rs. ...
........ Irredeemable Preference Shares of Rs. ..

Convertible Preference Shares of Rs. ...
........ Irredeemable Preference Shares of Rs. ..

each
. each

each
. each

each
. each

Shareholding Structure of Share Capital

Number of Shares

Percentage

Current Year

Current Year

Previous Year

Current Year

Previous Year

Promoters
Government of Nepal

1,373,225

1,046,737

Nepali Organized Institutions 7.81% 9.90%
Nepali Citizen 7,595,248 5,297,127 43.19% 50.10%
Foreigner - - - -
Others (to be Specified) - - - -
Total (A) 8,968,473 6,343,865 51.00% 60.00%
Other than Promotors

General Public 8,616,767 4,229,242 49.00% 40.00%
Others (to be Specified) - - - -
Total (B) 8,616,767 4,229,242 49.00% 40.00%
Total (A+B) 17,585,240 10,573,107 100.00% 100.00%

Details of shares held by shareholders holding more than 1% of the aggregate shares in the Company

Number of Shares Percentage
Current Year Current Year | Previous Year| Current Year| Previous Year
Bikash Jung Bahadur Rana 1,211,787 774,191 6.89% 7.32%
Buddha Air Pvt. Ltd. 1,412,163 849,221 8.03% 8.03%
Gaurav Agrawal 1,951,496 1,362,535 11.10% 12.89%
Kailash Prasad Sirohiya 666,515 428,305 3.79% 4.05%
Pabitra Kumar Karki 294,716 177,230 1.68% 1.68%
Shekhar Basnet 184,203 110,771 1.05% 1.05%
Rajendra Prasad Shrestha 641,548 385,802 3.65% 3.65%
Lomash Investment Pvt. Ltd. 344,170 369,231 1.96% 3.49%
Jitendra Baheti 281,849 222,178 1.60% 2.10%
Kiran Prakash Pandey 289,208 158,241 1.64% 1.50%
Pawan Kumar Agrawal 303,036 184,618 1.72% 1.75%
Shashikanta Agrawal 780,677 522,271 4.44% 4.94%
Chanda Sherpa 1,260,695 748,933 717% 7.08%
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Notes to the Financial Statements

For The Year Ended Ashad 31, 2078 (July 15, 2021)

17 (b) Share Application Money Pending Allotment

Fig. in NPR

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Share Application Money Pending Allotment

Total

194,674,500.00

194,674,500.00

17 (c) Share Premium

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

As at Ashad 31, 2077

Increase due to issue of shares at premium
Decrease due to issue of bonus sharess
Transaction costs on issue of share

Others (to be Specified)

As at As

had 31, 2078

95,712,963.00

95,712,963.00

17 (d) Insurance Fund

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

As at Ashad 31, 2077
Additions
Utilizations

As at As

had 31, 2078

1,057,310,600
158,597,707

1,057,310,600

1,210,908,307

1,057,310,600

17 (e) Catastrophe Reserves

Particulars Current Year | Previous Year
As at Ashad 31, 2077 132,381,113 91,825,940
Additions 15,776,807 40,555,173
Utilizations (37,339,532) -
As at Ashad 31, 2078 110,818,388 132,381,113
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Shikhar Insurance Company Ltd.

Notes to the Financial Statements

For The Year Ended Ashad 31, 2078 (July 15, 2021)

17 (f) Retained Earnings

Fig. in NPR

Particulars Current Year | Previous Year
As at Ashad 31, 2077 428,319,186 93,098,976
Net Profit or Loss 311,987,941 409,258,334
Iltems of OCI recognised directly in retained earnings

Remeasurement of Post-Employment Benefit Obligations

Revaluation of Property, Plant and Equipment/ Intangible Assets 13,195,000 9,867,200
Transfer to/ from reserves

Capital Reserves - -
Insurance Fund (153,597,707) -
Catastrophe Reserves 21,562,725| (40,555,173)
Insurance Reserves -
Regulatory Reserves (622,162) -

Fair Value Reserves
Actuarial Reserves

(13,195,000)

Revaluation Reserves (9,867,200)
Deferred Tax Reserves (14,333,286) | (32,606,303)
Depreciation on Revaluation of Property, Plant and Equipment -
On Disposal of Revalued Property, Plant and Equipment -
On Disposal of Equity Instruments Measured at FVTOCI -
Share Premium -

Issue of Bonus Shares (384,020,200)

Transaction costs on issue of share (2,463,719) (868,436)
Dividend Paid

Dividend Distribution Tax (20,211,589)

Others- Prior Period Expenses - (8,212)
As at Ashad 31, 2078 186,621,189 428,319,186

17 (g) Other Equity

Particulars Current Year | Previous Year
Capital Reserves - -
Insurance Reserves = -
Regulatory Reserves 622,162 -
Fair Value Reserves - -
Actuarial Reserves - -
Revaluation Reserves 390,499,083 377,304,083
Cash Flow Hedge Reserves - -
Other Reserves - -
Deferred Tax Reserve 89,896,106 75,562,819
Total 481,017,351 452,866,902
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Shikhar Insurance Company Ltd.

Notes to the Financial Statements

For The Year Ended Ashad 31, 2078 (July 15, 2021)

18 Provisions

Fig. in NPR

Particulars Current Year | Previous Year
Provisions for employee benefits
i) Provision for Leave 26,345,786 20,545,016
i) Defined Benefits Plan - -
iii) Termination Benefits - -
iv) Other employee benefit obligation - -
Bonus Provision 50,774,642 129,896,946
Provision for tax related legal cases - -
Provision for non-tax legal cases - -
Others 3,370,694 3,370,694
Total 80,491,122 153,812,656
(a) Additional Disclosure under of Provisions
Additions Utilised Reversed | Unwinding

e Opening | During the | During the | During the of Closing

Description Balance Year Year Year Discount | Balance

Provision for tax related
legal cases - - -

Provision for non-tax
legal cases - - -

(b) Provision with expected payouts within 12 months

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Provisions for employee benefits

i) Provision for Leave

i) Defined Benefits Plan

iii) Termination Benefits

iv) Other employee benefit obligation
Bonus Provision

Provision for tax related legal cases
Provision for non-tax legal cases
Others

1,816,736

1,401,882

Total

1,816,736

1,401,882

19 Gross Insurance Contract Liabilities

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Unearned Premiums
Premium Deficiency

IBNR and IBNER
Outstanding Claims

Margin For Adverse Deviation

2,145,870,591
930,180
456,699,327
2,188,758,096
21,688,523

1,978,729,331
455,344,004
680,148,960
22,504,935

Total

4,813,946,717

3,136,727,230
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Shikhar Insurance Company Ltd.

Notes to the Financial Statements
For The Year Ended Ashad 31, 2078 (July 15, 2021)

20 Insurance Payables

Fig. in NPR

Particulars Current Year | Previous Year
Payable to Reinsurers 16,619,115 189,403,370
Payable to Other Insurance Companies 117,694,260 785,663,112
Others (to be Specified) - -
Total 134,313,375 975,066,482

Payable within 12 months

Particulars Current Year | Previous Year
Payable to Reinsurers 16,619,115 189,403,370
Payable to Other Insurance Companies 117,694,260 785,663,112
Others (to be Specified)

Total 134,313,375 975,066,482

21 Current Tax (Assets)/ Liabilities (Net)

Particulars Current Year | Previous Year
Income Tax Liabilities 149,434,051 177,311,299
Income Tax Assets 215,051,036 244,890,179
Total (65,616,985) (67,578,880)

22 Loans and Borrowings

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Bond
Debenture
Term Loan - Bank and Financial Institution

216,548,738

183,386,418

Bank Overdraft
Others (to be Specified)
Total 216,548,738 | 183,386,418

Payable within 12 months

Particulars Current Year | Previous Year

Bond

Debenture

Term Loan - Bank and Financial Institution

Bank Overdraft 216,548,738 183,386,418

Others (to be Specified)

Total 216,548,738 183,386,418
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Shikhar Insurance Company Ltd.

Notes to the Financial Statements
For The Year Ended Ashad 31, 2078 (July 15, 2021)

23 Other Financial Liabilities

Fig. in NPR

Particulars Current Year | Previous Year
Redeemable Preference Shares - -
Irredemable Cumulative Preference Shares - -
Payable to Agent 15,214,545 636,502
Refundable Share Application Money 209,000 209,000
Payable to Insured - -
Lease Liability - -
Sundry Creditors 36,500,001 36,509,378
Retention and deposits = -
Short-term employee benefits payable

i) Salary Payable - -
i) Bonus Payable 9,243,282 5,945,215
iii) Other employee benefit payable 2,264,149 1,963,338
Audit Fee Payable 362,375 334,500
Others (to be Specified)

i) Gratuity Payable 61,787,720 55,758,445
Total 125,581,072 101,356,378

Payable within 12 months

Particulars Current Year | Previous Year
Redeemable Preference Shares

Irredemable Cumulative Preference Shares

Payable to Agent 15,214,545 636,502
Refundable Share Application Money 209,000 209,000
Payable to Insured -

Lease Liability -

Sundry Creditors 36,500,001 36,509,378
Retention and deposits =

Short-term employee benefits payable -

i) Salary Payable -

ii) Bonus Payable 9,243,282 5,945,215
iii) Other employee benefit payable 2,264,149 1,963,338
Audit Fee Payable 362,375 334,500
Others (to be Specified) 61,787,720 55,758,445
Total 125,581,072 101,356,378
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Shikhar Insurance Company Ltd.

Notes to the Financial Statements

For The Year Ended Ashad 31, 2078 (July 15, 2021)

24 Other Liabilities

Fig. in NPR

Particulars Current Year | Previous Year
TDS Payable 18,062,383 7,049,182
VAT Payable 66,435,743 59,037,832
Dividend Payable - 50,217
Deposit Premium 1,527,547 -
Deferred Commission Income 167,185,186 123,076,626
Insurance Service Fee Payable 38,972,376 35,866,056
Deferred Income - -
Others (to be specified) - -
Total 292,183,235 225,079,912

Payable within 12 months

Particulars Current Year | Previous Year
TDS Payable 18,062,383 7,049,182
VAT Payable 66,435,743 59,037,832
Dividend Payable - -
Deposit Premium - -
Deferred Commission Income 167,185,186 123,076,626
Insurance Service Fee Payable 38,972,376 35,866,056
Deferred Income - -
Others (to be specified) - -
Total 290,655,688 225,029,695

25 Gross Earned Premiums

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Direct Premiums
Facultative Inward Premiums

Gross Change in Unearned Premiums

Total

3,701,230,576
219,996,593
(167,141,260)

3,385,429,484
82,940,568
(162,777,399)

3,754,085,910

3,305,592,653
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Shikhar Insurance Company Ltd.

Notes to the Financial Statements
For The Year Ended Ashad 31, 2078 (July 15, 2021)

Fig. in NPR
26 Premiums Ceded

Particulars Previous Year

2,324,765,418
(226,855,826)
2,097,909,592

Current Year
2,747,406,436
(147,938,406)
2,599,468,031

Premiums Ceded to Reinsurers
Reinsurer's Share of Change in Unearned Premiums
Total

Portfolio-wise detail of Premiums Ceded to Reinsurers

Premiums Ceded to Reinsurer's Share of Change in
Reinsurers Unearned Premiums Premium Ceded
Particulars Current Year | Previous Year | Current Year | Previous Year |Current Year | Previous Year
Fire 977,312,074| 628,795,533 | (174,258,271) (22,460,611)| 803,053,803 606,334,922
Motor 589,816,147| 585,648,233 (2,083,957) 37,769,764 | 587,732,190 623,417,997
Marine 167,628,983 163,590,885 61,539,824 (154,913,818)| 229,168,807 8,677,067
Engineering 219,949,190 172,223,689 (23,862,751) (32,542,725)| 196,086,439 | 139,680,964
Micro 61,093,776 61,205,648 55,936 (30,602,824) 61,149,712 30,602,824
Aviation 261,082,935 249,614,218 (5,911,128) 13,809,675 255,171,808| 263,423,893
Cattle and Crop 182,368,084 88,408,316 (46,979,884) (15,734,640)| 135,388,200 72,673,676
Miscellaneous 288,155,247 375,278,896 43,561,825 (22,180,647)| 331,717,072 353,098,249
Total 2,747,406,436| 2,324,765,418| (147,938,406) (226,855,826) | 2,599,468,031 | 2,097,909,592

27 Net Earned Premiums

Previous Year

3,305,592,653
2,097,909,592
1,207,683,061

Current Year
3,754,085,910
2,599,468,031
1,154,617,879

Particulars

Gross Earned Premiums
Premiums Ceded
Total

Portfolio-wise detail of Net Earned Premiums

Gross Earned Premiums Premiums Ceded Net Earned Premiums
Particulars Current Year | Previous Year [ Current Year Previous Year | Current Year | Previous Year
Fire 910,773,837 715,375,242 803,053,803 606,334,922 107,720,034 109,040,320
Motor 1,474,061,938| 1,527,643,790 587,732,190 623,417,997 | 886,329,748 904,225,793
Marine 251,026,914 38,347,773 229,168,807 8,677,067| 21,858,107 29,670,706
Engineering 196,422,780 140,622,942 196,086,439 139,680,964 336,341 941,978
Micro 82,506,465 38,593,432 61,149,712 30,602,824 | 21,356,753 7,990,608
Aviation 264,451,176 271,012,754 255,171,808 263,423,893 9,279,368 7,588,861
Cattle and Crop 168,810,751 104,945,853 135,388,200 72,673,676 33,422,551 32,272,178
Miscellaneous 406,032,049 469,050,867 331,717,072 353,098,249 74,314,977 115,952,617
Total 3,754,085,910| 3,305,592,653 | 2,599,468,031 2,097,909,592 (1,154,617,879 | 1,207,683,061

28 Commission Income

Particulars Current Year | Previous Year
Reinsurance Commission Income 511,510,830 537,366,038
Deferred Commission Income (44,108,560) 1,481,518
Profit Commission 30,697,608 -
Others (to be Specified) - -
Total 498,099,878 538,847,556
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Shikhar Insurance Company Ltd.

Notes to the Financial Statements
For The Year Ended Ashad 31, 2078 (July 15, 2021)

29 Investment Income

Fig. in NPR

Particulars Current Year | Previous Year
Interest Income from Financial Assets Measured at Amortised Costs

i) Fixed Deposit with "A" Class Financial Institutions 137,380,747 167,946,209
i) Fixed Deposit with Infrastructure Bank - -
iii) Fixed Deposit with "B" Class Financial Institutions 21,214,222 24,640,260
iv) Fixed Deposit with "C" Class Financial Instituions 4,011,451 5,555,241
v) Debentures 52,930,237 46,890,673
vi) Bonds (Nepal Government/ NRB/ Guaranteed by Nepal Government) 349,000 1,808,819
vii) Preference Shares of Bank and Financial Institutions - -
viii) Bank Deposits other than Fixed Deposit 6,398,385 7,218,102
ix) Policyholder Loan - -
x) Agent Loan - -
xi) Employee Loan - -
xii) Other Interest Income (CIT Deposit) 645,924 953,393
Financial Assets Measured at at FVTOCI

i) Interest Income on Debentures = -
i) Dividend Income - -
iii) Other Interest Income (to be specified) - -
Financial Assets Measured at at FVTPL

i) Dividend Income 2,026,499 3,185,014
i) Other Interest Income (to be specified) - -
Rental Income 17,030,045 15,151,968
Others - -
Total 241,986,510 273,349,679

30 Net Gains/ (Losses) on Fair Value Changes

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Changes in Fair Value of Financial Assets Measured at FVTPL

i) Equity Instruments

ii) Mutual Fund

i) Others (to be specified)

Changes in Fair Value on Investment Properties

Changes in Fair Value on Hedged ltems in Fair Value Hedges
Changes in Fair Value on Hedging Instruments in Fair Value Hedges
Gains/(Losses) of Ineffective Portion on Cash Flow Hedge

Others (to be specified)

Total

32,115,900
5,627,388

2,538,098
(66,938)

37,643,288

2,471,160

31 Net Realised Gains/ (Losses)

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Realised Gains/(Losses) on Derecognition of Financial Assets Measured at FVTPL
i) Equity Instruments

ii) Mutual Fund

iii) Others (to be specified)

Realised Gains/(Losses) on Derecognition of Financial Assets at Amortised Costs
i) Debentures

i) Bonds

iii) Others (to be specified)

Total

69,389,980
8,518,031

18,301,495
87,929

77,908,011

18,389,424
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Shikhar Insurance Company Ltd.

Notes to the Financial Statements
For The Year Ended Ashad 31, 2078 (July 15, 2021)

32 Other Income

Fig. in NPR

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Unwinding of discount on Financial Assets at Amortised Cost
i) Employee Loan

i) Bonds

iii) Others (to be Specified)

Foreign Exchange Income

Interest Income from Finance Lease

Profit from disposal of Property, Plant and Equipment
Amortization of Deferred Income

Stamp Income

7,009,070

1,334,525

Others (Other Direct Income)

Management Income - -
Grant Income - 566,786
Miscellaneous Income 25,395,644 156,799
Total 32,223,285 2,032,667

Note: Miscellaneous Income includes prior period error adjustment regarding Investment in Grauity Fund (CIT) not accounted
in previous year amounting to Nrs 11,917,416.

33 Gross Claims Paid

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Gross Claims Paid

2,203,988,377

1,665,832,392

Total 2,203,988,377 | 1,665,832,392
34 Claims Ceded
Particulars Current Year | Previous Year

Claims Ceded to Reinsurers

Total

1,311,409,304

806,123,579

1,311,409,304

806,123,579

Portfolio-wise detail of Gross Claims Paid and Claims Ceded

Particulars Current Year | Previous Year | Current Year Previous Year Current Year Previous Year
Fire 143,810,910 219,335,991 108,538,654 171,135,063 35,272,256 48,200,929
Motor 811,660,853 819,257,301 209,566,969 169,583,526 602,093,884 649,673,775
Marine 40,935,913 33,896,176 35,717,672 28,645,544 5,218,241 5,250,632
Engineering 87,455,953 216,168,422 78,650,682 204,766,560 8,805,271 11,401,861
Micro 711,313,511 757,349 632,135,468 234,000 79,178,043 523,349
Aviation - 956,243 - 591,513 - 364,731
Cattle and Crop 141,998,987 72,611,155 112,947,323 51,775,871 29,051,664 20,835,284
Miscellaneous 266,812,250 302,849,755 133,852,536 179,391,504 132,959,714 123,458,251
Total 2,203,988,377 | 1,665,832,392| 1,311,409,304 806,123,579 892,579,073 859,708,812
68 h | khar
Happysurance



Shikhar Insurance Company Ltd.

Notes to the Financial Statements
For The Year Ended Ashad 31, 2078 (July 15, 2021)

35 Change in Contract Liabilities

Fig. in NPR

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

(@) Gross Change in Contract Liabilities
Change in Contract Outstanding Claim
Change in IBNR and IBNER
Change in Margin for Adverse Deviation (MAD)
Change in Provision for Premium Deficiency
Total Gross Change in Contract Liabilities

(b) Change in Reinsurance Assets

Change in Reinsurance Assets Created on Outstanding Claim Provisions

Change in Reinsurance Assets Created on IBNR and IBNER

Change in Reinsurance Assets Created on Margin for Adverse Deviation (MAD)
Change in Reinsurance Assets Created on Provision for Premium Deficiency

Total Change in Reinsurance Assets
Net Change in Contract Liabilities

1,508,609,136
1,355,323
(816,412)
930,180
1,510,078,227

1,493,971,154

(170,591,321)
85,421,799
22,504,935

(62,664,587)

(81,716,934)

(7,877,695) 81,831,036
(1,465,581) 10,451,928
1,484,627,878 10,566,031
25,450,349 (73,230,617)

Portfolio-wise detail of Net Change in Contract Liabilities

Gross Change in Change in Net Change in
Contract Liabilities Reinsurance Assets Contract Liabilities
Particulars Current Year | Previous Year | Current Year Previous Year Current Year Previous Year
Fire 259,559,881 (36,018,547) 263,017,976 (51,927,360) (3,458,095) 15,908,813
Motor (16,272,806) 185,849,544 (56,710,567) 54,678,467 40,437,761 131,171,077
Marine 1,826,961 | (333,250,649) 2,896,616 (97,434,995) (1,069,655) (235,815,654)
Engineering (52,214,918) 33,751,268 (42,640,834) 26,268,339 (9,574,084) 7,482,929
Micro 1,297,856,113 2,025,000 | 1,298,488,528 1,215,000 (632,415) 810,000
Aviation 4,498,944 56,912,678 3,756,403 55,319,017 742,541 1,593,661
Cattle and Crop 8,103,010 (2,663,784) 7,318,950 (1,512,511) 784,060 (1,151,273)
Miscellaneous 6,721,042 30,729,903 8,500,806 23,960,074 (1,779,764) 6,769,829
Total 1,510,078,227 (62,664,587) | 1,484,627,878 10,566,031 25,450,349 (73,230,618)

36 Commission Expenses

Particulars

Commission Expenses on Direct Insurance Contracts

Commission Expenses on Reinsurance Accepted
Deferred Commission Expenses

Others (to be specified)

Total

Current Year | Previous Year
27,509,528 28,596,275
6,847,529 1,367,656
34,357,057 29,963,930
Continue...
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Shikhar Insurance Company Ltd.

Notes to the Financial Statements
For The Year Ended Ashad 31, 2078 (July 15, 2021)

Fig. in NPR
37 Service Fees

Particulars Current Year | Previous Year
Gross Service Fees 39,212,271 34,683,70
Reinsurer's Share of Service Fees 27,474,064 23,247,654
Total 11,738,207 11,436,046

Portfolio-wise detail of Service Fees

Gross Service Fees Reinsurer's Share of Service Fees Net Service Fees
Particulars Current Year | Previous Year | Current Year Previous Year Current Year Previous Year
Fire 10,699,497 7,515,980 9,773,121 6,287,955 926,376 1,228,025
Motor 14,951,525 14,529,714 5,898,161 5,856,482 9,053,364 8,673,232
Marine 1,921,558 1,895,557 1,522,385 1,635,909 399,173 259,648
Engineering 2,201,571 1,726,885 2,199,492 1,722,237 2,079 4,648
Micro 893,486 756,643 610,938 612,056 282,548 144,587
Aviation 2,674,070 2,632,630 2,610,829 2,496,142 63,241 136,488
Cattle and Crop 2,281,693 1,094,522 1,823,681 884,083 458,012 210,439
Miscellaneous 3,588,871 4,531,770 3,035,457 3,752,789 553,414 778,981
Total 39,212,271 34,683,701 27,474,064 23,247,654 11,738,207 11,436,046

38 Employee Benefits Expenses

Particulars Current Year | Previous Year
Salaries 262,646,726 237,335,683
Defined Benefit Plans

i) Gratuity - -
i) Others - -
Defined Contribution Plans

i) Provident Fund 8,929,893 10,316,573
i) Gratuity 7,798,557 10,039,448
Leave Encashments 17,677,656 12,017,813
Termination Benefits - -
Dashain Allowance 20,870,425 19,761,829
Other Allowance 16,800,335 16,011,739
Training Expenses 1,470,153 6,039,783
Uniform Expenses 2,062,273 5,454,217
Medical Expenses - -
Staff Insurance Expenses 10,574,518 9,765,233
Staff Welfare 7,497,503 5,580,528
Bonus 50,774,642 65,558,919
Others (To be specified) 834,796 364,922
Total 407,937,477 398,246,687

39 Depreciation & Amortization Expenses

Particulars Current Year | Previous Year

Depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipment (Refer Note 5) 19,303,219 17,892,260

Depreciation on Investment Properties (Refer Note 6) - -

Amortization of Intangible Assets (Refer Note 4) 873,207 154,665

Total 20,176,426 18,046,925
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Shikhar Insurance Company Ltd.

Notes to the Financial Statements

For The Year Ended Ashad 31, 2078 (July 15, 2021)

40 Impairment Losses

Fig. in NPR

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Impairment Losses on PPE, Investment Properties and Intangible Assets
i) Property, Plant and Equipment

i) Investment Properties

i) Intangible Assets

Impairment Losses on Financial Assets
i) Investment

i) Loans

iii) Other Financial Assets

iv) Cash and Cash Equivalent

v) Others (to be Specified)

Impairment Losses on Other Assets

i) Reinsurance Assets

ii) Insurance Receivables

iii) Lease Receivables

iv) Others (to be Specified)

14,930,340

Total

14,930,340

41 Other Expenses

Particulars Current Year | Previous Year
Rent Expenses 31,593,735 29,874,010
Electricity and Water 5,961,807 3,711,582
Repair & Maintenance
i) Building 362,213 1,334,184
i) Vehicle 1,320,097 1,717,577
iii) Office Equipments 896,946 418,331
iv) Others 2,694,999 3,337,079
Telephone & Communication 9,472,518 10,676,713
Printing & Stationary 13,707,774 11,593,443
Office Consumable Expenses 8,925,287 8,683,547
Travelling Expenses
i) Domestic 590,499 1,835,720
i) Foreign - 2,062,447
Agent Training - -
Other Agent Expenses - -
Insurance Premium 4,270,162 6,013,583
Security Expenses 4,636,503 4,352,426
Legal and Consulting Expenses 12,503,137 8,709,613
Newspapers, Books and Periodicals 209,671 233,214
Advertisement & Promotion Expenses 20,155,333 18,888,740
Business Promotion 2,876,499 5,475,809
Guest Entertainment 2,965,436 1,476,067
Gift and Donations 3,893,167 4,658,967
Board Meeting Fees and Expenses
i) Meeting Allowances 2,546,000 1,648,000
i) Other Allowances 722,861 538,389
Continue...

68hikhar
nsurance

appysavrance |72



Shikhar Insurance Company Ltd.

Notes to the Financial Statements

For The Year Ended Ashad 31, 2078 (July 15, 2021)

Fig. in NPR

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Other Committee/ Sub-committee Expenses

i) Meeting Allowances 1,545,000 1,775,000
i) Other Allowances 400,252 50,345
Annual General Meeting Expenses 3,490,963 2,202,775
Audit Related Expenses

i) Statutory Audit 325,000 300,000
ii) Tax Audit 75,000 70,000
iii) Long Form Audit Report 50,000 40,000
iv) Other Fees 911,838 423,605
v) Internal Audit 400,000 400,270
vi) Others 947,587 414,810
Bank Charges 1,307,214 884,703
Fee and Charges 2,499,470 4,325,593
Postage Charges 3,575,058 2,292,599
Others

a. Membership and subscription fees 162,500 331,800
b. Pooja expenses 596,415 497 122
c. Notice Expenses 1,015,457 436,468
d. Miscellaneous 884,539 70,842
e. Computer support service 4,653,679 1,643,276
f. Exchange loss 2,389,747 3,240,257
g. CSR expense - -
h Cleaning Expenses 1,868,568 899,270
i. Vehicle Running Expenses 10,285,540 9,815,961
j. Other direct expenses 11,986,789 3,100,534
Total 179,675,260 160,454,671

42 Finance Cost

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Unwinding of discount on Provisions

Unwinding of discount on Financial Liabilities at Amortised Costs
Interest Expenses - on Financial Liabilities at Amortised Costs
Interest Expenses - Lease

Interest expenses - Overdraft Loan 8,815,432 20,736,373
Others (to be specified) - -
Total 8,815,432 20,736,373
Shi khar
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Shikhar Insurance Company Ltd.

Notes to the Financial Statements

For The Year Ended Ashad 31, 2078 (July 15, 2021)

43 Income Tax Expense

(a) Income Tax Expense

Fig. in NPR

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Current Tax

i) Income Tax Expenses for the Year

i) Income Tax Relating to Prior Periods

Deferred Tax For The Year

i) Originating and reversal of temporary differences
i) Changes in tax rate

iii) Recognition of previously unrecognised tax losses
iv) Write-down or reversal

v) Others (to be Specified)

Income Tax Expense

149,776,364 | 177,311,299

- 4,981,037
(19,988,287)| (36,835,103)
129,788,077 145,457,233

(b) Reconciliation of Taxable Profit & Accounting Profit

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Accounting Profit Before Tax

Applicable Tax Rate

Tax at the applicable rate on Accounting Profit

Add: Tax effect of expenses that are not deductible for tax purpose
i) Donation

ii) Inadmissible Expenses

iii) Unabsorbed repairs

iv) Depreciation as per books

v) Provision for leave

vi) Other Expeses

Less: Tax effect on exempt income and additional deduction
i) Dividend Income

ii) Provision written back

iii) Depreciation as per the Act

iv) (Profit) Loss on Sale of Fixed Asset

Less: Adjustments to Current Tax for Prior Periods

i) Additional tax for Prior Periods

ii)

Add/ (Less): Others

i) Adjustment for Profit as per NFRS and previous GAAP
i) Fine and Penalties

Income Tax Expense (Current)

Effective Tax Rate

441,776,018| 554,715,567
30.00% 30.00%
132,532,805 166,414,670
1,167,950 1,397,690
349,487 -
78,508 -
7,730,935 6,910,314
1,703,424 1,104,247
4,479,102
(607,950) (955,504)
(2,194,425)|  (1,135,338)
(7,661,615)|  (7,041,920)
15,848 22,729
| 4,981,036.50
12,182,295| 10,594,411
149,776,364 | 182,292,336
33.90% 32.86%

Income Tax Calculation is based on Profit as per previous GAAP so figures stated above are part of Financial

Statements prepared as per previous GAAP
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Shikhar Insurance Company Ltd.

Notes to the Financial Statements
For The Year Ended Ashad 31, 2078 (July 15, 2021)

Fig. in NPR
44 Employee Retirement Benefits

a) Post Employment Benefit - Defined Contribution Plans
For the year ended Ashad 31, 2078 (15th July, 2021 ) the company has recognised an amount of NPR.
16,728,450.00 as an expenses under the defined contribution plans in the Statement of Profit or Loss.

b) Post Employment Benefit - Defined Benefit Plans
For Defined Benefit Plans, the cost of providing benefits is determined using the Projected Unit Credit
Method, with Actuarial Valuations being carried out.

c) Total Expenses Recognised in the Statement of Profit or Loss

Employee Benefit Plan Any Other Funded Liability

Particulars Current Year | Previous Year Current Year |Previous Year

Current service cost = - - .
Past service cost = - - .
Net interest cost = - - .
a. Interest expense on defined benefit obligation (DBO) - - o -
b. Interest (income) on plan assets @ - = -
c. Total net interest cost = - - .
Defined benefit cost included in Statement of Profit or Loss - - 5

d) Remeasurement effects recognised in Statement of Other Comprehensive Income (OCI)

Employee Benefit Plan Any Other Funded Liability

Particulars Current Year | Previous Year Current Year |Previous Year

a. Actuarial (gain)/ loss due to financial assumption

changes in DBO - - - -
b. Actuarial (gain)/ loss due to experience on DBO - - - -
c. Return on plan assets (greater)/ less than discount rate - - - -
Total actuarial (gain)/ loss included in OCI

e) Total cost recognised in Comprehensive Income

Employee Benefit Plan Any Other Funded Liability
Particulars Current Year | Previous Year | Current Year |Previous Year
Cost recognised in Statement of Profit or Loss - - - -
Remeasurements effects recognised in OCI - - - -
Total cost recognised in Comprehensive Income

f) Change in Defined Benefit Obligation

Employee Benefit Plan Any Other Funded Liability
Particulars Current Year | Previous Year Current Year |Previous Year
Defined benefit obligation as at the beginning of the year - - - -
Service cost - - - -
Interest cost - - - -
Benefit payments from plan assets - - - -
Actuarial (gain)/ loss - financial assumptions - - - -
Actuarial (gain)/ Loss - experience - - - -
Defined Benefit Obligation As At Year End

Continue...
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Shikhar Insurance Company Ltd.

Notes to the Financial Statements
For The Year Ended Ashad 31, 2078 (July 15, 2021)

Fig. in NPR
g) Change in Fair Value of Plan Assets

Employee Benefit Plan Any Other Funded Liability

Particulars Current Year | Previous Year Current Year |Previous Year

Fair value of plan assets at end of prior year - - - -
Expected return on plan assets - - - -
Employer contributions - - - .
Participant contributions - - - .
Benefit payments from plan assets - - - .
Transfer in/ transfer out - - - -
Actuarial gain/ (loss) on plan assets - - - -
Fair value of Plan Assets At End of Year

h) Net Defined Benefit Asset/(Liability)

Employee Benefit Plan Any Other Funded Liability

Particulars Current Year | Previous Year Current Year [Previous Year

Defined Benefit Obligation - - - -
Fair Value of Plan Assets - - - -
(Surplus)/Deficit Recognised in Statement of
Financial Position

i) Expected Company Contributions for the Next Year

Employee Benefit Plan Any Other Funded Liability

Particulars Current Year | Previous Year Current Year [Previous Year

Expected company contributions for the next year - - - -
(Surplus)/Deficit Recognised in Statement of
Financial Position

j) Reconciliation of amounts in Statement of Financial Position

Employee Benefit Plan Any Other Funded Liability

Particulars Current Year | Previous Year | Current Year [Previous Year

Net defined benefit liability/(asset) at prior year end - - 5 -
Defined benefit cost included in Statement of Profit or Loss - - = -
Total remeasurements included in OCI - - - -
Acquisition/ divestment = - - -
Employer contributions - - - -
Net defined benefit liability/(asset)

k) Reconciliation of Statement of Other Comprehensive Income

Employee Benefit Plan Any Other Funded Liability

Particulars Current Year | Previous Year Current Year |Previous Year

Cumulative OCI - (Income)/Loss, beginning of period - - - -
Total remeasurements included in OCI - - - -
Cumulative OCI - (Income)/Loss
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Shikhar Insurance Company Ltd.

Notes to the Financial Statements
For The Year Ended Ashad 31, 2078 (July 15, 2021)

Fig. in NPR
I) Current/Non - Current Liability

Employee Benefit Plan Any Other Funded Liability

Particulars Current Year | Previous Year Current Year |Previous Year

Current Liability = - - -
Non - Current Liability - - - -
Total

m) Expected Future Benefit Payments

Employee Benefit Plan Any Other Funded Liability

Particulars Current Year | Previous Year Current Year |Previous Year

Within 1 year - - - -
Between 1-2 years - - - -
Between 2-5 years - - - -
From 6 to 10 - - - -
Total -

n) Plan assets

Employee Benefit Plan Any Other Funded Liability
Particulars Current Year | Previous Year Current Year |Previous Year

(% Invested) (% Invested) (% Invested) (% Invested)

Government Securities (Central and State) - - - -
Corporate Bonds (including Public Sector bonds) - - . -
Mutual Funds - - - -
Deposits = - - -
Cash and bank balances - - - -
Others (to be Specified) - - - -
Total - - -

o) Sensitivity Analysis

Employee Benefit Plan Any Other Funded Liability

Particulars Current Year | Previous Year Current Year |Previous Year

Effect in Defined Benefit Obligation Due to 1%
Increase in Discount Rate - - - -
Effect in Defined Benefit Obligation Due to 1%
Decrease in Discount Rate = - - -

Effect in Defined Benefit Obligation Due to 1%
Increase in Salary Escalation Rate = - - .
Effect in Defined Benefit Obligation Due to 1%
Decrease in Salary Escalation Rate - - - -

Effect in Defined Benefit Obligation Due to 1%
Increase in Attrition Rate - - - -
Effect in Defined Benefit Obligation Due to 1%
Decrease in Attrition Rate - - - -

Continue...
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Shikhar Insurance Company Ltd.

Notes to the Financial Statements

For The Year Ended Ashad 31, 2078 (July 15, 2021)

p) Assumptions

Fig. in NPR

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Discount Rate

Escalation Rate (Rate of Increase in Compensation Levels)
Attrition Rate (Employee Turnover)

Mortality Rate During Employment

45 Insurance Risk

Insurance risk includes the risk of incurring higher claims costs than expected owing to the random nature
of claims, frequency and severity and the risk of change in the legal or economic conditions of insurance
or reinsurance cover. This may result in the insurer having either received too little premium for the risks it
has agreed to underwrite and hence has not enough funds to invest and pay claims, or that claims are in
excess of those expected.

The Company seeks to minimise insurance risk through a formalised reinsurance arrangement with an
appropriate mix and spread of business between classes of business based on its overall strategy. This is
complemented by observing formalised risk management policies.

The Company considers insurance risk to be a combination of the following components of risks:
a) Product development

b) Pricing

c) Underwriting

d) Reinsurance

e) Claims Handling

f) Reserving

a) Product development
The Company principally issues the following types of Non-Life Insurance contracts:
- Fire
- Motor
- Marine
- Engineering
- Micro
- Aviation
- Cattle and Crop
- Miscellaneous

The significant risks arising under the Non-Life Insurance portfolio emanates from changes in the climate
leading to natural disasters, behavioral trends of people due to changing life styles, the steady escalation
of costs in respect of spares in the auto industries.

The above risk exposure is mitigated by the diversification across a large portfolio of insurance contracts
and geographical areas. The variability of risks is improved by careful selection and implementation of
underwriting strategies, which are designed to ensure that risks are diversified in terms of type of risk and
level of insured benefits.

Furthermore, strict claim review policies to assess all new and ongoing claims, regular detailed review of
claims handling procedures and frequent investigation of possible fraudulent claims are put in place to
reduce the risk exposure of the Company. The Company further enforces a policy of actively managing and
promptly pursuing claims, in order to reduce its exposure to unpredictable future developments that can
negatively impact the business.

Continue...
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Shikhar Insurance Company Ltd.

Notes to the Financial Statements
For The Year Ended Ashad 31, 2078 (July 15, 2021)

Fig. in NPR

b) Pricing
The pricing of an insurance product involves the estimation of claims, operational and financing costs
and the income arising from investing the premium received. The pricing process typically comprises
collecting data on the underlying risks to be covered, determining the pricing assumptions and the base
rate, setting the final premium rate, and monitoring the review of the appropriateness of pricing.

The Company collects adequate data to validate the reasonableness of the underlying assumptions
used for pricing. The base rate represents the amount required to meet the value of anticipated benefits,
expenses, and margins for risks and profit. Data primarily relates to the company's own historical
experience and that of the industry where relevant. These may be supplemented by other internal and
external data, and could include trends observed in claims costs and expenses.

Pricing is done by modelling all identified risks, using appropriate methodologies depending on the
complexity of the risks and available data. Adequate buffers are kept in the premiums to cushion against
the risk that actual experience may turn out to be worse than expected.

c) Underwriting
The Company’s underwriting process is governed by the by the internal underwriting procedures. Some
of the actions undertaken to mitigate underwriting risks are detailed below:
i) Investments are made on the training and development of underwriting and claims management
staff, including those attached to the distribution network.

ii) Application of Four-Eye principle on underwriting process.

iii) Pre-underwriting inspections are made on new business over a predetermined threshold to evaluate
risk prior to acceptance

iv) Post-underwriting reviews are conducted to ensure that set guidelines have been observed.

v) Adequate reinsurance arrangements are in place and reviews are undertaken to ensure the adequacy
of these covers

d) Reinsurance

The Company purchases reinsurance as part of its risks mitigation programme. Premium ceded to the
reinsurers is in accordance with the terms of the programmes already agreed based on the risks written
by the insurance companies. Recoveries from reinsurers on claims are based on the cession made in
respect of each risk and is estimated in a manner consistent with the outstanding claims provisions
made for the loss. Although we mitigate our exposures through prudent reinsurance arrangements, the
obligation to meet claims emanating from policy holders rests with the Company. Default of reinsurers
does not negate this obligation and in that respect the Company carries a credit risk up to the extent
ceded to each reinsurer.

e) Claims handling
Some of the actions undertaken to mitigate claims risks is detailed below:

i) Claims are assessed immediately.

i) Assessments are carried out by in-house as well as independent assessors / loss adjustors working
throughout.

iii) The service of a qualified independent actuary is obtained annually to assess the adequacy of
reserves made in relation to Incurred But Not Reported (IBNR) and

iv) Incurred But Not Enough Reported (IBNER) claims.

v) Post-underwriting reviews are conducted to ensure that set guidelines have been observed.

vi) Adequate reinsurance arrangements are in place and reviews are undertaken to ensure the adequacy
of these covers
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Shikhar Insurance Company Ltd.

Notes to the Financial Statements
For The Year Ended Ashad 31, 2078 (July 15, 2021)

f) Reserving

Fig. in NPR

Insurance Contract Liabilities are created to cover this risk based on the actuarial valuation report.

The table below sets out the concentration of risk associated with above mentioned products. Risk as at year
end has been measured as insurance contract liabilities and disclosed as below:

Current Year Previous Year
Gross Gross
. Insurance | Reinsurance Net Insurance Reinsurance Net
Particulars Liabilities Assets Liabilities Liabilities Assets Liabilities
Fire 1,047,664,084| 968,177,063 79,487,021 628,928,370 530,900,817 98,027,553
Motor 1,239,552,078| 394,153,439 845,398,639| 1,234,734,344 448,780,048 785,954,295
Marine 313,856,571| 259,750,708 54,105,863 370,900,685 318,393,916 52,506,769
Engineering 247,827,021 236,480,618 11,346,403 276,307,614 255,258,701 21,048,912
Micro 1,344,555,425| 1,330,250,416 14,305,009 39,857,153 31,817,824 8,039,329
Aviation 195,998,986| 189,793,657 6,205,329 188,544,176 180,126,126 8,418,050
Cattle and Crop 142,307,125| 109,333,994 32,973,131 74,845,574 55,035,160 19,810,414
Miscellaneous 282,185,427 233,150,768 49,034,659 322,609,315 268,211,786 54,397,528
Total 4,813,946,717( 3,721,090,663| 1,092,856,054| 3,136,727,230 2,088,524,379| 1,048,202,851

46 Fair Value Measurements

(i)

Financial Instruments by Category & Hierarchy

This section explains the judgements and estimates made in determining the Fair Values of the Financial
Instruments that are (a) recognised and measured at fair value and (b) measured at Amortised Cost
and for which Fair Values are disclosed in the Financial Statements.

To provide an indication about the reliability of the inputs used in determining Fair Value, the Company
has classified its financial instruments into Three Levels prescribed as per applicable NFRS.

Current Year Previous Year

Particulars Level FVTPL FVOCI | Amortised Cost | FVTPL FVOCI | Amortised Cost
Investments
i) Investment in Equity Instruments 1,2and 3| 439,638,506 - 1369,533,926
ii) Investment in Mutual Funds 1 31,985,659 18,973,511
iii) Investment in Preference Shares of

Bank and Financial Institutions : -
iv) Investment in Debentures 616,555,000 508,686,000
v) Investment in Bonds (Nepal Government/

NRB/ Guaranteed by Nepal Government) - 20,000,000
vi) Fixed Deposits - - 2,043,600,000 - 2,115,910,000
vii) Others (to be specified) 1 14,907,422 1,390,689 -
Loans - - - - -
Other Financial Assets - - 256,069,546 - 149,983,847
Cash and Cash Equivalents 1 352,212,651 - 538,197,550 -
Total Financial Assets - 838,744,238 2,916,224,546 | 928,095,676 2,794,579,847
Loans and Borrowings - 216,548,738 - 183,386,418
Other Financial Liabilities 125,581,072 101,356,378
Total Financial Liabilities 342,129,810 284,742,796
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Fig. in NPR
Level 1 : Level 1 Hierarchy includes Financial Instruments measured using Quoted Prices.
Level 2 : Fair Value of Financial Instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined using
valuation techniques which maximises the use of observable market data and rely as little as

possible on entity-specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to determine Fair Value of an
instrument are observable, the instrument is included in Level 2.

Level 3 : If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is
included in Level 3.

There is no transfer of Financial Instruments between different levels as mentioned above during the year.

(ii) Valuation Technique Used to Determine Fair Value
a) Use of quoted market prices or dealer quotes for similar instruments
b) Fair Value of remaining financial instruments is determined using discounted cash flow analysis
(iii) Valuation Process
The finance and accounts department of the Company performs the valuation of financial assets and liabilities
required for financial reporting purposes. Discussion on valuation processes and results are held at least
once in a year.
The main level 3 inputs are derived and evaluated as follows:
a) Discount rate is arrived at considering the internal and external factors.
b) Discounting has been applied where assets and liabilities are non-current, and the impact of the
discounting is material

(iv) Fair Value of Financial Assets and Liabilities Measured at Amortised Cost

Current Year Previous Year

Particulars Carrying Amount |  Fair Value Carrying Amount Fair Value

Investments
i) Investment in Preference Shares of Bank and
Financial Institutions - - - -
ii) Investment in Debentures 616,555,000 616,555,000 508,686,000 | 508,686,000
iii) Investment in Bonds (Nepal Government/ NRB/
Guaranteed by Nepal Government) - - 20,000,000 20,000,000
iv) Fixed Deposit 2,043,600,000 | 2,043,600,000 2,115,910,000 | 2,115,910,000
v) Others (to be Specified)
Loans
i) Loan to Associates - - - -
ii) Loan to Employees - - - -
v) Others (to be Specified) - - - -
Other Financial Assets 256,069,546 | 256,069,546 149,983,847 | 149,983,847

Total Financial Assets at Amortised Cost 2,916,224,546 | 2,916,224,546 2,794,579,847 | 2,794,579,847
Loans and Borrowings
i) Bond - . - -

ii) Debenture - - - -
iii) Term Loan - Bank and Financial Institution - - - -
iv) Bank Overdraft 216,548,738 | 216,548,738 183,386,418 | 183,386,418

v) Others (to be Specified) - - - -
Other Financial Liabilities 125,581,072 125,581,072 101,356,378 | 101,356,378
Total Financial Liabilities at Amortised Cost 342,129,810 342,129,810 284,742,796 | 284,742,796

The fair values of the above financial instruments measured at amortised cost are calculated based on cash
flows discounted using current discount rate.

The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents are considered to be the same as their fair values, due to
their short-term nature.
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47 Financial Risk Management

The Company's activities expose it to Credit Risk, Liquidity Risk & Market Risk.

i) Credit Risk

Fig. in NPR

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss as a result of the default or failure of third parties to meet their
payment obligations to the Company. Thus, for an insurance contract, credit risk includes the risk that
an insurer incurs a financial loss because a reinsurer defaults on its obligations under the reinsurance

contract.

The following policies and procedures are in place to mitigate the Company’s exposure to credit

risk:

a) Company has credit risk policy which sets out the assessment and determination of what constitutes
credit risk for the Company. Compliance with the policy is monitored and exposures and breaches
are reported to the Company’s risk committee. The policy is regularly reviewed for pertinence and
for changes in the risk environment.

b) Reinsurance is placed with counterparties that have a good credit rating and concentration of risk
is avoided by entering into agreement with more than one party. At each reporting date, management
performs an assessment of creditworthiness of reinsurers and updates the reinsurance purchase
strategy, ascertaining suitable allowance for impairment.

c) The company deals with only creditworthy counterparties and obtains sufficient collateral where

appropriate, as a means of mitigating the risk of financial loss from defaults.

Expected Credit Losses for Financial Assets at Amortised Costs as at Ashad 31, 2078

Gross Expected Carrying
Asset | Carrying | Probability of| Expected |Amount After
Particulars Group | Amount Default | Credit Losses | Provision
Credit Risk has not significantly increased hmoe%asssgc\iﬂaatq%emonths
since initial recognition expected credit losses - - -
Credit Risk has significantly increased and Loss allowance
not credit impaired measured at life-time - - -
expected credit losses
Credit Risk has significantly increased and
credit impaired - - -
Expected Credit Losses for Financial Assets at Amortised Costs as at Ashad 31, 2077
Gross Expected Carrying
Asset | Carrying | Probability of| Expected |Amount After
Particulars Group | Amount Default | Credit Losses | Provision
Credit Risk has not significantly increased Loss allowance
L ", measured at 12 months
since initial recognition expected credit losses - - -
Credit Risk has significantly increased and Loss allowance
not credit impaired measured at life-time - - -
expected credit losses
Credit Risk has significantly increased and
credit impaired - R R
Continue...
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Reconciliation of Loss Allowance Provision

Fig. in NPR

Particulars

Measured at 12 months
expected credit losses

Measured at life-time expected credit losses

Credit Risk has
significantly increased
and not credit impaired

Credit Risk has
significantly increased
and credit impaired

Loss Allowance on Ashadh 31, 2077

Changes in loss allowances

Write-offs
Recoveries

Loss Allowance on Ashadh 31, 2078

ii) Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that an entity will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with financial
liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. In respect of catastrophic events there
is also a liquidity risk associated with the timing differences between gross cash out—flows and expected
reinsurance recoveries.

Maturity of Financial Liabilities
The table below summarises the Company's Financial Liabilities into Relevant Maturity Groupings based
on their Contractual Maturities for all Financial Liabilities.

Current Year Previous Year
1 Year to More than 1 Year to More than
Particulars Upto 1 Year 5 Year 5 Year Upto 1 Year 5 Year 5 Year
Loans and Borrowings 216,548,738 - - 183,386,418 -
Other Financial Liabilities 125,581,072 - - 101,356,378 -
Total Financial Liabilities 342,129,810 284,742,796

iii) Market Risk

a1) Foreign Currency Risk Exposure
Foreign exchange risk is the potential for the Company to experience volatility in the value of its assets,
liabilities and solvency and to suffer actual financial losses as a result of changes in value between
the currencies of its assets and liabilities and its reporting currency. The Company does not maintain
foreign currency denominated assets in its investment portfolios and as such is not exposed to foreign
exchange risk related to investments.

Operation of the Company has exposed it to foreign exchange risk arising from foreign currency
transactions, with respect to the USD and Indian Rupees. The risk is measured through a forecast of
highly probable foreign currency cash flows. The objective of the hedges is to minimise the volatility
of the NPR cash flows of highly probable forecast transactions.
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Fig. in NPR

The Company's exposure to foreign currency risk at the end of the reporting period expressed in NPR, are
as follows:

Current Year Previous Year

usD usD
Investments - - - -
Loans

Insurance Receivables
Other Financial Assets

Particulars Indian Rupees Indian Rupees

140,990,191 390,905,906 | 179,300,919 141,304,363

Less: Derivative Assets
i) Foreign exchange forward contracts - Sell Foreign Currency - - - -
i) Foreign exchange option contracts - Sell Foreign Currency - - - -

140,990,191 390,905,906 | 179,300,919 141,304,363

Net Exposure to Foreign Currency Risk/ (Assets)
Insurance Payables
Other Financial Liabilities - o - -

Less: Derivative Liabilities
i) Foreign exchange forward contracts - Buy Foreign Currency - - - -
ii) Foreign exchange option contracts - Buy Foreign Currency - - - -
Net Exposure to Foreign Currency Risk/ (Liabilities)

a2) Foreign Currency Risk - Sensitivity
The sensitivity of profit or loss to changes in the exchange rates arises mainly from foreign currency
denominated financial instruments and the impact on the other components of equity arising from
foreign forward exchange contracts, foreign exchange option contracts designated as cash flow hedges

Impact on profit after tax Impact on other component of equity

Particulars Current Year Previous Year | Current Year Previous Year
USD sensitivity

NPR/USD - Increases by 10% * (14,099,019) (14,099,019) -
NPR/ USD - Decreases by 10% * 14,099,019 14,099,019 -

INR sensitivity
NPR/ Currency A - Increases by 10% * - - - -
NPR/ Currency A - Decreases by 10% * - - - -

* Holding all other variable constant

b1) Interest Rate Risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market interest rates.

The major interest rate risk that the Company is exposed to is the discount rate for determining insurance
liabilities.

b2) Interest Rate Sensitivity
Profit or Loss is sensitive to changes in Interest Rate for Borrowings. A change in Market Interest Level

by 1% which is reasonably possible based on Management's Assessment would have the following
effect on the Profit After Tax.

Particulars Current Year | Previous Year
Interest Rate - Increase By 1%* (1,399,773) (1,283,705)
Interest Rate - Decrease By 1%* 1,399,773 1,283,705
* Holding all other Variable Constant
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For The Year Ended Ashad 31, 2078 (July 15, 2021)
Fig. in NPR
c¢1) Equity Price Risk
Equity price risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in equity prices (other than those arising from interest rate risk or currency risk),
whether those changes are caused by factors specific to the individual financial instrument or its issuer,
or by factors affecting all similar financial instruments traded in the market.

The Company has invested in equity securities and the exposure is equity securities price risk from
investments held by the Company and classified in the statement of financial position as fair value
through OCI.

c2) Sensitivity
The table below summarises the impact of increase/decrease of the index in the Company’s equity
and impact on OCI for the period. The analysis is based on the assumption that the equity index had
increased/ decreased by 1% with all other variables held constant, and that all the Company's equity
instruments moved in line with the index.

Particulars Current Year | Previous Year

Interest Rate - Increase By 1%* - -
Interest Rate - Decrease By 1%* - -

* Other components of equity would increase/decrease as a result of gains/ (losses) on equity securities classified as fair
value through other comprehensive income.

48 Operation Risk
Operational Risk is the risk of direct or indirect loss, or damaged reputation resulting from inadequate or
failed internal processes, people and systems or external events. When controls fail to perform, operational
risks can cause damage to reputation, have legal or regulatory implications or can lead to financial loss.
The Company cannot expect to eliminate all operational risks, but by initiating a rigorous control framework
and by monitoring and responding to potential risks, the Company is able to manage the risks. Controls
include effective segregation of duties, access controls, authorisation and reconciliation procedures, staff
education and assessment processes, including the use of internal audit. Business risks such as changes
in environment, technology and the industry are monitored through the Company’s strategic planning and
budgeting process.

49 Capital Management
The Company's objectives when managing Capital are to:
a) Safeguard their ability to continue as a going concern so that they can continue to provide returns for
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders, and

b) Maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the amount of dividends paid
to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares.

Regulatory minimum paid up capital

Non-Life insurance companies were required by the Directive issued by Beema Samiti to attain a stipulated

minimum paid up capital of NPR 1 billion by mid-July 2018. As on the reporting date, the company's paid
up capital is NPR 1,057,310,600

Dividend

Particulars Current Year | Previous Year

(i) Dividends recognised
Final dividend for the year ended Ashad 31, 2078 of NPR 38/-
(Ashad 31, 2077 - NPR 0./-) per fully paid share 401,778,028 -
401,778,028 -

(ii) Dividends not recognised at the end of the reporting period
-| 401,778,028
-| 401,778,028
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50 Earnings Per Share

Fig. in NPR

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Profit For the Year

Add: Interest saving on Convertible Bonds

Profit For the Year used for Calculating Diluted Earning per Share
Weighted Average Number of Equity Shares Outstanding During the
Year For Basic Earning per Share

Adjustments for calculation of Diluted Earning per Share:

i) Dilutive Shares

i) Options

iii) Convertible Bonds

Weighted Average Number of Equity Shares Outstanding During the
Year for Diluted Earning Per Share

Nominal Value of Equity Shares

Basic Earnings Per Share

Diluted Earnings Per Share

311,987,941 409,258,334
311,987,941- 409,258,334;
17,185,490 14,413,308
: 2,872,476;
17,185,490 17,285,784
18.15_ 28.35;

18.15 23.68

51 Segmental Information

Segment information is presented in respect of the Company's business segments. Management of the
Company has identified portfolio as business segment and the Company's internal reporting structure is
also based on portfolio. Performance is measured based on segment profit as management believes that
it is most relevant in evaluating the results of segment relative to other entities that operate within these

industries.

Segment asset is disclosed below based on total of all asset for each business segment.

The Company operates predominantly in Nepal and accordingly, the Management of the Company is of
the view that the financial information by geographical segments of the Company’s operation is not necessary

to be presented.

Business Segments of the Company’s are:
i) Fire

i)  Motor

iii)  Marine

iv) Engineering

v)  Micro

vi) Aviation

vii) Cattle and Crop

viii) Miscellaneous
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Shikhar Insurance Company Ltd.

Notes to the Financial Statements

For The Year Ended Ashad 31, 2078 (July 15, 2021)

e) Reconciliation of Segmental Profit with Statement of Profit or Loss

Fig. in NPR

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Segmental Profit
Less: Depreciation and Amortization

Less: Non-cash expenses other than Depreciation and Amortization
Less: Unallocable Corporate Expenditures

Add: Unallocable Other Income
Less: Finance Cost
Profit Before Tax

490,741,428| 656,194,017
(20,176,426)|  (18,046,925)
(14,930,340) -
(5,043,212)|  (62,695,152)
(8,815,432)| (20,736,373)
441,776,018 554,715,567

f) Reconciliation of Assets

Particulars Current Year | Previous Year
Segment Assets 4,510,914,519 | 3,302,570,041.00
Intangible Assets - 873,207
Property, Plant and Equipment 661,237,904 623,883,859
Investment Properties - -
Deferred Tax Assets 89,896,106 75,562,819

Investments

Loans

Current Tax Assets (Net)

Other Assets and Other Financial Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents

Total Assets

3,199,490,189

3,113,840,939

65,616,985 67,578,880
627,298,103 375,784,684
352,212,651 538,197,550

9,506,666,457 |  8,098,291,979

dg) Reconciliation of Liabilities

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Segment Assets
Provisions

Deferred Tax Liabilities
Current Tax Liabilities (Net)
Loans and Borrowings
Other Financial Liabilities
Other Liabilities

Total Liabilities

4,948,260,092

4,111,793,712

80,491,122

216,548,738
125,581,072
292,183,235

153,812,656

183,386,418
101,356,378
225,079,912

5,663,064,259

4,775,429,076
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Shikhar Insurance Company Ltd.

Notes to the Financial Statements
For The Year Ended Ashad 31, 2078 (July 15, 2021)

52 Related Party Disclosure

(a) Identify Related Parties

Holding Company:
N.A.

Subsidiaries:
N.A.

Associates:
Machhapuchchhre Capital Limited
Kriti Venture Fund

Fellow Subsidiaries:
N.A.

Board of Director & Key Management Personnel:
Rajendra Prasad Shrestha - Chairperson

Saurav J.B. Rana - Director

Ramesh Kumar Luitel - Director

Shrujana Shrestha - Director

Dinesh Bajra Bajracharya - Director

Skand Amatya - Director

Dip Prakash Panday - Chief Executive Officer
Bimal Raj Nepal - General Manager
Pushkar Mahat - General Manager

Sabita Maskey - General Manager

(b) Key Management Personnel Compensation:

Fig. in NPR

Particulars Current Year | Previous Year
Short-term employee benefits 13,988,255 11,536,584
Post-employment benefits 595,741 583,306
Other long-term benefits 562,333 320,000
Termination benefits - -
Total 15,146,329 12,439,889

Payment to Chief Executive Officer (CEO)

Particulars Current Year | Previous Year
Annual salary and allowances 12,058,750 12,058,750
Performance based allowances
i) Employee Bonus - -
ii) Benefits as per prevailing provisions 4,904,448 4,441,125
iii) Incentives - -
Insurance related benefits
i) Life Insurance 461,428 461,428
ii) Accident Insurance 3,900 3,900
iii) Health Insurance (including family members) 8,400 8,400
Total 17,436,926 16,973,603
Continue...
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Shikhar Insurance Company Ltd.

Notes to the Financial Statements
For The Year Ended Ashad 31, 2078 (July 15, 2021)

Fig. in NPR
(c) Related Party Transactions:

Holding o ) Fellow Key Managerial
Particulars Company | Subsidiaries | Associates | Subsidiaries| Personnel Total

Premium Earned
For The Year Ended Ashad 31, 2078 (July 15, 2021) - - - - - -
For The Year Ended Ashad 31, 2077 (July 15, 2020) - - - - - .

Commission Income
For The Year Ended Ashad 31, 2078 (July 15, 2021) - - - - - -
For The Year Ended Ashad 31, 2077 (July 15, 2020) - - - - - -

Rental Income
For The Year Ended Ashad 31, 2078 (July 15, 2021) - - - - - -
For The Year Ended Ashad 31, 2077 (July 15, 2020) - - - - - -

Interest Income
For The Year Ended Ashad 31, 2078 (July 15, 2021) - - - - - .
For The Year Ended Ashad 31, 2077 (July 15, 2020) - - - - - -

Sale of Property, Plant & Equipment
For The Year Ended Ashad 31, 2078 (July 15, 2021) - - - - - -
For The Year Ended Ashad 31, 2077 (July 15, 2020) - - - - - -

Purchase of Property, Plant & Equipment
For The Year Ended Ashad 31, 2078 (July 15, 2021) - - - - - -
For The Year Ended Ashad 31, 2077 (July 15, 2020) - - - - - -

Premium Paid
For The Year Ended Ashad 31, 2078 (July 15, 2021) - - - - - -
For The Year Ended Ashad 31, 2077 (July 15, 2020) - -| 4,995,115 - - 4,995,115

Commission Expenses
For The Year Ended Ashad 31, 2078 (July 15, 2021) - - - - - -
For The Year Ended Ashad 31, 2077 (July 15, 2020) - - - - - -

Dividend
For The Year Ended Ashad 31, 2078 (July 15, 2021) - - - - - -
For The Year Ended Ashad 31, 2077 (July 15, 2020) - - - - - -

Meeting Fees
For The Year Ended Ashad 31, 2078 (July 15, 2021) - - - - 3,691,000 | 3,691,000
For The Year Ended Ashad 31, 2077 (July 15, 2020) - - - - 1,648,000 | 1,648,000

Allowances to Directors
For The Year Ended Ashad 31, 2078 (July 15, 2021) - - - - - -
For The Year Ended Ashad 31, 2077 (July 15, 2020) - - - - - -

Others
For The Year Ended Ashad 31, 2078 (July 15, 2021) - - - - - -
For The Year Ended Ashad 31, 2077 (July 15, 2020) - - - - - -

(d) Related Party Balances:

Holding o ) Fellow | Key Managerial
Particulars Company | Subsidiaries | Associates | Subsidiaries| Personnel Total

Receivables including Reinsurance Receivables
As at Ashad 31,2078 (July 15, 2021) - - - - -
As at Ashad 31,2077 (July 15, 2020) - - - - -

Other Receivables
As at Ashad 31,2078 (July 15, 2021) - - - R R
As at Ashad 31,2077 (July 15, 2020) - - - - R

Payables including Reinsurance Payables
As at Ashad 31,2078 (July 15, 2021) - - - - -
As at Ashad 31,2077 (July 15, 2020) - - - - -

Other Payables
As at Ashad 31,2078 (July 15, 2021) - -
As at Ashad 31,2077 (July 15, 2020) -

46,242,766 - 46,242,766
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Shikhar Insurance Company Ltd.

Notes to the Financial Statements
For The Year Ended Ashad 31, 2078 (July 15, 2021)

Fig. in NPR
53 Leases

(a) Leases as Lessee

(i) Operating Leases:
The Company has various operating leases ranging from 1 year to 5 years. The leases are renewable
by mutual consent and contain escalation clause. Rental expenses for operating leases recognised
in the Statement of Profit and Loss for the year is NPR 31,593,735 (Ashad 31, 2076: NPR 29,874,010).

Disclosure in respect of Non-cancellable lease is as given below

There is no non- cancellable lease as such . All the lease (rental agreements) can be cancelled by
serving the notice period as per the agreement.

Future Minimum Lease Payments

Current Year

Previous Year

i) Not Later than 1 year
ii) Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years

ii) Later than 5 years S

(ii) Finance Lease:
The Company does not hold assets under finance leases.

Future Minimum Lease Payments Current Year | Previous Year

i) Not Later than 1 year - -
ii) Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years - -
ii) Later than 5 years - -
Total Future Minimum Lease Payments - -
Less: Effect of Discounting - -
Finance lease liability recognised - -

(b) Leases as Lessor

(i) Operating Lease:
The Company has leased out certain office spaces that are renewable on a periodic basis. Rental
income received during the year in respect of operating lease is NPR 17,030,045 (Ashad 31, 2077
NPR 15,151,967).

The Company building situated at Ward No.11, Thapathali, Kathmandu is 8.5 storied and the
comapny has leased out 4 stories for rental purpose.

Disclosure in respect of Non-cancellable lease is as given below

There is no non- cancellable lease as such. The lease (rental agreement) can be cancelled by
serving the notice period as per the agreement.

Future Minimum Lease Income Current Year | Previous Year

i) Not Later than 1 year - -
ii) Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years - -
iii) Later than 5 years - -
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Shikhar Insurance Company Ltd.

Notes to the Financial Statements
For The Year Ended Ashad 31, 2078 (July 15, 2021)

Fig. in NPR
(ii) Finance Lease:
The Company has not leased out its asset under Finance Lease.
Current Year Previous Year
. Gross Unearned Net Gross Unearned Net
Particulars Investment | Finance Income | Investment | Investment |Finance Income| Investment

i) Not Later than 1 year
ii) Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years
iii) Later than 5 years

Total

54 Capital Commitments

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed and not provided for: No capital Commitments has

been made

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Intangible Assets

Property, Plant and Equipment
Investment Properties

Total

55 Contingent Liabilities

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Claims against Company not acknowledged as debts
a) Income Tax

b) Indirect Taxes

c) Other

Total

100,226,142 18,306,513
15,065,942 -
115,292,084 18,306,513

56 Events occuring after Balance Sheet
N/A

57 Assets Pledged as Security
The carrying amount of assets pledged as security are:

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Reinsurance Receivables
Investments in equity

Fixed Deposits 60,500,000.00 -
Property, plant and equipment 556,724,000 542,628,000
Others - -
Total 617,224,000 542,628,000
58 Miscellaneous

(i) Allamounts are in Nepalese Rupees unless otherwise stated.

(ii) All figures are in the Nearest Rupee & Rounded off.
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Shikhar Insurance Company Ltd.

Annexure Il

Minimum Disclosure in Management Report
(Year Ended Upto Ashadh 31, 2078)

A. Information related to Non Life Insurer

Under this title following matters shall be disclosed

1. Date of establishment: 2061/02/15

2. Insurer licence date: 2061/07/26

3. Insurance business type, nature: Non-life Insurance Business
4. Date of commencement of business: 2061/08/02
5

Other matters which insurer wish to include: Not available

B. Insurer's Board of Directors shall approve following matters

1. Validity of license issued by Beema Samiti to carry insurance business is validated.

2. Tax, service charges, fine and penalties to be paid under laws & regulation is paid and no any dues
remains.

3. Share structure and changes if any in line with prevailing laws & regulation is made.
4. Solvency ratio as prescribed by Beema Samiti is maintained.
5. a) Assets that financial amount contained in SOFP are not overstated than it's fair value.
b) The assets recognized in financial statements is based upon expert's advice.
6. Investment made are in line with prevailing laws.
7.  Number of claim settled within the year is 14,470 and number of outstanding claim is 15,312.

8. The provision of Insurance Act 2049, Insurance Regulation 2049, Company Act 2063, NFRSs and
other prevailing laws & regulation to which insurer shall adhere to is complied.

9. Appropriate accounting policy has been consistently adopted.
10. Financial Position and Financial Performance are presented true & fairly.

11. Board of Directors have implemented adequate and appropriate provision to safeguard the assets and
for identification and mitigation against losses due to fraud, embezzlement and irregularities.

12. Financial Statements have been prepared based on going concern basis.
13. The internal control system is commensurate with the size, nature & volume of the insurer's business.

14. Any transactions contrary to Insurance Act, 2049, Companies Act, 2063, related regulations and
directions with any person, firm, company and insurer's director or with any entity in which insurer's
director has interest has not been conducted.

15. Theres is no any penalties, levied by Beema Samiti for the financial year 2077-78.

16. Other disclosure which is deemed appropriate by management:Not Available
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Shikhar Insurance Company Ltd.

Annexure Il
Major Financial Indicator

Fiscal Year
S.N. | Particular Indicators| 2077/78 2076/77 2075/76 2074175 2073/74
1| Networth NRs. 3,843,602,198 | 3,322,862,901 | 2,709,939,515| 2,282,547,821(1,801,216,562
2 | Number of Shares Number 17,585,240 10,573,106 10,573,106 10,573,106 | 8,176,683
3 | Book value per shares NRs. 219 314 256 216 220
4 | Net Profit NRs. 311,987,941 | 409,258,334 | 402,574,306 | 455,577,921 | 334,545,093
5 | Earning per Shares (EPS) NRs. 18 39 38 43 4
6 | Dividend per Shares (DPS) NRs. - - - 24 39
7 | Market Price per Shares (MPPS) NRs. 1,952 1,019 771 985 1,941
8 | Price Earning Ratio Ratio 10 26 20 23 47
9 | Return on Equity % 6.90% 13.91% 0.80% -5.82% -0.17%
10 | Return on Investment % 1.916% 2.231% 2.23% 9.21% 7.16%
11 | Loss Ratio {(Claim Paid + change in reserve)/
(Net Written Premium)} % 79.51% 65.12% 77.23% 61.81% 66.17%
12 | Expense Ratio (Underwriting Expense including
Commission/Net Written Premium) % 11.74% 5.07% 2.96% 2.30% 2.76%
11 | Combined Ratio (Loss Ratio + Expense Ratio)' % 91.25% 70.19% 80.19% 64.10% 68.93%
13 | Net Insurance Premium/ Gross Insurance Premium % 30.76% 36.53% 43.21% 47.11% 51.56%
14 | Net Profit/ Gross Insurance Premium % 8.31% 12.38% 11.94% 13.65% 12.19%
15 | Gross Insurance Premium/ Total Assets % 39.49% 40.82% 45.85% 62.66% 42.55%
16 | Investment & loan income/
Total investment & loan amount % 7.56% 8.78% 8.97% 8.33% 6.04%
17 | Reinsurance commission/ Gross Reinsurance Premium % 19.16% 25.68% 27.95% 20.37% 20.51%
18 | Management expenses/ Gross Insurance Premium % 16.82% 18.07% 16.69% 11.05% 10.66%
19 | Agent Related Expenses/ Gross Insurance Premium % 0.92% 0.91% 1.01% 0.91% 0.84%
20 | Number of Agents Numbers 143 131 95 75 64
21 | Number of Branch and Sub-Branch Numbers 106 103 103 87 54
22 | Employee expenses/ Management expenses % 64.59% 66.65% 67.33% 57.38% 59.55%
23 | Employee expenses/ Employee numbers 659,027 656,090 620,963 391,952 452,732
24 | Outstanding Claim Expenses/ Claim Paid % 52.37% 51.52% 45.80% 56.63% 77.88%
25 | Outstanding Claim Number/ Number of Claim Paid % 105.82% 21.99% 26.34% 56.94% 57.41%
26 | Total Number of Existing Insurance Policies Numbers 342,557 326,032 346,455 302,434 265,541
27 | Renewed Insurance Policy/
Total Insurance Policies last year % 26.85% 17.97% 21.48% 20.14% 19.69%
28 | Number of Claim Insurance Policies/ Total Number of
Policy Outstanding % 1.53% 1.70% 1.27% 1.74% 1.98%
29 | Technical Provisions/ Total Equity % 28.43% 31.55% 43.75% 59.49% 69.48%
30 | Gross Premium/ Owner Equity % 97.67% 99.48% 124.40% 146.19% 152.40%
31 | Net Premium/ Equity % 30.04% 36.34% 53.75% 69.75% 78.57%
32 | Insurable Debt/ Total Equity % 20.55% 36.54% 35.08% 44.88% 41.34%
33 | Net Premium Growth Rate % -4.39% -17.09% -8.50% 12.49% 37.00%
34 | Change in Gross Written Premium % 113.57% 98.06% 101.03% 121.56% 136.93%
35 | Cession Ratio % 69.24% 63.47% 56.79% 52.29% 48.44%
36 | Net Technical Reserve/ Average of Net Claim Paid for
Last 3 Years % 278.68% 49.30% 79.25% 119.58% 182.63%
37 | Liquidity Ratio % 70.69% 112.07% 89.36% 56.69% 58.00%
38 | Affiliate Ratio % 1.37% 2.39% 11.21% 8.38% 9.13%
39 | (Unquoted Equities + Debtors)/ Net Total Assets % 1.78% 1.12% 1.10% 4.58% 2.93%
40 | Solvency Margin % 4.30% 6.80% 5.32% 1.75% 5.09%
41 | Change in Equity % 15.67% 22.62% 18.72% 26.72% 22.05%
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B.K. AGRAWAL & CO. Saraswati Vatika

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS ; 'ffwzﬁa Mr;rg.
iral - wa 0.
MEMBER CROWE GLOBAL P.O. Box 3761, Kathmandu, Nepal.

T: +977-1-4581865, 4567694, 4567568
E: bkag@crowe.com.np
W: www.crowe.com/np
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B.K. Agrawal & Co.

Chartered Accountants
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feqr gwfde® aredia® [HTHF (tangible items) AT AFITAEE &4 TAATs IATET a1 FaT ATl
TH, ATATs ATSTHT (69, a7 YA ILeAHT AT FART T [ASUH §7a T U ATMGH TUHTaT
ST AATTRT ATNT FANT TR AT TRUHT g |

T AT T TGS, T ATA T Aihes; | TRARTHT FFIATA AeA07 Tk o grafdes Taa
STEaTe AfTHT AT IUATHT AT TRUH T |

ferr grafdesdrs aaAT FAaEATaF TS AN ATH G0 Goars qarEaer T fer et
ST T ARTH G |

rfaere AT greq T Afbd ATidd AIFET TRl d97 A1 G¥rael daETdarg geaqa
T JTOF TH Gl ATARAT [ rIfaep! ANTaeTs Grraehl STHT Gfe=rd MRS 3 |

feaz grafamrta qeqe=ma quHT @deedrs GrAfaEl qfe=rT T ATIEUE g7 TH ATTITHAT AT
Frafae! T afeard =g | FFEIAT G T ATaead ATI8Ug I 79 &l @udrs HHd
qAT ITAR G Gl ATRT JAT AT [EATaHT F@Tgeh TRUH 3 |

3. FW wegl Alfd
2 AT qeafdel IATar gata i gorreinra fafvare § era 81 | e e afg=r
T Afer g feur aEafaers gETgs TUAT STHEET MRUH G | AT (CAT FETae] FeAHT qHraT
T 99 aTedh Tod® AATIR] g9 @ocAls el auh AR AT [Edradl d@rgsd g |
e Ui TR SERATIRT AT e YART T 9 w1 ¥ feafqar e q=res v gudnT ang
U qfg 2T HEMHN TUET T TR | FFIAH] (€I ArATqeed] SqaeqTaael JTATT THl aedide

STATRTAT AT (Effective Useful Life)T ATITRHT 8T Fedlay (MR T Teal gT9 JUCTh! HTRHAT
BT ST @IS T A qqerwad TUH 3 |

8. USiiga quiRe Grultee qrawdl qars At
%.90,000 W& FH HeAH! THAATE GG TRUF THAAT @ A@IFA T AT @l g |

Y. 3BT AAEAT A\feT

IDE TR
ATTHY GAAT TG qUH! FT, T & qT AGTINTE ¥ Eafedd HY FMAAGRT Aeizor aiewer
Jq ATAH FHTAL T, |

ad BT
FHHIA ATARL UA, 045 TIT TAIATT ATTR UFHT AURT TR ATTTHAT A6 ATTRT sqaer
TRTeRT g | AT foxir [qaRoraT Jeor@ TRUHT &2, BT q@TIRE q97 ATdd AT BATATATE
famer RS FR A= TF g dHG |

VI B

faira faerer AaRe! TFId qoT aMacad] THH TIT HIH ATRET Bk A5 ST & ATl
#=IY (Temporary Difference) T RIS HITHT HSTAT & Y IMIcd qAT FFATTR! T el LA
TR FIH] QT3 TRUH G | TIF HT ¥ q9T IMIcd AT T ATV S aTHT 2T
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AR AT g FFg Flal qUH! AT UAGRT AN 9 Febehl H¥ehl a2 AT BTAH] HIehl & AR
B STHIT TRUHT G | WY T FR GRS AEASH b 2 4 o9 fafia wg 3w
I ATTHT GHTATS T G ATA T @3 MRS G | 9T @A (Afdse T g
faefrar faamurar 2o FeaArs S gEqa THO quar 9t a9 A faaverar s #w gt
qIT TEATE FHATATSTT T AT GHTT Aid SETZTHT 3 |

§. TG qETSH A
AT AT AABTAT TAT ETBTATT LAl [HET, RPN qREANIAE® 998, (g, ATHES
HIIH] AT T TS FLITRT STATAT TRUH TN AT TESHA |

AR (HITEFA gROT 9 T9fq® I¢9d Aled TRUST dHEE (79T GRHREH Tadqaa a HaT
AT YA ATHRB! STATAT IT HUTTHT TRUH AT AT TS A@THTT THITH AT HoAH]
s a9 vEH (fafrae) qar ot W ge (fewhrsve) ATE ANTAR! AFH qHAL/ FHAS T
@IS T TTHHIT TS IUHAT fafer (effective interest method) T STATRAT AT ATEETHT @IS
THIH qTagTT @ g9 ATHT iAfael HEeaawii® 9T ARERE Faq9q a1 HGF a7 797
TAIHRH STATT YT HOTTHT TRUH TS Afhd Hed a1 TR Hed W S[H Ul g Alal Tl
@IS TRUHT G | TR AT Hedl AT R Hed Gl HUHT AT A&l IThHATS AIR! FaTd
AT FIer@d T TRTH G |

afeder [AfHeE FFIAT STRT Tl HITAEEHH] AMMAT A@TFT IR HAR! ATIRHT TRTH B | WA
Hed AT IR Hed H HUH] FH TUH IHHG] a4l T4 Ad (a0 B |

AT AIATTRT (e SHINSTH ik HFIATRl SRET TSR HeAHT TUH! TRATTAR] R oIl
AU ATHATS @IS TETET G |

Sep e faxiTa S=ATehT gl (MErdsT b AHIes Arar THAAT I@ISUH B | TY Al AR
TG GHTAT 915 Bl BRI Thlel Rl & AGRdT T THUHT FXAT AT FRTaThT a7
T fafd fauer g )

9. WEE Ueag QHIATSH i
fareeft Hamar T2 Twia o SfcrEETs auTTHT el (AT HT GRS SYATHT TR0 TRTHT
T | FFIArS faaeft war ur fafq ar goroewr fafaar #eom wear fafrwg wersg smaw /e dErse
Teudr B) faq faq 9 AUAT qURT AAHT FEAH TWh [ATHT TR ATIRHAT kb I ST IhHATS
fafrgzar AreT a1 Jre feareE arsT Aifa dadET TiRus g |

T. dWTYeEh STGTHT qETsa A
AT ok ATRRTAT ST UA, 16T Afael (3T aHIiT® T8 qiiaerl aremeer atet fafq fager
B, S AU AGTH FHITH &7 | ¢ dTHT ek ATRTAT 797G T FAfq sTwaT AT 9o SRt
T fafe ofig oAt afger fafqar ook s arer Sifq faguar = )

JAETHT FHR T AT 9T g ATHT ok AR @igehd GEATar Accrual STATRHT TRTHT B |
AT 9o Ueh AUHRT FGl AATIR] AN THHSE Yo HUHT ST Aataerl afedl auHd g A
STHITeF ATRATHT ATl T TEehl YA g URISl @IaTHT AMGUeT 3 |

RIS WIATHT AMGUHT THHATE TGt qTeEHT STHT ATl THIINTF EIH STHT e ATFTAT

i AT Tl F |
@Shikhar
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B. UASTAT SRV STt qarse st
TAATHT FHFIAETE I FHTAATS A8 T a7 ATAT FFIATee GHAT YTehl ATRHT A=A
W‘Tﬁ'@ﬁalProfitcommissionﬂmmwm WE‘TWT{F{@
Y & I a7 qAaET HEAare GHAT YTqehl ATIRHAT ARl @IS TS 3 |

90. 31T ST QWS =it

ATHTI 3TRr

IR AATHIETE YTl g ART& ATHIST |1 AT IT & ATIehR T1aa 9Udhe, J@rsd 1 | @ie
TR FHAHT G gHAAT Al ATRTAE ST TRH] ATTATS @ve qHqahl Afa a1 qigew
ATATYT AT GEATIT F(&ATS TG ANTAH] FTAATD TTHT @3 Mg | @E THTH! AT a1
qigebT TSI T GEATIT FISHATE TUAT ITh ATHITETS TR ATRRTHIH] STH @3 T |

TIE AT AlTH FIHT F FHadl T THTAT g HUHA TG ATHIT ATS AT FLbadl TRT
TEEATT ATehl Taehl THHBT ATARHT @I TRTH G |

9 TR GO S AT YT g AR T TUATI AT TS 6T or@Tse A |

grufeet forpiare WosT an/ gt
feoe Feafael FERT/ SAqer@ Tl BROT TUHT A9 T BTHATS A1 ATa@T T FHIHT ART a7
ATFATAHAT FHTALT TR | ATH TAT STHIeh! T01 A FFarael aidre 9Tt @3 T6H a4dr fearar
e et faeaarars fog femg |

I AT @IFT 9T @A ATHR GIEHTEl ATIRHAT (Accrual Basis) TTRUHT & |

AT afafaer fMae®r dfaaaT @0 @, A0 AT dIATE qUH AAATS AT A1 F. AT TAF
ATHT HFATIHRT AR AT FHIATH! TA THRT ATATG FATAERT 72 T (Net Worth) ATE ATHT AT
fEqTearet AR AT GEAteId SHT SAFITIE] AT T [EHIEAT T ATRT AT [§qradr aigwie T
AT T G |

99. HAT AQTSA el
FHIHIERT FHAT (GG TANTH qIT ATl AAae 0T THIHT AThaAITTH hHANERdTs
FHAT T TS, |

9Q. SAATUTUT @ AfSHIS aifer
ST afafaer e ATaRaT SHaegIT @<l 90 e Ty ATRT ArrT fegedr @v g@rg
ATehT THHATS FFatedd AT AR TAET ATHTICHHT ATTRAT BT Fel T & AT ThHAATS
TG ATHT AAFTIRT AR ATHT G STHT FATAIERT AT AT [EGIAT JIEHhTe T9 A el 3 |

3. AT g HTRET S QETEe i
FEIATS STl ST TTOT &l STHTe STHINTH qehTeT T T YA T97 I 14T el AT
AALAF TRIAY TAT AT Gl AT T @3 TRTHN G | T ATHBH! TR AT FHARA
TYRT FTHET TRATHE T o= G ATTART THH THTIT TR ST |

@Shikhar
nsurance

Happysarance |q3€£



98. AT gTET STUd TR SR WETE wif
T AIATEEr, 0% FHITH ATGF TUHI AqHT TR g ATl Taehl IrAT aTqd adcd Faedl
gz fae AT arell AN 94 Tqerae TRUH 3 |

Y. §g ATRT afSwTE st
ATRT ATFT [EdaeTe ATCH @3 ATHTATE T F SISl (Deferred Tax Reserve) aTdad! IHH
FHTATSTA TR ATHT TEHT THHBT YO FIAeTd ThH ATHT ATATTeR! (M9 awItsTH =[<hT qSirehl 7oA
FRTEAR TATIFY ATHT HITHAT STEAT TH AT IERT B | TAE [BaTehr ST HITAT 1 297 fearaane
AT AR AAITTHT T ATFATT ATTHT T HITHT T SRTATEH] THH MG ATSHIS TR G |
ATHIHT %O FfTTT TFH ATSHIGH AN SUAS ThH AT ATRT AT fedra@r sHe g |

9§, HHART @
FEAT FHATNEEATE YT TLHl JaAT AT9d AL I Fel [{aHepT aedre FHATT @= HiTwe
S |
FHHATT GHT 8T THTHHT TGS
(F) ATFIET FHART Goews, STl qod, 9T, foar araaer afadfd
(@) Farere Hga Fudtg Tl g1 IR, Fo9d F9 AlfE; T

HAFTAT FHAT GeAh] @3 FHATRIA AT JETF T TEATT AT FaAT TIF TehT HROT aAfqafa
(qTiTte) 9T T Afge fSTT 9T Te= WS |

(&A1 79T UdlE qHTET g7 @l Jd@rgd FHEARG 94T 989 IWE FRU Al afqdfaes (
IR T T ATTFREDT (s qTAT T |

FHART o ATEAT

AR AFAT [EHE ATAR] HY ATTB] @& ATHIE 10% THH HHEA AH SAIqb] ATLAT T
Al

FHHANT fagr amuaer e

FHAT [aaT ATIAHRT @ (98T ATId qRTT g Alqdidq g1 T AT HFIAehl Tl [aaHTEe aHimeTH
FHARIEwATS ATt o7 faar, farmdr faar araaq yam 78w afadfd < |

IUGTH qAT o= DTS
qAtd S9 U [HER0r Tl TG THITH FYSTH, qIT Fo9g HhIUh FaedT THTH o |

FEAE (ATAT STHT =9 BT GT9dHT SMAcags (MaTeh] AT ThH STFAT e ATSeH @ | AT
ATEE et ARTET AT (Defined Contribution Plan) &7 ¥ JFHT FFIATH! I, HITHT ARTETAHT
AT TEATT TRl Al geqvq AT fqiAa &= |

FFIATR] T [ATIHTEATHT HUH AT THITH FHANEE IIdH] JTEH, T 5 HITH
T TOMET LT GTebebl ATIR (accrual basis) AT ATHRT AT EATEHT @9 ATGUH G | G HY
FTIART FTH Fedh HieaT FaT T | I argard (Giaaed IIE aradel aided Frasadr
T RN ATT® FUET Afedd AIEATHT BRRRE TRUHT G | IR S0 aTTdRT THH AR
AT HITRT FIETT HITHT TNGAT TRTH 3, |

99, VHRUG HTHHT AGEAT Hfer TAT HUAEH & AQTEH Al
F GEITAHT FFATEr AeAH=aT J9d S g Hed FH AU FROS g TUHT ETHT a1 FH HIAT
AT A& & TTHT BT &7F ATIh] ATFITH] STHT ATHT-A T [EETeAT a@rsg= g |
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QTFTEAE ATATH, @IS A qIT U b qgT faeiid FLATE®HT HUhT AISIIqATS AT AT
AT T ATHRT A [E@Te =aid @=|T @IS T AId HEIAT IR B | ITh AT
TRTERT THH YT TUHT Yo TURT ATTIF TUAT AR d@rsd T 3 |

fardroe sISTeHT g AIH] GFHT, Fe ATHIH] ARTART [adqras aeRare ddqa T4 Ficb
TFH FHH G SMGUAT &F ATId AR AT T T35, | [aarad aeAT ARaeqdl FRIEr
@WTI’-ﬁ'ob‘f%‘oh‘HT, Wﬁﬂ'ﬁﬁ-{m(recoverable amount)ﬁmﬁwm
ATIRHT TG, | &7 AT AR AaedT (Al Hed YT g9 dd Hedwwal d¢l JUh aad
feo T |

[T STATHT ATIRHAT (equity basis) AR =g | AL (AR AUHI AFHA T AlhT THH
TR AT Aval HH TURT ATEITH], &7 AT FTLT T, |

9T, T dAifae®

AT WIREH SIST (Unexpired Risk Reserves):

AT e, 0%, FMaT QU@) e FFIHT T, AEiEer, HieY, gieiaies, gars | B qar
fafqer raT 9% @3 AT qob ATRHIFT LO0% THH AGATT SMGH SHISTHT IWILTH B | TG
e TRUET THAATE Ufgect A1fdeh TUaT AT FTATSUHT & | a2 ATHEE STHTHT AT T8
LT TRTHT THAATS 3 TY UFSFT SAMIF THAT AR TATGTH G |

T B

Jrar afafaer fader aEifss goies fefamsr dmmer anfn ggrgg S #19 T 9 grEae g )
ATRT ATFITAATE ATTH GE ATRIATE TR HINUH F ATAAH] THH el T STSl ATIT L0% ITHHATS
gk foRfaHeT STHT HTTHT qIfeU FHITTH Sighic MRTH F |

AgTfaufa SOrET @IS

T grafaare ST ML THITTH SIShIgHT AT ITasd THTH! 0% HETaqrd el HroH
AT TRTHT G | T AU ST FITHT SALAT TRUHT THHATs qHH, ATerqrasl, STl
HeTiqutdere oI g a1 HeAEHT START T T |
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rEaw s svaer fafes
G- 9%
facfiar fa—urewr wrafud wET wrri Rt

FRTfaa gTidcage

9.9 TTAT ar HThTT g dTehl Qorteit
FEITRT <[ehT a1 ARTAT & STl ST BT |

9.9 wMfa ufaagar (Underwriting Commitments)
FFIAIT FHAA (RaHPT T Ffqagar (Underwriting Commitments) STTET <! & |

9.3 AW A Wl ARBAIE AHBHIUY GIET URHT X SAGA gIdcd TAIBIY TR gIiered
AR

9.8 ST HwRId Hegl dTedaTe [qTUaT JRUer
FFIAT STHTCRG ST el T8 e Ui {epfawepr Tamevdy fauar & |

9.y I FRITaa qTfIcage
ATF.R0%Y /&Y, J0TY /%%, 085 /%9 R0%9/%5 ¥ ATF. R08319¥ F Fefifad #X fAaiorare
AT HL [HEROr T 97 6 FoaT ARETHT &, qY,R3,053.%% &1 g% AT To1ed faamrar
qeRTaATRR AT (e fegusrar Gt faaea favmmar faamafas @ s s fagre
TR IT F JAT ARATAT AFATTIT IR TTAT TEhT G |

foTa quEES AATT T A FHATA T TH qTAT HeATSHAS! ATIRHT FTATAT JTaT (&0
TRTHT G | AT (HATHEAT, 0¥, & FAET AT Flod TRUHT FTe bl ATHTAT QAEHT FFIAIH]
HITRT 94% o & AT THH ITEl ATId AT TRTH G, |

graferT Hifvaar qur faamee
FFIATRT FEITHT B qf A q47 fqaraes S gad |

. Ut wfrgar: T |

TR wrafeu @fvg faht TRbaEesr g
give TRUHT rafced! T@iies g THUH ¢ G |
fershT TfvuerT Treferert SRRl 9T § TEHE G |

T TEHLT ARGHT Tt dur fashr T TRt foger wemEier faemor

FEHT TRYSHT TTiEEa! fqaRuT

faaRur IEA T
AT BB HITTH -
IfoTSg Sehepl T q05,%5,000.00
FfoTes SehebT HEdT e ¥3¥,000,000,00
ferepTer SfepepT HeelT farT %% 400,000,00
ERIRICEICI I CRIRE ] 3,000,000,00
qfeeter HFIATRT SR R%¥,2%9,93%.00
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et WA iRt WosT Tt

feraror T T
9T TIREh] HITqT 30,000,000.00
IR Wﬁ{w 5¥<% 000 00
TS ST Hear fagm ¥%¥,390,000.00
fererar SrepepT el e £9,4.00,000,00
foreiTa Eearehl Hgal [Herd 95,000,000.00
afeder FHFIIRl AT 95, ¥Y R, ¥ ¥%. 00
v. ¥ fewe framw

aiforsy &, faerrd e quT (aTT GEATEEAT T Sb HISATd FFIATh] EHTTET (HeATT TEaehehl
T qrE(ea HEAEEdTe Hisard aHIT 97 Y SE@bdl @ |

¢ umdiwer feame fram
qAEHEET faq 7 faq atdr feama awamaen anfds a9 2008/ v qTaTE WA GEHET qHEH 97
I % ATAYAF FHAST TRIFEH G |

B, ot fagymet ufuresr
I TR AT AT AT Tebebl JUG fGAaRAT T FATH AT AT TF FFIwTS TLHI
T gafera Srar U, fqamaer qar S gtafaer (e aaifay e @ | AT 93 adr
AT IS SFFN UG (STFaRAT AT AT IHHATS STHT FTAITHRT (A9 THITH a0 Seher
Hedl Haqs T =T TRuw F |

0. Tt fth T FRER
A afafagrr ST FeanTa qema e (el auEitaw aifdes av 0991es |1 FEATaE a9
FEATThgEd] ATATT G GEIAT % qi TAT AT ST TR ST |

AT TP HERAEEATS JaTT TR Ffen

FATAF AR TIIEEATs AT, 209910 AT HRTAN TXUH THH T Geehl [qa30

faaRuT IEH 3.
GETA HHTTHR! d5h Wl 3,4 ¥%,000
TATAF ATAITRT TSH T 933,559
o= QTHTaH S3F AT q,4%%,000
a=1 giafasr Jo& @ ¥00 YR

AT a9 2009195 AT FEIHIH THG FTAEN ARTETATS FA 5. 99, ¥ 3% Q3% W] TRTH 3 |
THE FIFE AR qTeF T Taahes dT5 £ & 9Y 32,20 AT TRTH § | I THAAT
AT TAe JAT AT ATY T 9T, g ATIAHN T THET 3 |

[lagr a1 ST Fladr 941 T 3a giadgr GHA J&E TRUH G |
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9.

N.

a.

3.

V.

&.

0.

.

Q.

el STET TFUTeT YRETUTAT Gol Ufel RUTeT foar, Ik aerr sivfercar

FFIATA ATAGSAHT AT AT SFheeehl HEdl ATTee® qdT HFIAHT ST q97 qa7 ferdt afa
HAFINAT HT e TR B, | I TTFIAT HOT AT [l &.5,59Y, ¥ IR TS Godrs ATTIH
g9 A= FHTALT TRTHR B |

A% BT AT YHTUTUS UTGT LT AT.d. T Il =TT WATUT U g0 afehl STd. T 67 qraeed
faavuTeT T SiftreeT ST EFEHT BT FRIAET AT AU GTel URST T AW 3TT.a.AT HThTel HUET IHH
FFIAIH]  FT FT THT THIT T I AETHH G |

firat IR dmyeseT afvATOT T HROT
TG AT AT FFA B, % 3,3%%,00% AT Ao (AF FRUEES TaT fRam Tl g |

. [atHTR! AARGHT STHS THH TTSUH

FERT SAHTAE AR g TR

FFYET GUTATGRT BRI SHE ST g TRl
T 7 g TR

AHTCGHT T89 TRUH FGH BT

@ 9 4 4

UG g afch! EeiehT feamoT
ATGT & Sl Gof ATTH |

AT OSft 7edr TR HTRTet WK (Paid in advance), HTRTHY UTGT g @TaT (Calls in arrears) ¥ WU
AR a3 U forsawe aofvgat JaeT faavor

ARTH STRTAT YT, ShTAT 9Tl g %l (Calls in arrears) ¥ ST TRUHT qX I [SRILTT ARTRT
IR : AHTH |

ot gieg wFufa T ST SUeEs (Amortization) TFIeT feraRuT
FEIHIHT (ot Eleg THTT : S |

AATA ATERDT HRIERDT [qawor
FFIATS a9 AHT ATATT ATfeTebT F G FeBaHepT FRER THT S |

SifercaT g WRfeud Eeigwd! faavuT
FEIAD] Aol a T AT He @o AH] |

HADBY T VWA BT
ATRT AT [EdTeaAT IS Y GaawEiy [Favor MEaHiTy EH 3
faavor IEH .
AT AR AT G 9%, ¥3%, 049
fara s @ afaw = aEradeTEare
e wikuedr a7 w g+ 3¥R,393
ST Y ae 98B, 995,368
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095 FER 3 T AFIEAT =TT 9T T FT FH /ATl (qaR0r (H=Er g |

W $Y qRIA T qiiica feamur ¥ dieg | aw e avfer | st disgra
JIETH qar faeT araq srar 95,0%¥9 %09 4,903, ¥R¥ 92,949,039
S LI EEDI ,4R9¥%R R,RG¥ %00 5,59%,9%%
TS HOTITAHT TR %35,99% 0 ?35,99%
e wata amaa -50Y¥ T4V 953,3%0 -%RR,30
STHAT 38,68b,983 8,990,3%9 AT, T, 998
0. fafawr srmamt
fafaer smamdT s=aeia aTell qoT F AT JFEE arIad! fAaad TEH HEET g |
. I
®. JEx OSh

FEIATRT T FAT IET ATMh AR GATEE 0T AUGHITSTH 099 AU Tl T HraH
IR YSITAT 3.9 JIqerd AT AIEhie TRUH ZPhYE UAT =T HIAH &9 AT GHMHET 30,981
gfqeTaerT TR 359,559,939 & AHT 9TAR TR ATATE qTed AURMHT ATIRI FHTERT (707
FATTH FFF qa¥ faqeer el Gfvgd Taver gFAT HTidedr AfTeed! dFHT qRurd T+ T &l
Tl IR AT HTAH e T ST GSI qoT =T I Fargd T [ 90 FHifTd ae=d
IR faarur et @fved SraRdrs Aifucar SfeHT givurd T YRATTE SR qAT AAATRIT 9Ta%eh!
A AT HIAH I 99 & 3,339,003 H AT A (a0 TRUH G | Ih 99 qAF
STATHT T ATYA ¥, F(TTT THH THT THTATAT T & THH & 2 ¥U3 R0 a5 Aferedd] Tl
ATRT FeRT fEdTe TR €309 ¥R % 3R W FHadl T AT FURl ATHT AT [Earadr qrivwasr
S |

FFIATERT TTfF TThT ToiT %.9,049,390,500 TEHMT FFIAH! Q¥ AT ATt ATemer Furept o
FHITTH ST TR 30 gfqerd gebye SR q9T FATh] T=0 T GEl ATl TR G
for seife® STy IRUST A9 SR 99T FFEIATRT TAhT O8I .9, 945, 4R 000 HTAH TTH
3 |

FEIHTERT =T A1 ATIROT FATHT (A0 STHITTH ST TRUHT FhIE AT HAwaiiel ardl AT
FHYE STUTATS [TeATH TQTaaae [l T U WUehl ATk T 6,94, KR %3 18 9o fufaas
YT ST ) |

9. HRET dHT

FRIAT AT AT AwId FFIA AT, 09905 HT e .90,2%9,4000 AhIAT TRUH 7 |
TUTA XHRFT TEHTHT SHT JIATTSTE AT TRURT HRAT ATHT HIIGUE qIT SMAT AiFfdqene
ST = IS FHISTH FFU[ SAHT FFIAEware Sl MRTHT FRIAT ATHT FAIAR] FRIA]
AT TEATHT T FFIAEEE] AMAAH] 5,900 FIE, TUTA A FFIAH] AAEHT &, 00
FE AT FATTHT FTAEHT 900 FE T AAUMSHT YO FS ATHT FFIHIE®R Headra
TASTHIT ATE HEH T Fldbl Tehl ThH TUTA GIHRA dald AT T FHINTH HIRIAT STHT
TET A=A FFIAD] FHA IR THH TIH 400 FIASHT ¥ FIE T Helaura SRrerare e
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THH AT €.39,33% U3IR T THEAT %.9933Q U3R TEH g | arA7 afafqare S ol awifes
FIAT ATHT ITATRT AT FETTaara TRISTeTe SARTNUHT %.39 333 Y3 THTATg dtad ATHRTHT
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B.K. AGRAWAL & CO. Saraswati Vatika

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS ;'_zfzips;r\;n:ta Mr;rg.
iral - wa 0.
MEMBER CROWE GLOBAL P.O. Box 3761, Kathmandu, Nepal.

T: +977-1-4581865, 4567694, 4567568
E: bkag@crowe.com.np
W: www.crowe.com/np

Independent Auditors’ Report to the Members of
Shikhar Insurance Company Limited

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Financial Statements of M/s Shikhar Insurance Company Limited (hereinafter
referred to as ‘the Company’) which comprise the Statement of Financial Position as at Ashad 32, 2079 (July 16, 2022),
and the Statement of Profit or Loss, Statement of Comprehensive Income, Statement of Changes in Equity and Statement
of Cash Flows attached thereto, for the year then ended and notes to the financial statements, including a summary
of Significant Accounting Policies and other Explanatory Notes & information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid Financial
Statement read together with Notes forming part of the financial statement presents fairly, in all material respects, the
Financial Position of the company as at Ashad 32, 2079 (July 16, 2022), and its Financial Performance, Changes in
Equity, Cash Flow for the year then ended and a Summary of Significant Accounting Policies and Other Explanatory
Information in accordance with Nepal Financial Reporting Standards (NFRSs) and comply with Companies Act, 2063
and Insurance Act, 2079.

Basis of Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Nepal Standards on Auditing (NSAs) issued by the Auditing Standard Board
of Nepal. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Financial Statement section of our report. We are independent of the Entity in accordance with the Code of Ethics
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Nepal together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to
our audit of the Financial Statement, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with those
requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in the audit of the
financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of the audit of the financial
statements, as a whole and in forming our opinion thereon, we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our report.

S.N. Key Audit Matters How the matters were addressed in our Audit

1. Revenue Recognition (Premium Income) Our audit procedures on recognition of premium income

Premium income comprises major part of | included:
revenue which is recorded on issue of the policy | 1. Obtaining clear understanding of the process of issuing

as prescribed by the directives of Nepal the policies as per directives issued by the Nepal Insurance
Insurance Authority. Unearned premium income Authority and understanding the process of booking such
is recorded/adjusted as estimated by actuarial income.

valuation report. Estimation of income can be | 5
right only if the factors involved are incorporated
in the system and extracted correctly from the
system.

. Tested the design, implementation, and operating
effectiveness of key controls over revenue recognition.

3. Verified underwriting documents and premium calculation
thereon as per regulatory requirements and internal
policies of the company on sample basis along with
premium receipt, verified premium ceded as per
Reinsurance agreement/treaty with Rei rers.

4. Verified unearned premium income 2%
appointed actuary in his actuarial '

Our results:
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S.N.

Key Audit Matters

How the matters were addressed in our Audit

2.

Insurance Claim
Insurance claim is the major area of expense
for the insurance companies.

Total Claim incurred include paid claim,
outstanding claim and claim Incurred but Not
(Enough) Reported IBN(E)R,

The provision and payment of claims was one
of the areas which required significant auditor
attention and one of the matters of most
significance in financial statement.

Our Audit procedures on insurance claim Included:

1.

Obtaining clear understanding of the process/ guidelines
as per directives Issued by the Nepal Insurance Authority
for processing claim as well Internal operational guidelines
relating to claim processing.

Performed test of controls, test of details and analytical
review procedures on outstanding claims.

Verified the claim paid and provision on sample basis
with proof for payment, documentation as well as surveyor
report and understanding the process of accounting.

In case of IBN(E)R, these provisions have been captured
by the Actuary appointed by the company. The actuarial
valuation of liability in respect of IBNR and IBN(E)R claims
as at July 16, 2022 is as certified by the company’s
appointed actuary and we had verified the amount and
related liability based on such report.

Our Results:
Based on work carried out as above, we considered the
insurance claim expenses be acceptable.

Valuation of investments at amortized cost
and measured at fair value through PL
Investment of the Company comprises of
investment in quoted /unquoted equity
instruments and fixed deposits of various banks
and financial institutions.

Valuation of the aforesaid securities have been
done in accordance with NAS 39 read with
NFRS 9. The investment in fixed deposit is
recognized at Amortized Cost whereas
investments in equity instruments quoted and
unquoted, are valued at Fair Value through
Profit & Loss on the reporting date.

Given the varieties of treatments recommended
for valuation of investment based on investment
objective targeted by the management, nature
of cash flows, complexity of calculations and
significance of amount involved in such
Investments, thus, we have considered It as a
Key Audit Matter in our audit.

Our Audit procedures on valuation of investment included:

1.

We tested the design, implementation, and operating
effectiveness of key controls over valuation process of
investments.

Review of investments of the company and its valuation
in accordance with NFRS.

Assessment of the business model adopted by the
management and the nature of expected cash flow of
the investments on the basis of available evidence/
circumstances and ensured that classification of
investment is commensurate with nature of cash flows
and management intention of holding the investments.

For the investment’s valuation at amortized cost, we have
verified the Accrued Interest, amortization schedule on
test basis.

For Investments (quoted) valued through PL, we reviewed
the fair value considering the closing price in NEPSE as
on the reporting date.

Our Results:

Based on work carried out as above, we considered the
valuation of Investments at amortized cost and measured at
fair value to be acceptable.

Information Technology Controls

IT controls include recording of transactions,
generating reports in compliance with reporting
requirement of Nepal Insurance Authority and
other compliances to regulators is an important
part of the process. Hence the company’s
financial and reporting processes are highly
dependent on the effective working of Core
Insurance Software.

Our Audit procedures on Information Technology
Controls included:

1.

existing in the company.
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S.N. Key Audit Matters How the matters were addressed in our Audit

We have considered this as a key audit matter | 3. Walkthrough of access control of the users.
as any control lapses, validation failures, incorrect
input data and wrong extraction of data may
result in incorrect reporting to the management,
shareholders, and regulators. Our Results:

Based on work carried out as above, we considered the
controls in the Information technology to be acceptable.

4. Reviewing the reports generated by the system on sample
basis.

Information other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

The company's management is responsible for the presentation of the other information. The other information comprises
the information included in the company's Annual Report such as Report of Board of Directors/Chairman's Statement
but does not include the financial statements and our auditor's report thereon. Our opinion on the financial statements
does not cover the other information and accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion or, except as explicitly stated
above, any form of assurance conclusion there on. Our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether, based on audit work done by us on financial statement, the other information therein is materially
misstated or inconsistent with the financial statements

However, we have not received the other information to be part of Annual Report prior to the date of this Auditor's
Report.

Responsibilities of Management and those charged with Governance for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these Financial Statements in accordance with
Nepal Financial Reporting Standard (NFRS), and for such internal control as management determines is necessary
to enable the preparation of the Financial Statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error.

In preparing the Financial Statements, management is responsible for assessing the company’s ability to continue as
a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the company or to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Financial Statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but it is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with NSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these Financial Statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with NSAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

a. ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Financial Statements whether due to fraud, error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting material misstatement resulting from fraud
is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of the internal control.

b. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
company'’s internal control.
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or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditors' report. However, future events or conditions may cause the company to
cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure, and content of the Financial Statements, Including the disclosures,
and whether the Financial Statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves
fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business activities
within Company to express an opinion on the Financial Statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision,
and performance of the audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing
of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during
our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with the relevant ethical
requirement regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationship and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
To the best of our knowledge and according to explanations given to us and from our examination of the books of
account of company, necessary for the purposes of our audit to the extent for the scope of our audit:

a.

Kathmandu
Date: December 15, 2022

We have obtained all the information and explanations along with replies to our queries, which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of the audit.

In our opinion, the financial statements comprising of Statement of Financial Position, Statement of Profit or Loss,
Statement of Comprehensive Income, Statement of Changes in Equity, Statement of Cash Flows prepared in
accordance with the requirements of Companies Act, 2063 and format prescribed by Nepal Insurance Authority
are in agreement with the books of Accounts.

In our opinion, books of accounts and records of the company have been maintained as required by prevailing
laws.

To the best of our information and according to the explanations provided to us and so far, as appeared from the
examination of the books of accounts, we have not come across any cases where Board of Directors or any
employee have acted contrary to the legal provision relating to accounts, or committed any misappropriation or
caused any loss or damage to the company.

We have not come across any fraudulence in the accounts, so far as it appeared from our examination of the books
of accounts.

To the best of our knowledge, Company has maintained Insurance Fund, and other mandatory reserves in line with
directives issued by Nepal Insurance Authority.

We did not obtain any information indicating engagement of the company in activities other than insurance business
as approved/licensed by the Nepal Insurance Authority.

We did not obtain any information indicating company's activities which is prejudicial to the interest of the Insured.
The company has acted as per directives of Nepal Insurance Authority.

We did not obtain any information indicating issuance of insurance policy other than as approved by Nepal Insurance
Authority.

It appears that all the financial and other information/subject matters which is required to be informed to the
shareholders as per prevalent laws has been provided to the shareholders.

To the best of our knowledge, the company is eligible and capable to bear its long-term liabilities from the assets
of the company.

The internal control system implemented by the company is found to be effective.

B.K. Agrawal, FCA ~
Managing Partner
For: B.K. Agrawal & Co.
Chartered Accountants

UDIN: 221216CA00018heRNo

Member Crowe Global
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Shikhar Insurance Company Ltd.

Statement of Financial Position
As at Ashadh 32, 2079 (July 16, 2022)

Fig. in NPR

Current Year

Previous Year

Notes
Assets
Intangible Assets 4
Property, Plant and Equipment 5
Investment Properties 6
Deferred Tax Assets 7
Investment in Subsidiaries 8
Investment in Associates 9
Investments 10
Loans 11
Reinsurance Assets 12
Current Tax Assets (Net) 21
Insurance Receivables 13
Other Assets 14
Other Financial Assets 15
Cash and Cash Equivalents 16
Total Assets
Equity & Liabilities
Equity
Share Capital 17(a)
Share Application Money Pending Allotment 17(b)
Share Premium 17(c)
Insurance Fund 17(d)
Catastrophe Reserves 17(e)
Retained Earnings 17(f)
Other Equity 17(9)
Total Equity
Liabilities
Provisions 18
Gross Insurance Contract Liabilities 19
Deferred Tax Liabilities 7
Insurance Payables 20
Current Tax Liabilities (Net) 21
Loans and Borrowings 22
Other Financial Liabilities 23
Other Liabilities 24
Total Liabilities
Total Equity and Liabilities

996,448
779,675,638

129,355,730

52,951,163
3,986,260,161

4,238,344,516
100,225,081
852,372,326
398,441,460
392,427,477
316,060,603

661,237,904
89,896,106

52,803,602
3,146,686,587

3,721,090,663
65,616,985
789,823,856
371,228,557
256,069,546
352,212,651

11,247,110,603

9,506,666,457

2,286,081,200

160,902,639
1,335,849,418
125,669,741
267,157,106
520,538,676

1,758,524,000

95,712,963
1,210,908,307
110,818,388
186,621,189
481,017,351

4,696,198,780

3,843,602,198

173,804,740
5,397,080,047

245,112,184
200,228,619

200,736,039
333,950,194

120,549,364
4,813,946,717

134,313,375
216,548,738

85,522,830
292,183,235

6,550,911,823

5,663,064,259

11,247,110,603

9,506,666,457

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these Financial Statements.

As per our report on even date

Dip Prakash Panday Ramesh Kumar Luitel Saurav J.B. Rana Rajendra Prasad Shrestha B.K. Agrawal, FCA
Chief Executive Officer Director Director Chairman Managing Partner
B.K. Agrawal & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Suraj Rajbahak Dinesh Bajra Bajracharya Skand Amatya Dr. Shrujana Shrestha
Chief Financial Officer Director Director Director

Kathmandu, Nepal
Date: December 15, 2022
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Shikhar Insurance Company Ltd.

Statement of Profit or Loss

For the Year Ended Ashad 32, 2079 (July 16, 2022)

Fig. in NPR

Current Year

Previous Year

Notes
Income:
Gross Earned Premiums 25
Premiums Ceded 26
Net Earned Premiums 27
Commission Income 28
Investment Income 29
Net Gains/ (Losses) on Fair Value Changes 30
Net Realised Gains/ (Losses) 31
Other Income 32
Total Income
Expenses:
Gross Claims Paid 33
Claims Ceded 34
Gross Change in Contract Liabilities 35(a)
Change in Contract Liabities Ceded to Reinsurers 35(b)
Net Claims Paid
Commission Expenses 36
Service Fees 37
Employee Benefits Expenses 38
Depreciation and Amortization Expenses 39
Impairment Losses 40
Other Expenses 41
Finance Cost 42
Total Expenses
Net Profit/(Loss) For The Year Before Share of Net Profits
of Associates Accounted for Using Equity Method and Tax
Share of Net Profit of Associates accounted using Equity Method 9
Profit Before Tax
Income Tax Expense 43
Net Profit/ (Loss) For The Year
Earning Per Share 50
Basic EPS
Diluted EPS

4,392,643,361
(3,158,103,599)

3,754,085,910
(2,599,468,031)

1,234,539,762

1,154,617,879

666,078,537
260,743,121
(13,201,256)
3,300,088
69,582,573

498,099,878
241,986,510
37,643,288
77,908,011
32,223,285

2,221,042,825

2,042,478,851

2,381,582,017
(1,340,833,187)

2,203,988,377
(1,311,409,304)

99,950,226 1,510,078,227
(70,553,335)|(1,484,627,878)
1,070,145,721| 918,029,422
26,625,174| 34,357,057
12,710,224 11,738,207
469,815,060 407,937,477
51,534,145| 20,176,426
28,044,314| 14,930,340
171,079,234| 179,675,260
24,003,023 8,815,432

1,853,956,895

1,595,659,621

367,085,930 446,819,230
147,561 (5,043,212)
367,233,491 441,776,018
103,310,039 129,788,077
263,923,452 311,987,941
13.99 18.15

13.99 18.15

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these Financial Statements.

Dip Prakash Panday Ramesh Kumar Luitel Saurav J.B. Rana

Chief Executive Officer Director Director
Suraj Rajbahak Dinesh Bajra Bajracharya Skand Amatya

Chief Financial Officer Director Director

Kathmandu, Nepal
Date: December 15, 2022

Rajendra Prasad Shrestha

Chairman

Dr. Shrujana Shrestha
Director

Shik
7

As per our report on even date

B.K. Agrawal, FCA
Managing Partner

B.K. Agrawal & Co.

Chartered Accountants
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Shikhar Insurance Company Ltd.

Statement of other Comprehensive Income
For The Year Ended Ashad 32, 2079 (July 16, 2022)

Fig. in NPR

a)

Net Profit/ (Loss) For The Year

Other Comprehensive Income
Items that are or may be Reclassified to Profit or Loss

Current Year

Previous Year

263,923,452

311,987,941

b)

Changes in Fair Value of FVOCI Debt Instruments

Cash Flow Hedge - Effective Portion of Changes in Fair Value
Exchange differences on translation of Foreign Operation
Share of other comprehensive income of

associates accounted for using the equity method

Income Tax Relating to Above ltems

Reclassified to Profit or Loss

Items that will not be Reclassified to Profit or Loss

Changes in fair value of FVOCI Equity Instruments

Revaluation of Property, Plant and Equipment/ Intangible Assets
Remeasurement of Post-Employment Benefit Obligations

Share of other comprehensive income of

associates accounted for using the equity method

Income Tax Relating to Above ltems

Total Other Comprehensive Income For the Year, Net of Tax
Total Comprehensive Income For the Year, Net of Tax

7,540,000
(7,451,856)

(26,443)

18,850,000

(5,655,000)

61,701

13,195,000

263,985,153

325,182,941

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these Financial Statements.

As per our report on even date

Dip Prakash Panday Ramesh Kumar Luitel Saurav J.B. Rana Rajendra Prasad Shrestha B.K. Agrawal, FCA
Chief Executive Officer Director Director Chairman Managing Partner
B.K. Agrawal & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Suraj Rajbahak Dinesh Bajra Bajracharya Skand Amatya Dr. Shrujana Shrestha
Chief Financial Officer Director Director Director
Kathmandu, Nepal
Date: December 15, 2022
1
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Shikhar Insurance Company Ltd.

Statement of Cash Flow

For The Year Ended Ashad 32, 2079 (July 16, 2022)

Fig. in NPR

Cash Flow From Investing Activities

1.

Cash Flow From Operating Actvities:

Cash Received

Gross Premium Received

Commission Received

Claim Recovery Received from Reinsurers

Realised Foreign Exchange Income other than on Cash and
Cash Equivalents

Others (to be specified)

Other Income

Cash Paid

Gross Claims Paid

Reinsurance Premium Paid

Commission Paid

Service Fees Paid

Employee Benefits Expenses Paid

Other Expenses Paid

Others (to be specified)

Income Tax Paid

Net Cash Flow From Operating Activities [1]

Cash Flow From Investing Activities
Acquisitions of Intangible Assets

Proceeds From Sale of Intangible Assets
Acquisitions of Investment Properties

Proceeds From Sale of Investment Properties
Rental Income Received

Acquisitions of Property, Plant & Equipment
Proceeds From Sale of Property, Plant & Equipment
Payment for acquisition of Subsidiaries/ Investment in Subsidiaries
Investment in Associates

Receipts from Sale of Investments in Subsidiaries
Receipts from Sale of Investments in Associates
Purchase of Equity Instruments

Proceeds from Sale of Equity Instruments
Purchase of Mutual Funds

Proceeds from Sale of Mutual Funds

Purchase of Preference Shares

Proceeds from Sale of Preference Shares
Purchase of Debentures

Proceeds from Sale of Debentures

Purchase of Bonds

Current Year

Previous Year

4,875,826,465
731,635,633
1,259,340,403

68,985,008

(2,381,582,017)
(3,457,957,266)
(31,936,164)
(41,348,170)
(437,116,921)
(242,512,592)

(177,404,202)

3,921,227,169
542,208,438
1,720,700,771

32,404,714

(2,203,988,377)
(3,560,685,479)
(12,931,485)
(36,105,951)
(471,630,858)
(418,125,722)

(147,814,469)

165,930,177 |  (634,741,249)
17,341,997 17,030,045
(163,743,240) (38,050,640)
912,478 61,947
(126,473,226) 53,934,571

(46,853,516)

(121,385,733)

20,000,000

Proceeds from Sale of Bonds -
Investments in Deposits = -
Maturity of Deposits (676,148,000) 72,310,000
Proceeds from Finance Lease - -
Loans Paid - -
Proceeds from Loans - -

Continue...

Shi khar
_Q surance

ﬂPF‘,IMP’ﬂH&Q

| 157



Shikhar Insurance Company Ltd.

Statement of Cash Flow

For The Year Ended Ashad 31, 2078 (July 15, 2021)

Fig. in NPR

Interest Income Received

Dividend Received

Others (Seed Money in Micro Insurance Pool)
Total Cash Flow From Investing Activities [2]

. Cash Flow From Financing Activities

Interest Paid

Payment of Finance Lease

Proceeds From Issue of Share Capital

Share Issuance Cost Paid

Dividend Paid

Dividend Distribution Tax Paid

Others

Increase (Decrease) in Bank Loan Overdraft
Total Cash Flow From Financing Activities [3]

Net Increase/(Decrease) In Cash & Cash Equivalents [1+2+3]
Cash & Cash Equivalents At Beginning of The Year/Period

Effect of Exchange Rate Changes on Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash & Cash Equivalents At End of The Year/Period

Components of Cash & Cash Equivalents

Cash In Hand

Cheques In Hand

Term Deposit with Banks (with initial maturity upto 3 months)
Gold Coin

Balance With Banks

Current Year

Previous Year

235,308,324 222,926,418
7,648,182 2,026,499
(752,007,001) 228,853,107
(24,003,023) (8,815,432)
592,746,876 218,231,663

(2,498,958)

(16,320,119)

(2,463,719)
(20,211,589)

33,162,320

549,924,776 219,903,243
(36,152,048) (185,984,899)
352,212,651 538,197,550
316,060,603 352,212,651
96,256 7,816
1,020,985 939,110
314,943,362 351,265,725

Notes:
Statement of Cash Flows is prepared using Direct Method.
The accompanying notes form an integral part of these Financial Statements.

As per our report on even date

Dip Prakash Panday Ramesh Kumar Luitel Saurav J.B. Rana Rajendra Prasad Shrestha B.K. Agrawal, FCA
Chief Executive Officer Director Director Chairman Managing Partner
B.K. Agrawal & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Suraj Rajbahak Dinesh Bajra Bajracharya Skand Amatya Dr. Shrujana Shrestha
Chief Financial Officer Director Director Director
Kathmandu, Nepal
Date: December 15, 2022
1
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Shikhar Insurance Company Ltd.
Notes to the Financial Statements
For The Year Ended Ashad 32, 2079 (July 16, 2022)
Fig. in NPR

1 General Information
Shikhar Insurance Company Limited (herein after referred to as the ‘Company’) was incorporated on 15th
Jestha 2061 and operated as general insurance company after obtaining license on 16th Kartik 2061 under
the Insurance Act 2049.

The registered office of the Company is located at Thapathali Kathmandu. The Company's shares are listed
on Nepal Stock Exchange Ltd.

The financial statements are approved for issue by the Company's Board of Directors on 15/12/2022.
2 Basis of Preparation

(a) Statement of Compliance
The Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with the Nepal Financial Reporting Standards
(NFRS) issued by the Nepal Accounting Standards Board (ASB), as per the provisions of The Nepal
Chartered Accountants Act, 1997. These confirm, in material respect, to NFRS as issued by the Nepal
Accounting Standards Board. The Financial Statements have been prepared on a going concern basis.
The term NFRS, includes all the standards and the related interpretations which are consistently used.

(b) Basis of Measurement
The Financial Statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for following Assets
& Liabilities which have been measured at Fair Value amount:

i. Certain Financial Assets & Liabilities which are required to be measured at fair value
ii. Defined Employee Benefits

iii. Insurance Contract Liabilities which are required to be determined using actuarial valuation for
Liability Adequacy Test (LAT).

Historical cost is generally Fair Value of the consideration given in exchange for goods & services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is
directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique.

In addition, for Financial Reporting purposes, Fair Value measurements are categorized into Level 1,
or 2, or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs to the Fair Value measurements are observable &
the significance of the inputs to the Fair Value measurement in its entirety, which are described as
follows:

o Level1 - Inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical Assets or Liabilities
that the entity can access at the measurement date;

o Level 2 - Inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within Level 1, that are observable
for the Asset or Liability, either directly or indirectly; and

e Level 3 - Inputs are unobservable inputs for the Asset or Liability.

(c) Use of Estimates
The preparation of these Financial Statements in conformity with NFRS requires management to make
estimates, judgements and assumptions. These estimates, judgments and assumptions affect the
reported balances of Assets & Liabilities, disclosures relating to Contingent Liabilities as at the date of
the Financial Statements and the reported amounts of Income & Expenses for the years presented.
Actual results may differ from these estimates. Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Changes in estimates are reflected in the Financial Statements in the period in which
changes are made and, if material, their effects are disclosed in the Notes to the financial statements.
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(d) Functional and Presentation Currency
These Financial Statements are presented in Nepalese Rupees (NPR) which is the Company’s functional
currency. All financial information presented in NPR has been rounded to the nearest rupee except
where indicated otherwise.

(e) Going Concern
The financial statements are prepared on a going concern basis. The Board of Directors have considered
a wide range of information relating to present and future conditions, including future projections of
profitability, cash flows and capital resources while assessing the going concern basis. Furthermore,
Board is not aware of any material uncertainties that may cast significant doubt upon Company’s ability
to continue as a going concern and they do not intend either to liquidate or to cease operations of it.

(f) Changes in Accounting Policies
Accounting policies are the specific principles, bases, conventions, rules and practices applied by the
Company in preparing and presenting financial statements. The Company is permitted to change an
accounting policy only if the change is required by a standard or interpretation; or results in the financial
statements providing reliable and more relevant information about the effects of transactions, other
events or conditions on the entity's financial position, financial performance, or cash flows.

(g) Recent Accounting Pronouncements
Accounting standards issued and effective All the accounting standard made effective by the ASB are
applied while preparing the financial statement of the Company.

Accounting standards issued and non-effective
NFRS 17 "Insurance Contracts"

(h) Carve-outs
N.A.

3 Significant Accounting Policies
This note provides a list of the significant policies adopted in the preparation of these Financial Statements.

(a) Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE)

i) Recognition
Freehold land is carried at historical cost and other items of property, plant and equipment are stated
at cost of acquisition or construction less accumulated depreciation when, it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and it can be used for more
than one year and the cost can be measured reliably.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it meets the recognition criteria as mentioned above. The carrying amount
of any component accounted for as a separate asset is derecognised when replaced. All other
repairs and maintenance are charged to profit or loss during the reporting period in which they are
incurred.

ii) Revaluation
After recognition as an asset, lands and buildings whose fair value can be measured reliably, have
been carried at revalued amount at the date of revaluation less any subsequent accumulated
depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment losses. Valuations are being performed to
ensure that the fair value of a revalued asset does not materially differ from its carrying amount as
at the reporting date. Valuation of the land and buildings are undertaken by professionally qualified
valuers.

An increase in the carrying amount as a result of revaluation, is recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity under the heading of revaluation reserve. However, the increase
is recognised in profit or loss to the extent that it reverses a revaluation decrease of the same asset
previously recognised in profit and loss. A decrease in the carrying amount as a result of revaluation,
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is recognised in profit or loss. However, the decrease is recognised in other comprehensive income
to the extent of any credit balance existing in the revaluation surplus in respect of that asset.

Additionally, accumulated depreciation as at the revaluation date is eliminated against the gross
carrying amount of the asset and the net amount is restated to the revalued amount of the asset.
Upon disposal, any revaluation reserve relating to the particular asset being sold is transferred
directly to retained earnings.

ii) Depreciation
Depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipment other than Freehold Land i.e. the Company’s Freehold
Building, Plant & Machinery, Vehicles & Other Assets is provided on "Straight Line Method (SLM)/
based on Useful Life estimated by technical expert of the management.

The Assets Useful Life/ Rate of Depreciation and Residual Values are reviewed at the Reporting
date and the effect of any changes in estimates are accounted for on a prospective basis.

Useful Life of Property, Plant and Equipment based on SLM is categorised as stated below:

List of Asset Categories Useful Life (In Years) for SLM
Land Not Applicable
Buildings 50
Leasehold Improvement Lease Period
Furniture & Fixtures 20
Computers and IT Equipments 5
Office Equipment 10
Vehicles 10
Other Assets 8

iv) Derecognition
An item of Property, Plant and Equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no Future Economic
Benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the Asset. Any Gain or Loss arising on the
disposal or retirement of an item of Property, Plant and Equipment is determined as the difference
between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the Asset and is recognized in the Statement
of Profit or Loss.

v) Impairment
Assets are tested for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognized for the amount by which
the Asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is higher of
an asset's fair value less cost of disposal and value in use. Value in use is based on the estimated
future cash flows, discounted to their present value using pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and risk specific to the assets. Assets that suffer
an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at the end of each reporting
period. In case of such reversal, the carrying amount of the asset is increased so as not to exceed
the carrying amount that would have been determined had there been no impairment loss.

vi) Capital Work-In-Progress
These are expenses of capital nature directly incurred in the construction of buildings, major plant
and machinery and system development which are to be capitalized. Capital Work in Progress would
be transferred to the relevant asset when it is available for use. Capital Work in Progress is stated
at cost less any accumulated impairment losses.

(b) Intangible Assets

i) Recognition
Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial
recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortization and any
accumulated impairment losses. Internally generated intangibles, excluding capitalized development
costs, are not capitalized and the related expenditure is reflected in statement of profit or loss in
the year in which the expenditure is incurred.
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Subsequent expenditure on intangible assets is capitalized only when it increases the future economic
benefits embodied in the specific asset to which it relates. All other expenditure is expensed as
incurred.

ii) Amortization
The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be either finite or indefinite. An intangible asset
shall be regarded as having an indefinite useful life when, based on an analysis of all of the relevant
factors, there is no foreseeable limit to the period over which the asset is expected generate net
cash inflow for the entity.

Amortisation is recognised in income statement on straight line method over the estimated useful
life of the intangible assets or diminishing balance method from the date that it is available for use
since this most closely reflects the expected pattern of consumption of the future economic benefits
embodied in the asset. The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset
with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at each financial year end. Changes in the expected
useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset
are considered to modify the amortisation period or method, as appropriate, and are treated as
changes in accounting estimates. The amortisation expense on intangible assets with finite lives
is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Useful Life of Intangible Assets based on SLMis categorised as stated below:

List of Asset Categories Useful Life (In Years) for SLM
Softwares 10
Licences Licence Period

iii) Derecognition
An Intangible Asset is derecognised when no Future Economic Benefits are expected to arise from
the continued use of the Asset. Any Gain or Loss arising on the derecognition is determined as the
difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the Asset and is recognized in
the Statement of Profit or Loss.

iv) Impairment of Assets
The Company assesses at each reporting date as to whether there is any indication that Intangible
Assets may be impaired. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated
to determine the extent of impairment, if any. An impairment loss is recognised in the Statement of
Profit or Loss to the extent, asset's carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is higher of an asset's fair value less cost of disposal and value in use. Value in use is based
on the estimated future cash flows, discounted to their present value using pre-tax discount rate
that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and risk specific to the assets.

(c) Investment Properties

Cost Model:

Property that is held for rental income or for capital appreciaiton or both, is classified as investment
property. Investment properties are measured initially at cost, including related transaction cost. It is
subsequently carried at cost less accumulated depreciation. Subsequent expenditure is capitalised to
the asset’s carrying amount only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the
expenditure will flow to the Company and the cost can be measured reliably. All other repairs and
maintenance costs are expensed when incurred.

Land is carried at historical cost, however, buildings are depreciated over their estimated useful lives
as mentioned above.

Investment properties are derecognised either when they have been disposed of, or when the investment
property is permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefit is expected from its disposal.
Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an investment property are recognised in the
statement of profit or loss in the year of retirement or disposal.
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(d)

(e)

Transfers are made to (or from) investment property only when there is a change in use. For a transfer
from investment property to PPE, the deemed cost for subsequent accounting is the fair value at the
date of change in use. If PPE becomes an investment property, the Company accounts for such property
in accordance with the policy stated under PPE up to the date of change in use.

Cash & Cash Equivalent
For the purpose of presentation in the Statement of Cash Flows, Cash & Cash Equivalents includes
Cash In Hand, Bank Balances and short term deposits with a maturity of three months or less.

Financial Assets

i) Initial Recognition & Measurement
Financial Assets are recognized when, and only when, the Company becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the Financial Instrument. The Company determines the classification of
its Financial Assets at initial recognition.

When Financial Assets are recognized initially, they are measured at Fair Value, plus, in the case
of Financial Assets not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to
the acquisation of the Financial Asset. Transaction costs of Financial Assets carried at Fair Value
through Profit or Loss are expensed in the Statement of Profit or Loss.

ii) Subsequent Measurement

a) Financial Assets carried at Amortized Cost (AC)
A Financial Asset is measured at amortized cost if it is held within a business model whose
objective is to hold the asset in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms
of the Financial Asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. Interest income in these financial
assets is measured using effective interest rate method.

b) Financial Assets at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVTOCI)
A Financial Asset is measured at FVTOCI if it is held within a business model whose objective
is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling Financial Assets and the
contractual terms of the Financial Asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. These financial assets
are measured at fair value and changes are taken to statement of other comprehensive income.

c) Financial Assets at Fair Value through Profit or Loss (FVTPL)
A Financial Asset which is not classified in any of the above categories are measured at FVTPL.
These financial assets are measured at fair value and changes are taken to statement of profit
or loss.

iii) De-Recognition

A Financial Asset is derecognized only when the Company has transferred the rights to receive cash
flows from the Financial Asset. Where the Company has transferred an Asset, the Company evaluates
whether it has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the Financial Asset.
In such cases, the Financial Asset is derecognized. Where the Company has not transferred
substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the Financial Asset, the Financial Asset is not
derecognized. Where the Company retains control of the Financial Asset, the Asset is continued
to be recognized to the extent of continuing involvement in the Financial Asset.

iv) Impairment of Financial Assets
The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is objective evidence that a financial
asset or group of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial assets is
deemed to be impaired if, there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events
that has occurred since the initial recognition of the asset (an incurred ‘loss event’) and that loss
event has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or the group of financial
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assets that can be reliably estimated. Evidence of impairment may include indications that a financial
asset or a group of financial assets is experiencing significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency
in interest or principal payments, the probability that they will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganization and observable data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated
future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate with defaults.

(f) Financial Liabilities

i) Initial Recognition & Measurement
Financial Liabilities are recognized when, and only when, the Company becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the Financial Instrument. The Company determines the classification of
its Financial Liabilities at initial recognition.

All Financial Liabilities are recognized initially at Fair Value, plus, in the case of Financial Liabilities
not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the issue of the
Financial Liability.

ii) Subsequent Measurement
After initial recognition, Financial Liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the
Effective Interest Method.

For trade and other payables maturing within one year from the date of Statement of Financial
Position, the carrying amounts approximate Fair value due to short maturity of these instruments.

iii) De-Recognition
A Financial Liability is de-recognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled
or expires. When an existing Financial Liability is replaced by another from the same lender on
substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an
exchange or modification is treated as a de-recognition of the original liability and the recognition
of a new liability, and the difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the Statement
of Profit or Loss.

(g) Offsetting financial instruments
Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the Statement of Financial
Position where there is legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention
to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable
right must not be contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the normal course of business
and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the Company or the counterparty.

(h) Reinsurance Assets
Reinsurance assets are the assets which are created against insurance contract liabilities of the amount
which are recoverable from the reinsurer. These assets are created for the resinsurer's share of insurance
contract liabilities.

A reinsurance asset is impaired if there is objective evidence, as a result of an event that occurred after
the initial recognition of the reinsurance asset, that the Company may not receive all amounts due to
it under the terms of the contract, and the event has a reliably measurable impact on the amount that
the company will receive from the re-insurer. If a reinsurance asset is impaired, the company reduces
the carrying amount accordingly and is recognized in statement of profit or loss.

(i) Share Capital
Financial Instruments issued by the Company are classified as Equity only to the extent that they do
not meet the definition of a Financial Liability or Financial Asset.

(i) Reserves and Funds

i) Share Premium: If the Company issues share capital at premium it receives extra amount other
than share capital such amount is transferred to share premium. The amount in share premium is

allowed for distribution of bonus shares.
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ii) Insurance Fund: The Company has allocated insurance fund for the amount which is 50% of the
net profit every year as per Regulator's Directive until the fund equals paid up capital.

iii) Catastrophe Reserves: The Company has allocated catastrophe reserve for the amount which is
10% of the distributable profit for the year as per Regulator's Directive.

iv) Fair Value Reserves: The Company has policy of creating fair value reserve equal to the amount
of Fair Value Gain recognized in statement of other comprehensive income as per regulator’s
directive.

v) Regulatory Reserves: Reserve created out of net profit in line with different circulars issued by
Insurance Board.

vi) Actuarial Reserves: Reseserve against actuarial gain or loss on present value of defined benefit
obligation resuting from, experience adjustments (the effects of differences between the previous
actuarial assumptions and what has actually occurred); and the effects of changes in actuarial
assumptions.

vii) Cashflow Hedge Reserves: Is the exposure to variability in cash flows that is attributable to a
particular risk associated with all or a component of a recognized asset or liability or a highly probable
forecast transaction, and could affect profit or loss. Reserve represent effective portion of the gain
or loss on the hedging instrument recognized in other comprehensive income.

viii) Revaluation Reserves: Reserve created against revaluation gain on property, plant & equipments
& intangible assets, other than the reversal of earlier revalaution losses charged to profit or loss.

ix) Other Reserves: Reserve other than above reserves, for e.g. deferred tax reserve, others (to be
specified)

(k) Insurance Contract Liabilities

i) Provision for unearned premiums
Unearned premiums reserve represents the portion of the premium written in the year but relating
to the unexpired term of coverage.

Change in reserve for unearned insurance premium represents the net portion of the gross written
premium transferred to the unearned premium reserve during the year to cover the unexpired period
of the polices.

ii) Outstanding claims provisions
Outstanding claims provisions are based on the estimated ultimate cost of all claims incurred but
not settled at the statement of financial position date, whether reported or not, together with related
claims handling costs.

iii) Provision for claim incurred but not reported (IBNR)
Significant delays are experienced in the notification and settlement of certain types of claims, the
ultimate cost of which cannot be known with certainty at the statement of financial position date.

The liability is calculated at the reporting date using a range of standard actuarial claim projection
techniques, based on empirical data and current assumptions that may include a margin for adverse
deviation.

Liability adequacy
At each reporting date, the Company reviews its unexpired risk and a liability adequacy test is
performed to determine whether there is any overall excess of expected claims and deferred
acquisition costs over unearned premiums. The calculation uses current estimates of future contractual
cash flows after taking account of the investment return expected to arise on assets relating to the
relevant non-life insurance technical provisions. If these estimates show that the carrying amount
of the unearned premiums is inadequate, the deficiency is recognized in the statement of profit or
loss by setting up a provision for liability.
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As per the circular issued by the Nepal Insurance Authority, the unearned premium reserve(UPR)
are evaluated at an overall Company Level and the Company is expected to hold UPR as suggested
by LAT report or Statutory UPR (50% of Insurance Premium and in case of marine insurance the
amount kept at reserve fund for at least three years shall not be considered to be profit) whichever
is higher.

() Employee Benefits

i) Short Term Obligations
Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits that are expected to be settled
wholly within 12 months after the end of the period in which the employees render the related service
are recognized in respect of employees’ services up to the end of the reporting period and are
measured at the amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled. The liabilities are
presented as current employee benefit obligations in the Statement of Financial Position.

ii) Post - Employment Benefits

- Defined Contribution Plan

The Company pays Provident Fund contributions to publicly administered Provident Funds as per
local regulations. The Company has no further payment obligations once the contributions have
been paid. The contributions are accounted for as defined contribution plans and the contribution
are recognized as Employee Benefit Expense when they are due.

- Defined Benefit Plan

For Defined Benefit Plan , the cost of providing benefits is determined using the Projected Unit Credit
Method, with Actuarial Valuations being carried out at each Statement of Financial Position. Actuarial
Gains & Losses are recognized in the Other Comprehensive Income in the period in which they
occur. Past service cost is recognized immediately to the extent that the benefits are already vested
and otherwise is amortized on a Straight Line Basis over the average period until the benefits become
vested. The retirement benefit obligation recognized in the Statement of Financial Position represents
the present value of the defined benefit obligation as adjusted for unrecognized past service cost,
as reduced by the Fair Value of plan Assets (If Any). Any Asset resulting from this calculation is
limited to past service cost, plus the present value of available refunds and reductions in future
contributions to the plan.

iii) Long Term Employee Benefits
The liabilities for un-availed earned leaves are not expected to be settled wholly within 12 months
after the end of the period in which the employees render the related service. Leave Encashment
has been computed using Actuarial Assumptions and these are measured at the present value of
expected future payments to be made in respect of services provided by employees up to the end
of the year using the Projected Unit Credit Method. The benefits are discounted using the market
yields at the end of the year that have terms approximating to the terms of assumptions.

iv) Termination
Termination benefits are payable when employment is terminated by the Company before the normal
retirement date, or when an employee accepts voluntary retirement in exchange of these benefits.
The Company recognises termination benefits at the earlier of the following dates:

a) when the Company can no longer withdraw the offer of those benefits; and

b) when the entity recognises costs for a restructuring that is within the scope of NAS 37 and
involves the payment of termination benefits.

The termination benefits are measured based on the number of employees expected to accept the
offer in case of voluntary retirement scheme.

(m) Revenue Recognition

i) Gross Earned Premiums
Gross Earned Premiums are arrived at after deducting unearned premium reserves from Direct
Premium and Faculative Inward Premium. Direct premiums comprise the total premiums receivable
for the whole period of cover provided by contracts entered into during the reporting period. They
are recognised on the date on which the policy commences.
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(n)

Unearned premiums are those proportions of premiums written in a year that relate to periods of
risk after the reporting date. Unearned premiums are calculated on a daily pro rata basis. The
proportion attributable to subsequent periods is deferred as a provision for unearned premiums.

ii) Reinsurance Premium
Direct Reinsurance premiums comprise the total premiums payable for the whole cover provided
by contracts entered into the period and are recognized on the date on which the policy incepts.
Premiums include any adjustments arising in the accounting period in respect of reinsurance contracts
incepting in prior accounting periods.

Unearned reinsurance premiums are those proportions of premiums written in a year that relate to
periods of risk after the reporting date. Unearned reinsurance premiums are deferred over the term
of the underlying direct insurance policies for risks- attaching contracts and over the term of the
reinsurance contract for losses occurring contracts.

Reinsurance premiums and claims on the face of the statement of profit or loss have been presented
as negative items within premiums and net claims, respectively, because this is consistent with how
the business is managed.

iiij Commission Income
Commission Income is recognised on accrual basis. If the income is for future periods, then they
are deferred and recognised over those future periods.

iv) Investment income
Interest income is recognised in the statement of profit or loss as it accrues and is calculated by
using the EIR method. Fees and commissions that are an integral part of the effective yield of the
financial asset are recognised as an adjustment to the EIR of the instrument.

Investment income also includes dividends when the right to receive payment is established.

V) Net realised gains and losses
Net realised gains and losses recorded in the statement of profit or loss include gains and losses
on financial assets and properties. Gains and losses on the sale of investments are calculated as
the difference between net sales proceeds and the original or amortised cost and are recorded on
occurrence of the sale transaction.

Product Classification

Insurance contracts are those contracts when the Company (the insurer) has accepted significant
insurance risk from another party (the policyholders) by agreeing to compensate the policyholders if a
specified uncertain future event (the insured event) adversely affects the policyholders. As a general
guideline, the Company determines whether it has significant insurance risk by comparing benefits paid
with benefits payable if the insured event did not occur. Insurance contracts can also transfer financial
risk.

The Company has following portfolios under which it operates its business:

i) Fire Portfolio - Fire insurance business means the business of affecting and carrying out contracts
of insurance, otherwise than incidental to some other class of insurance business against loss or
damage to property due to fire, explosion, storm and other occurrences customarily included among
the risks insured against in the fire insurance business.

ii) Motor Portfolio - Motor insurance business means the business of affecting and carrying out
contracts of insurance against loss of, or damage to, or arising out of or in connection with the use
of, motor vehicles, inclusive of third party risks but exclusive of transit risks.

iii) Marine Portfolio - Marine insurance business means the business of affecting and carrying out
contracts of insurance against loss of consignment of goods during transit.

iv) Engineering Portfolio - Engineering insurance business means the insurance that provides economic
safeguard to the risks faced by the ongoing construction project, installation project, and machines
and equipment in project operation.
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v) Micro Portfolio - Micro insurance means the insurance done for the protection of life and property
of people or community with low-income and possessed to risk due to economic, social and
geographical reasons.

vi) Aviation Portfolio — Aviation Insurance provides coverage for hull losses as well as liability for
passenger injuries, environmental and third-party damage caused by aircraft accidents.

vii) Cattle and Crop Portfolio - Cattle and Crop Insurance provides insurance against loss of or
damange to Cattle and crops.

viii) Miscellaneous Portfolio — All the insurance business which doesn’t fall in above categories fall
under miscellaneous insurance business. Group Personal Accidents, Medical Insurances, Professional
indemnity insurance etc. fall under this category of business.

(o) Borrowing Costs
Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets,
which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use
or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready for
their intended use or sale.

Interest income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure
on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalization.

All other borrowing costs are recognized in statement of profit or loss in the period in which they are
incurred.

(p) Cash Flow Statement
Cash Flows are reported using the direct method, whereby major classes of cash receipts and cash
payments are disclosed as cash flows.

(q) Leases

Finance Leases

Leases in which the Company has substantial portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are classified
as Finance Leases. Assets acquired under Finance Leases are capitalised at the lower of the Fair Value
of the Leased Assets at the inception of the Lease Term & the Present Value of Minimum Lease
Payments. Lease Payments are apportioned between the Finance charge and the reduction of the
outstanding liability. The Finance Charge is allocated to periods during the Lease Term at a constant
periodic Rate of Interest on the remaining balance of the liability.

Operating Lease

Leases in which the Company doesn’t have substantial portion of the risks and rewards of ownership
are classified as Operating Leases. The Company assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease,
at inception of the contract. In accordance with NFRS-16 “Leases”; the Company recognises a right-
of-use asset and a corresponding lease liability, except for short-term leases and leases of low value
assets as the Company is lessee in all lease arrangements.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at
the commencement date, discounted by using discount rate used in calculation of Liability adequecy
test by actuary.

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise:
- Fixed lease payments (including in-substance fixed payments), less any lease incentives receivable

- Variable lease payments that depend on an index or rate, initially measured using the index or rate
at the commencement date.

- The amount expected to be payable by the lessee under residual value guarantees
- The exercise price of purchase options, if the lessee is reasonably certain to exercise the options

- Payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the exercise of an option
to terminate the lease
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The lease liability is presented within other Financial Liabilities in the Statement of Financial Position.
The lease liability is subsequently measured by increasing the carrying amount to reflect interest on
the lease liability and by reducing the carrying amount to reflect the lease payments made.

The Company remeasures the lease liability (and makes a corresponding adjustment to the related
right-of use asset) whenever:

- The lease term has changed or there is a significant event or change in circumstances resulting in
a change in the assessment of exercise of a purchase option, in which case the lease liability is
remeasured by discounting the revised lease payments using a revised discount rate

- The lease payments change due to changes in an index or rate or a change in expected payment
under a guaranteed residual value, in which cases the lease liability is re-measured by discounting
the revised lease payments using an unchanged discount rate (unless the lease payments change
is due to a change in a floating interest rate, in which case a revised discount rate is used)

- Alease contract is modified and the lease modification is not accounted for as a separate lease, in
which case the lease liability is re-measured based on the lease term of the modified lease by
discounting the revised lease payments using a revised discount rate at the effective date of the
modification.

The Company did not make any such adjustments during the periods presented.

The right-of-use assets comprise the initial measurement of the corresponding lease liability, lease
payments made at or before the commencement day, less any lease incentives received and any initial
direct costs. They are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated over the shorter period of lease term and useful life of the right-of
use asset. If a lease transfer ownership of the underlying asset or the cost of the right-of-use asset
reflects that the Company expects to exercise a purchase option, the related right-of-use asset is
depreciated over the useful life of the underlying asset. The depreciation starts at the commencement
date of the lease. The Company depreciates Right-of-use assets from the commencement date on a
straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and useful life of the underlying asset.

The right-of-use assets are presented Within Property, plant and Equipment in the Statement of Financial
Position.

The Company applies NAS 36 to determine whether a right-of-use asset is impaired and accounts for
any identified impairment loss as described in the ‘Property, Plant and Equipment’ policy. Variable rents
that do not depend on an index or rate are not included in the measurement the lease liability and the
right-of-use asset. The related payments are recognised as an expense in the period in which the event
or condition that triggers those payments occurs.

Particulars Current Year | Previous Year
Cost

As on 31 Ashadh 2078 = -
Additions 121,014,403 -
As on 32 Ashadh 2079 121,014,403 -

Accumulated Depreciation
As on 31 Ashadh 2078 -
Charge for the year 28,219,404 -
As on 32 Ashadh 2079 28,219,404 -
Carrying amount
As on 31 Ashadh 2078 = -
As on 32 Ashadh 2079 92,794,999 -
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Particulars Current Year | Previous Year

Amounts recognized in Statement of Profit or Loss

Depreciation expense on right-of-use assets 28,219,404 -
Interest expense on lease liabilities 10,392,840 -
Expense relating to short-term leases = -
Expense relating to leases of low value assets - -

Expense relating to variable lease payments not included

in the measurement of the lease liability - -

(r)

(s)

The total cash outflow for leases amount to NPR 32,790,455.

Transition

From 1st Shrawan 2078, the Company has effectively adopted NFRS 16- “Leases”, which requires any
lease arrangement to be recognised in the Statement of Financial Position of the lessee as a ‘right-of-
use’ asset with a corresponding lease liability. Accordingly, depreciation has been charged on such
assets as against lease rental expenses in the previous year. Similarly interest expense has been
recognised on lease liabilities under Interest Expenses. As permitted by the standard, the Company has
applied this standard w. e. f. 1st Shrawan 2078 and comparatives for the previous period/year have not
been restated.

Income Taxes
Income Tax Expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable & Deferred Tax.

i) Current Tax
Current Tax Expenses are accounted in the same period to which the revenue and expenses relate.
Provision for Current Income Tax is made for the Tax Liability payable on Taxable Income after
considering tax allowances, deductions and exemptions determined in accordance with the applicable
tax rates and the prevailing tax laws.

ii) Deferred Tax

Deferred Tax is recognized on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of Assets &
Liabilities in the Statement of Financial Position and their Tax Base. Deferred tax Assets & Liabilities
are recognized for deductible and taxable temporary differences arising between the tax base of
Assets & Liabilities and their carrying amount in Financial Statements, except when the Deferred
Income Tax arises from the initial recognition of goodwill, an Asset or Liability in a transaction that
is not a business combination and affects neither accounting nor taxable Profits or Loss at the time
of the transaction.

Deferred Tax Assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the deductible Temporary differences and the carry forward of unused tax credits and
unused tax losses can be utilized.

Deferred Tax Liabilities are generally recognized for all taxable Temporary differences.

The carrying amount of Deferred Tax Assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part
of the Deferred Tax Asset to be utilized.

Provisions, Contingent Liabilities & Contingent Assets

(i) Provisions
Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a
result of past events, for which it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate of the amount can be made.

Provisions are measured at the present value of management’s best estimate of the expenditure
required to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period. The discount rate to
determine the present value is a Pre-Tax Rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the liability. The increase in the provision due to the passage
of time is recognized as interest expense.
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(u)

v)

Provisions for Contingent Liability are recognized in the books as a matter of abundant precaution
and conservative approach based on management's best estimate. However, Management believes
that chances of these matters going against the company are remote and there will not be any
probable cash outflow.

(ii) Contingent Liabilities
Contingent liabilities are recognized only when there is a possible obligation arising from past events
due to occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the
control of the Company or where any present obligation cannot be measured in terms of future
outflow of resources or where a reliable estimate of the obligation cannot be made. Obligations are
assessed on an ongoing basis and only those having a largely probable outflow of resources are
provided for.

(iii) Contingent Assets
Contingent assets where it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to the Company are
not recognized but disclosed in the Financial Statements.

Foreign Currency Transactions

The Financial Statements of the Company are presented in Nepalese Rupees, which is the Company’s
Functional Currency. In preparing the Financial Statements of the Company, transactions in currencies
other than the Company’s Functional Currency i.e. Foreign Currencies are recognized at the rates of
exchange prevailing at the dates of the transactions.

Earnings Per Share
Basic Earning per share is calculated by dividing the profit attributable to owners of the company by the
Weighted Average Number of equity shares outstanding during the Financial Year.

For diluted earning per share, the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue is adjusted to
assume conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares.

Operating Segment
Operating Segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief
operating decision maker (CODM) as defined by NFRS 8, “Operating Segment”.

Company’s Income & Expenses including interest are considered as part of un-allocable Income &
Expenses which are not identifiable to any business segment. Company’s Asset & Liabilities are
considered as part of un-allocable Assets & Liabilities which are not identifiable to any business.
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Shikhar Insurance Company Ltd.

Notes to the Financial Statements
For The Year Ended Ashad 32, 2079 (July 16, 2022)

Fig. in NPR

4 Intangible Assets
Others (to be

Particulars Softwares | Licenses Specified) Total
Gross carrying amount
As at Ashad 31, 2078 4,212,779 - - 4,212,779
Additions 1,000,000 - - 1,000,000
Disposals - - - -
Revaluation - - - -
Balance as at Ashad 32, 2079 5,212,779 - - 5,212,779
Accumulated amortization and impairment
As at Ashad 31, 2078 4,212,779 - - 4,212,779
Additions 3,552 - - 3,552
Disposals - - - -
Impairment losses - - - -
Impairment reversal - - - -
Balance as at Ashad 32, 2079 4,216,331 - - 4,216,331
Net Balance as at Ashad 31, 2078 - - - -
Net Balance as at Ashad 32, 2079 996,448 - - 996,448
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Shikhar Insurance Company Ltd.

Notes to the Financial Statements
For The Year Ended Ashad 32, 2079 (July 16, 2022)

Fig. in NPR
6 Investment Properties

Particulars Land Building Total

Gross carrying amount - - -
As at Ashad 31, 2078 - - -
Additions - - -
Disposals - - -
Transfer/ adjustments - - -
Balance as at Ashad 32, 2079 - - -

Depreciation and impairment
As at Ashad 31, 2078 - - -
Depreciation charge - - -
Disposals - - -
Impairment losses - - -
Impairment reversal - - -
Transfer/ adjustments - - -
Balance as at Ashad 32, 2079 - - -

Net Carrying Amount
Balance as at Ashad 31, 2078 - - -
Balance as at Ashad 32, 2079 - - -

Capital work-in-progress as at Ashad 31, 2078 - - -
Additions - - -
Capitalization - - -
Disposals - - -
Impairment losses - - -
Impairment reversal - - -
Capital work-in-progress as at Ashad 32, 2079 - - -
Net Balance as at Ashad 31, 2078 - - -
Net Balance as at Ashad 32, 2079 - - -

(i) Amounts recognised in statement of profit or loss for investment properties

Particulars Current Year | Previous Year

Rental income - -
Direct operating expenses from property that generated rental income - -
Direct operating expenses from property that didn't generated rental income - -
Profit from investment properties before depreciation - -
Depreciation charge - -
Profit from investment properties - -

Shikhar
-+

ﬂP}?llJM}‘ﬂl’lte




Shikhar Insurance Company Ltd.

Notes to the Financial Statements
For The Year Ended Ashad 32, 2079 (July 16, 2022)

Fig. in NPR
7 Deferred Tax Assets/ (Liabilities)

Particulars Current Year | Previous Year
Intangible Assets 310,504 411,798
Property, Plant and Equipment (42,456,458)| (40,634,146)
Fair Value Gains/ (Losses) (10,290,211) | (14,250,588)
Provision for Leave Encashment 10,168,157 7,733,558
Impairment Loss on Property, Plant and Equipment - -
Impairment Loss on Financial Assets 634,769 634,769
Impairment Loss on Other Assets - -
Unamortized portion of Bond 928,774 928,774
Deferred Agency Commission (2,685,538) (2,685,648)
Insurance Contract Liabilities net of Insurance Assest 74,175,226 71,205,331
Lease Expenses (NFRS 16 Impact) 1,746,537 -
Provision for Gratuity 12,017,473 12,017,473
Remeasurement of Post-Employment Benefit Obligations 2,235,557 -
Deferred Commission Income 69,822,685 50,155,556
Provision for Other Loss 13,903,604 5,490,310
Share of Net Profit of Associates using Equity Method (1,155,349) (1,111,081)
Total 129,355,730 89,896,106

Movements in deferred tax assets/ (liablities)

Particulars Current Year | Previous Year
As at Ashad 31, 2078 89,896,106 75,562,819
(Charged)/Credited to Statement of Profit or Loss 39,486,067 19,988,287
(Charged)/Credited to Other Comprehensive Income (26,443) (5,655,000)
As at Ashad 32, 2079 129,355,730 89,896,106

8 Investments in Subsidiaries

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Investment in Quoted Susidiaries
Investment in Unquoted Susidiaries
Less: Impairment Losses

Total

Investment in Quoted Subsidiaries

Current Year Previous Year

Particulars Cost Fair Value Cost Fair Value
........... Shares of Rs..........each of .......... Ltd. - - - -
........... Shares of Rs..........each of .......... Ltd. - - - -
Total - - - -

Continue...
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Shikhar Insurance Company Ltd.

Notes to the Financial Statements
For The Year Ended Ashad 32, 2079 (July 16, 2022)

Fig. in NPR
Investment in Unquoted Subsidiaries

Current Year Previous Year
Particulars Cost Fair Value Cost Fair Value
........... Shares of Rs..........each of .......... Ltd. - - - -
........... Shares of Rs..........each of .......... Ltd. - - - -
Total - - - -
Information Relating to Subsidiaries
Percentage of Ownership
Particulars Current Year | Previous Year
........... Shares of Rs.............eachof ................ Ltd. - -
........... Shares of Rs.............eachof ................ Ltd. - -
........... Shares of Rs.............each of ................ Ltd. - -
........... Shares of Rs.............each of ................ Ltd. - -
9 Investments in Associates
Particulars Current Year | Previous Year
Investment in Quoted Associates - -
Investment in Unquoted Associates 52,951,163 52,803,602
Less: Impairment Losses - -
Total 52,951,163 52,803,602
Investment in Quoted Associates
Current Year Previous Year

Equity Equity
Particulars Cost |Fair Value Method Cost | Fair Value Method
Total - - - - - -
Investment in Unquoted Associates

Current Year Previous Year

Equity Equity
Particulars Cost |Fair Value Method Cost | Fair Value Method
106,187 Shares of Rs 100 each of
Machhapuchchhre Capital Limited 9,100,000 - 9,100,000 | 9,100,000 - 9,100,000
400,000 Shares of Rs 100 each of Kriti Venture Fund 40,000,000 - 40,000,000 | 40,000,000 -| 40,000,000
Add: Share of Profit or Loss for Earlier Years - 3,703,602 - - 1,439,050
Add: Share of Profit or Loss for Earlier Years being
financial statements published in current year only - 155,314 - - 1,578,218
Add: Share of Profit or Loss for Current Year - - (7,753) - - 686,334
Total 49,100,000 52,951,163 | 49,100,000 52,803,602

Continue...
Shl khar
Happysurance




Shikhar Insurance Company Ltd.

Notes to the Financial Statements
For The Year Ended Ashad 32, 2079 (July 16, 2022)

Fig. in NPR
Information Relating to Associates
Particulars Current Year | Previous Year | Current Year | Previous Year
Name Machhapuchchhre Capital Limited Kriti Venture Fund
Place of Business Kathmandu Kathmandu
Accounting Method Equity Equity
% of Ownership 3.97% 3.97% 20.00% 20.00%
Current Assets
i) Cash and Cash Equivalents 6,644,612 42,127,676 574,542 7,289,881
i) Other Assets 206,036,732 213,235,980 62,894,633 4,879,398
Non-Current Assets 99,397,721 74,645,607 147,240,471 199,394,422
Current Liabilities
i) Financial Liabilities 787,752 6,957,318 387,785 880,013
i) Other Liabilities 17,592,572 11,274,343 - -
Non-Current Liabilities 2,102,915 4,683,102 - -
Revenue 58,536,261 61,171,566 - -
Interest Income - - 4,524,473 2,861,175
Depreciation and Amortization 1,010,139 1,437,189 - -
Interest Expenses 50,463 195,399 - 600,000
Other Expenses 54,767,688 25,739,103 5,059,907 4,088,193
Income Tax Expenses 1,079,644 9,596,690 (173,607) (456,755)
Net Profit or Loss from Continuing Operations 1,628,327 24,203,185 (361,827) (1,370,263)
Post tax profit or Loss form Discontinued Operations
Other Comprehensive Income - - - -
Total Comprehensive Income 1,628,327 24,203,185 (361,827) (1,370,263)
Company's share of profits - - - -
Net Profit or Loss 64,612 960,387 (72,365) (274,053)
Other Comprehensive Income - - - -
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Shikhar Insurance Company Ltd.

Notes to the Financial Statements

For The Year Ended Ashad 32, 2079 (July 16, 2022)

10 Investments

Fig. in NPR

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Investments measured at Amortised Cost

i) Investment in Preference Shares of Bank and Financial Institutions

i) Investment in Debentures

i) Investment in Bonds (Nepal Government/ NRB/ Guaranteed by Nepal Government)
iv) Fixed Deposit of "A" Class Financial Institutions

v) Fixed Deposit of Infrastructure Banks

vi) Fixed Deposits in "B" Class Financial Institutions

vii) Fixed Deposits in "C" Class Financial Institutions

viii) Others Debentures of Public Company

Less: Impairment Losses

Investments measured at FVTOCI
i) Investment in Equity Instruments
i) Investment in Mutual Funds

iii) Investment in Debentures

iv) Others (to be Specified)

Investments measured at FVTPL

i) Investment in Equity Instruments
i) Investment in Mutual Funds

iii)  Others

Investment in Gratuity Fund (CIT)
Seed Money in Micro Insurance Pool

663,281,000

616,555,000

Total

2,319,748,000 1,760,500,000
354,000,000 242,600,000
46,000,000 40,500,000
566,263,611 439,638,506
21,932,612 31,985,659
13,644,249 13,516,733
1,390,689 1,390,689
3,986,260,161 3,146,686,587

a) Details of Impairment Losses

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Investment in Preference Shares of Bank and Financial Institutions

Investment in Debentures

Investment in Bonds (Nepal Government/ NRB/ Guaranteed by Nepal Government)
Fixed Deposit with "A" Class Financial Institutions

Fixed Deposit with Infrastructure Bank

Fixed Deposits with "B" Class Financial Institutions

Fixed Deposits with "C" Class Financial Institutions

Others (Investment in Associates)

9,100,000

Total

9,100,000

Impairment of investment of Nrs 9,100,000 is related to loss provision booked as per the directive of Nepal
Insurance Authority for Investment made in Machhapuchhre Capital Ltd, shares of which are not listed after 3

years from the date of investment.
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Shikhar Insurance Company Ltd.

Notes to the Financial Statements

For The Year Ended Ashad 32, 2079 (July 16, 2022)

b) Investments having expected maturities less than 12 months

Fig. in NPR

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Investment in Equity Instruments (Quoted)
Investment in Equity Instruments (Unquoted)
Investment in Mutual Funds

Investment in Preference Shares of Bank and Financial Institutions
Investment in Debentures

Investment in Bonds

Fixed Deposit with "A" Class Financial Institutions
Fixed Deposit with Infrastructure Bank

Fixed Deposits with "B" Class Financial Institutions
Fixed Deposits with "C" Class Financial Institutions
Others (to be specified)

189,309,601
376,954,010
21,932,612

2,319,748,000

354,000,000
46,000,000

334,807,561
104,830,945
31,985,659

1,760,500,000

242,600,000
40,500,000

Total

3,307,944,223

2,515,224,165

c) The Company has earmarked investments amounting to NPR 2,360,111,000 to Insurance

Board.

11 Loans

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Loans at Amortised Cost
Loan to Associates

Loan to Employees

Loan to Agent

Others (to be specified)
Less: Impairment Losses

Total

a) Expected recovery period within 12 months

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Loan to Associates
Loan to Employees
Loan to Agent

Others (to be specified)

Total

12 Reinsurance Assets

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Reinsurance Assets on:
Unearned Premiums

Provision for Premium Deficiency
IBNR and IBNER Claim
Outstanding Claims

Margin For Adverse Deviation
Less: Impairment Losses

1,968,068,933

243,110,184
2,015,009,886
12,155,513

1,521,368,415

202,655,779
1,988,080,122
8,986,347

Total

4,238,344,516

3,721,090,663
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Shikhar Insurance Company Ltd.

Notes to the Financial Statements

For The Year Ended Ashad 32, 2079 (July 16, 2022)

13 Insurance Receivables

Fig. in NPR

Particulars Current Year | Previous Year
Receivable from Reinsurers 552,338,036 531,895,697
Receivable from Other Insurance Companies 333,908,944 272,858,499
Others (to be Specified) - -
Less: Impairment Losses (33,874,654) | (14,930,340)
Total 852,372,326 789,823,856

a) Expected recovery period within 12 months:

Particulars Current Year | Previous Year
Receivable from Reinsurers 552,338,036 531,895,697
Receivable from Other Insurance Companies 333,908,944 272,858,499
Others (to be Specified) - -
Total 886,246,980 804,754,196

14 Other Assets

Particulars Current Year | Previous Year
Capital Advances - -
Prepaid Expenses 13,021,362 13,630,437
Claim Advance 120,106,815 140,216,741
Advance To Suppliers - -
Staff Advances 32,234,288 26,128,568
VAT Receivable - -
Printing and Stationery Stock - -
Stamp Stock - -
Deferred Expenses - -
Deferred Re-Insurance Commission Expenses - -
Deferred Agent Commission Expenses 8,951,792 8,952,159
Finance Lease Receivable - -
Less: Impairment Losses - -
Others (Receivable for Covid 19 Insurance) 224,127,203 182,300,652
Total 398,441,460 371,228,557
Continue...
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Shikhar Insurance Company Ltd.

Notes to the Financial Statements

For The Year Ended Ashad 32, 2079 (July 16, 2022)

a) Expected to be recovered/ settled within 12 months

Fig. in NPR

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Capital Advances

Prepaid Expenses

Claim Advance

Advance To Suppliers

Staff Advances

VAT Receivable

Printing and Stationery Stock

Stamp Stock

Deferred Expenses

Deferred Re-Insurance Commission Expenses
Deferred Agent Commission Expenses
Finance Lease Receivable

Others (Receivable for Covid 19 Insurance)
Total

13,021,362 13,630,437
120,106,815 140,216,741
32,234,288 26,128,568
8,951,792 8,952,159
224,127,203 182,300,652
398,441,460 371,228,557

15 Other Financial Assets

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Security Deposits

Accrued Interest

Other Receivables

Other Deposits

Sundry Debtors

Others

Bank Guarantee Margin
Receivable against sale of share
Less: Impairment Losses

Total

30,020,024 | 29,575,406
313,648,064 | 162,965,203
45,414,244 | 40,973,872
4,258,927 8,191,603
1,202,116 675,889

-| 15,803,471
(2,115,898)|  (2,115,898)
392,427,477| 256,069,546

a) Expected maturities within 12 months

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Security Deposits

Accrued Interest

Other Receivables

Other Deposits

Sundry Debtors

Other

Bank Guarantee Margin
Receivable against sale of share
Total

30,020,024 29,575,406
311,532,166 160,849,305
45,414,244 40,973,872
4,258,927 8,191,603
1,202,116 675,889

- 15,803,471
392,427,477 | 256,069,546
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Shikhar Insurance Company Ltd.

Notes to the Financial Statements

For The Year Ended Ashad 32, 2079 (July 16, 2022)

16 Cash and Cash Equivalents

Fig. in NPR

Particulars Current Year | Previous Year
Cash In Hand 96,256 7,816
Cheques In Hand - -
Bank Balances

i) Balance with "A" Class Financial Institutions 267,151,516 273,669,881
i) Balance with "B" Class Financial Institutions 35,710,774 60,077,634
iii) Balance with "C" Class Financial Institutions 12,081,072 17,518,210
Less: Impairment Losses - -
Deposit with initial maturity upto 3 months - -
Others - Gold Coin 1,020,985 939,110
Less: Impairment Losses - -
Total 316,060,603 352,212,651

17 (a) Share Capital

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Ordinary Shares

As at Ashad 31, 2078
Additions during the year
i) Bonus Share Issue
i) Right Share Issue

1,758,524,000

527,557,200

1,057,310,600

384,020,200
317,193,200

As at Ashad 32, 2079

2,286,081,200

1,758,524,000

Convertible Preference Shares (Equity Component Only)
As at Ashad 31, 2078

Additions during the year

As at Ashad 32, 2079

Irredeemable Preference Shares (Equity Component Only)
As at Ashad 31, 2078

Additions during the year

As at Ashad 32, 2079

Total

2,286,081,200

1,758,524,000

(i) Ordinary Shares

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Authorised Capital:

40,000,000 Equity Share @ Rs. 100
Issued Capital:

22,860,812 Equity Share @ Rs. 100
Subscribed and Paid Up Capital:
22,860,812 Equity Share @ Rs. 100

4,000,000,000

2,286,081,200

2,286,081,200

4,000,000,000

2,286,081,200

1,758,524,000

Total

2,286,081,200

1,758,524,000
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Shikhar Insurance Company Ltd.

Notes to the Financial Statements

For The Year Ended Ashad 32, 2079 (July 16, 2022)

(ii) Preference Share Capital

Fig. in NPR

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Authorised Capital:

........ Convertible Preference Shares of Rs. ...
........ Irredeemable Preference Shares of Rs. ..

Issued Capital:

........ Convertible Preference Shares of Rs. ...
........ Irredeemable Preference Shares of Rs. ..

Subscribed and Paid Up Capital:

........ Convertible Preference Shares of Rs. ...
........ Irredeemable Preference Shares of Rs. ..

each
. each

each
. each

each
. each

Shareholding Structure of Share Capital

Number of Shares

Percentage

Current Year

Current Year

Previous Year

Current Year

Previous Year

Promoters
Government of Nepal

2,026,155

1,373,225

Nepali Organized Institutions 8.86% 7.81%
Nepali Citizen 9,632,859 7,595,248 42.14% 43.19%
Foreigner - - - -
Others (to be Specified) - - - -
Total (A) 11,659,014 8,968,473 51.00% 51.00%
Other than Promotors

General Public 11,201,798 8,616,767 49.00% 49.00%
Others (to be Specified) - - - -
Total (B) 11,201,798 8,616,767 49.00% 49.00%
Total (A+B) 22,860,812 17,585,240 100.00% 100.00%

Details of shares held by shareholders holding more than 1% of the aggregate shares in the Company:

Number of Shares

Percentage

Current Year

Current Year

Previous Year

Current Year

Previous Year

Bikash Jung Bahadur Rana
Buddha Air Pvt. Ltd.
Gaurav Agrawal

Kailash Prasad Sirohiya
Pabitra Kumar Karki
Shekhar Basnet

Rajendra Prasad Shrestha
Lomash Investment Pvt. Ltd.
Jitendra Baheti

Kiran Prakash Pandey
Pawan Kumar Agrawal
Shashikanta Agrawal
Chanda Sherpa

Birendra Bahadur Basnet

922,965
1,412,163
2,817,418

838,556

383,131

239,464

834,013

613,992

332,893

276,684

393,947

989,523
1,524,472

423,650

1,211,787
1,412,163
1,951,496
666,515
294,716
184,203
641,548
472,301
281,849
289,208
303,036
780,677
1,260,695

4.04%
6.18%
12.32%
3.67%
1.68%
1.05%
3.65%
2.69%
1.46%
1.21%
1.72%
4.33%
6.67%
1.85%

6.89%
8.03%
11.10%
3.79%
1.68%
1.05%
3.65%
2.69%
1.60%
1.64%
1.72%
4.44%
7.17%
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Shikhar Insurance Company Ltd.

Notes to the Financial Statements

For The Year Ended Ashad 32, 2079 (July 16, 2022)

17 (b) Share Application Money Pending Allotment

Fig. in NPR

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Share Application Money Pending Allotment
Total

17 (c) Share Premium

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

As at Ashad 31, 2078

Increase due to issue of shares at premium
Decrease due to issue of bonus sharess
Transaction costs on issue of share

Others (to be Specified)

As at Ashad 32, 2079

95,712,963.00
65,189,676.00

95,712,963.00

160,902,639.00

95,712,963.00

17 (d) Insurance Fund

Particulars Current Year | Previous Year
As at Ashad 31, 2078 1,210,908,307 | 1,057,310,600
Additions 124,941,111 153,597,707
Utilizations - _

As at Ashad 32, 2079

1,335,849,418

1,210,908,307

17 (e) Catastrophe Reserves

Particulars Current Year | Previous Year
As at Ashad 31, 2078 110,818,388 132,381,113
Additions 14,851,353 15,776,807
Utilizations -|  (37,339,532)
As at Ashad 32, 2079 125,669,741 110,818,388
Shi khar
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Shikhar Insurance Company Ltd.

Notes to the Financial Statements

For The Year Ended Ashad 32, 2079 (July 16, 2022)

17 (f) Retained Earnings

Fig. in NPR

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

As at Ashad 31, 2078

Net Profit or Loss

Items of OCI recognised directly in retained earnings
Remeasurement of Post-Employment Benefit Obligations
Revaluation of Property, Plant and Equipment/ Intangible Assets
ransfer to/ from reserves

Capital Reserves

Insurance Fund

Catastrophe Reserves

Insurance Reserves

Regulatory Reserves

Fair Value Reserves

Actuarial Reserves

Revaluation Reserves

Deferred Tax Reserves

Depreciation on Revaluation of Property, Plant and Equipment
On Disposal of Revalued Property, Plant and Equipment
On Disposal of Equity Instruments Measured at FVTOCI
Share Premium

Issue of Bonus Shares

Transaction costs on issue of share

Dividend Paid

Dividend Distribution Tax

Others- Prior Period Expenses

As at Ashad 32, 2079

186,621,189 | 428,319,186
263,923,452 311,987,941
5,278,000 13,195,000

(124,941,111)
(14,851,353)

(153,597,707)
21,562,725
(622,162)

(5,278,000)|  (13,195,000)
(39,459,624)|  (14,333,286)
-| (384,020,200)
(2,498,958)|  (2,463,719)
-l (20,211,589)
(1,636,489) -
267,157,106 186,621,189

17 (g) Other Equity

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Capital Reserves
Insurance Reserves

622,162

622,162

Regulatory Reserves
Fair Value Reserves - -
Actuarial Reserves (5,216,299) -
Revaluation Reserves 395,777,083 390,499,083
Cash Flow Hedge Reserves - -
Other Reserves
Deferred Tax Reserve 129,355,730 89,896,106
Total 520,538,676 481,017,351
S hi kKhar
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Shikhar Insurance Company Ltd.

Notes to the Financial Statements

For The Year Ended Ashad 32, 2079 (July 16, 2022)

18 Provisions

Fig. in NPR

Particulars Current Year | Previous Year
Provisions for employee benefits
i) Provision for Leave 29,697,441 26,345,786
i) Defined Benefits Plan - -
iii) Termination Benefits - -
iv) Other employee benefit obligation
Bonus Provision 91,578,363 50,774,642
Gratuity 40,058,242 40,058,242
Provision for tax related legal cases - -
Provision for non-tax legal cases - -
Others 12,470,694 3,370,694
Total 173,804,740 | 120,549,364
(a) Additional Disclosure under of Provisions
Additions Utilised Reversed | Unwinding

. Opening | During the | During the | During the of Closing

Description Balance Year Year Year Discount | Balance

Provision for tax related
legal cases - - -

Provision for non-tax
legal cases - - -

(b) Provision with expected payouts within 12 months

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Provisions for employee benefits

i) Provision for Leave

i) Defined Benefits Plan

iii) Termination Benefits

iv) Other employee benefit obligation
Bonus Provision

Provision for tax related legal cases
Provision for non-tax legal cases
Others

3,895,282

91,578,363

1,816,736

50,774,642

Total

95,473,645

52,591,378

19 Gross Insurance Contract Liabilities

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Unearned Premiums
Premium Deficiency

IBNR and IBNER
Outstanding Claims

Margin For Adverse Deviation

2,629,053,695
1,038,992
509,554,513
2,232,130,557
25,302,290

2,145,870,591
930,180
456,699,327
2,188,758,096
21,688,523

Total

5,397,080,047

4,813,946,717

Continue...
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Shikhar Insurance Company Ltd.

Notes to the Financial Statements
For The Year Ended Ashad 32, 2079 (July 16, 2022)

20 Insurance Payables

Fig. in NPR

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Payable to Reinsurers

Payable to Other Insurance Companies
Others (to be Specified)

Total

204,852,998 16,619,115
40,259,186 117,694,260
245,112,184 134,313,375

Payable within 12 months

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Payable to Reinsurers

Payable to Other Insurance Companies
Others (to be Specified)

Total

204,852,998 16,619,115
40,259,186 117,694,260
245,112,184 | 134,313,375

21 Current Tax (Assets)/ Liabilities (Net)

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Income Tax Liabilities
Income Tax Assets
Total

141,847,500 | 149,434,051
242,072,581 | 215,051,036
(100,225,081) | (65,616,985)

22 Loans and Borrowings

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Bond

Debenture

Term Loan - Bank and Financial Institution
Bank Overdraft

Others (to be Specified)

Total

200,228,619

216,548,738

200,228,619

216,548,738

Payable within 12 months

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Bond

Debenture

Term Loan - Bank and Financial Institution
Bank Overdraft

Others (to be Specified)

Total

200,228,619

216,548,738

200,228,619

216,548,738
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Shikhar Insurance Company Ltd.

Notes to the Financial Statements

For The Year Ended Ashad 32, 2079 (July 16, 2022)

23 Other Financial Liabilities

Fig. in NPR

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Redeemable Preference Shares
Irredemable Cumulative Preference Shares
Payable to Agent

Refundable Share Application Money
Payable to Insured

Lease Liability

Sundry Creditors

Retention and deposits

Short-term employee benefits payable
i) Salary Payable

ii) Bonus Payable

iii) Other employee benefit payable
Audit Fee Payable

Others (to be Specified)

Total

9,903,188 15,214,545
209,000 209,000
98,616,788 -
62,413,160 36,500,001
8,772,313 9,243,282
20,459,215 23,993,627
362,375 362,375
200,736,039 85,522,830

Payable within 12 months

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Redeemable Preference Shares
Irredemable Cumulative Preference Shares

Payable to Agent 9,903,188 636,502
Refundable Share Application Money 209,000 209,000
Payable to Insured - -
Lease Liability 98,616,788
Sundry Creditors 62,413,160 36,500,001
Retention and deposits - -
Short-term employee benefits payable
i) Salary Payable - -
ii) Bonus Payable 8,772,313 9,243,282
iii) Other employee benefit payable 20,459,215 23,993,627
Audit Fee Payable 362,375 362,375
Others (to be Specified) - -
Total 200,736,039 70,944,787
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Shikhar Insurance Company Ltd.

Notes to the Financial Statements

For The Year Ended Ashad 32, 2079 (July 16, 2022)

24 Other Liabilities

Fig. in NPR

Particulars Current Year | Previous Year
TDS Payable 23,220,836 18,062,383
VAT Payable 31,604,604 66,435,743
Dividend Payable - -
Deposit Premium - 1,527,547
Deferred Commission Income 232,742,282 167,185,186
Insurance Service Fee Payable 46,382,472 38,972,376
Deferred Income - -
Others (to be specified) - -
Total 333,950,194 292,183,235

Payable within 12 months

Particulars Current Year | Previous Year
TDS Payable 23,220,836 18,062,383
VAT Payable 31,604,604 66,435,743
Dividend Payable - -
Deposit Premium - -
Deferred Commission Income 232,742,282 167,185,186
Insurance Service Fee Payable 46,382,472 38,972,376
Deferred Income - -
Others (to be specified) - -
Total 333,950,194 290,655,688

25 Gross Earned Premiums

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Direct Premiums
Facultative Inward Premiums

Gross Change in Unearned Premiums

Total

4,666,522,757
209,303,708
(483,183,104)

3,701,230,576
219,996,593
(167,141,260)

4,392,643,361

3,754,085,910
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Shikhar Insurance Company Ltd.

Notes to the Financial Statements

For The Year Ended Ashad 32, 2079 (July 16, 2022)

26 Premiums Ceded

Fig. in NPR

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Premiums Ceded to Reinsurers

Reinsurer's Share of Change in Unearned Premiums

Total

3,604,804,117
(446,700,518)

2,747,406,436
(147,938,406)

3,158,103,599

2,599,468,031

Portfolio-wise detail of Premiums Ceded to Reinsurers

Premiums Ceded to Reinsurer's Share of Change in
Reinsurers Unearned Premiums Premium Ceded
Particulars Current Year | Previous Year | Current Year | Previous Year | Current Year | Previous Year
Fire 1,042,956,591| 977,312,074 (32,822,259) (174,258,271)(1,010,134,332| 803,053,803
Motor 737,220,475 589,816,147 (73,702,164) (2,083,957) 663,518,311 587,732,190
Marine 215,524,583 167,628,983 (42,069,309) 61,539,824 173,455,274 | 229,168,807
Engineering 816,883,296| 219,949,190 |  (298,467,053) (23,862,751)| 518,416,243 | 196,086,439
Micro 882,409 61,093,776 30,048,746 55,936| 30,931,155 61,149,712
Aviation 117,733,259| 261,082,935 71,851,607 (5,911,128)| 189,584,866 255,171,808
Cattle and Crop 297,319,286| 182,368,084 (57,475,601) (46,979,884)| 239,843,685 135,388,200
Miscellaneous 376,284,218 288,155,247 (44,064,485) 43,561,825 332,219,733 | 331,717,072
Total 3,604,804,117 2,747,406,436| (446,700,518) (147,938,406) | 3,158,103,599 | 2,599,468,031

27 Net Earned Premiums

Previous Year

3,754,085,910
2,599,468,031
1,154,617,879

Current Year

4,392,643,361
3,158,103,599
1,234,539,762

Particulars

Gross Earned Premiums
Premiums Ceded
Total

Portfolio-wise detail of Net Earned Premiums

Gross Earned Premiums Premiums Ceded Net Earned Premiums
Particulars Current Year | Previous Year | Current Year Previous Year | Current Year | Previous Year
Fire 1,088,065,487| 910,773,837 | 1,010,134,332 803,053,803| 77,931,155| 107,720,034
Motor 1,514,287,834 | 1,474,061,938 663,518,311 587,732,190| 850,769,523 | 886,329,748
Marine 270,453,101 251,026,914 173,455,274 229,168,807 96,997,827 21,858,107
Engineering 561,440,541 196,422,780 518,416,243 196,086,439| 43,024,298 336,341
Micro 46,637,210 82,506,465 30,931,155 61,149,712 15,706,055 21,356,753
Aviation 203,014,751| 264,451,176 189,584,866 255,171,808 13,429,885 9,279,368
Cattle and Crop 299,889,896 168,810,751 239,843,685 135,388,200| 60,046,211 33,422,551
Miscellaneous 408,854,541 406,032,049 332,219,733 331,717,072| 76,634,808 74,314,977
Total 4,392,643,361( 3,754,085,910| 3,158,103,599 2,599,468,031(1,234,539,762 | 1,154,617,879

28 Commission Income

Particulars Current Year | Previous Year
Reinsurance Commission Income 691,791,133 511,510,830
Deferred Commission Income (65,557,096) (44,108,560)
Profit Commission 39,844,500 30,697,608
Others (to be Specified) - -
Total 666,078,537 498,099,878
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Shikhar Insurance Company Ltd.

Notes to the Financial Statements
For The Year Ended Ashad 32, 2079 (July 16, 2022)

29 Investment Income

Fig. in NPR

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Interest Income from Financial Assets Measured at Amortised Costs
i) Fixed Deposit with "A" Class Financial Institutions

i) Fixed Deposit with Infrastructure Bank

iii) Fixed Deposit with "B" Class Financial Institutions
iv) Fixed Deposit with "C" Class Financial Instituions

v) Debentures

vi) Bonds (Nepal Government/ NRB/ Guaranteed by Nepal Government)
vii) Preference Shares of Bank and Financial Institutions
viii) Bank Deposits other than Fixed Deposit

ix) Policyholder Loan

x) Agent Loan

xi) Employee Loan

xii) Other Interest Income (CIT Deposit)

Financial Assets Measured at at FVTOCI

i) Interest Income on Debentures

ii) Dividend Income

iii) Other Interest Income (to be specified)

Financial Assets Measured at at FVTPL

i) Dividend Income

i) Other Interest Income (to be specified)

Rental Income

Others

Total

143,800,752 137,380,747
22,061,014 21,214,222
3,211,307 4,011,451
61,629,531 52,930,237
- 349,000

4,033,902 6,398,385
1,016,436 645,924
7,648,182 2,026,499
17,341,997 17,030,045
260,743,121 241,986,510

30 Net Gains/ (Losses) on Fair Value Changes

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Changes in Fair Value of Financial Assets Measured at FVTPL

i) Equity Instruments

ii) Mutual Fund

i) Others (to be specified)

Changes in Fair Value on Investment Properties

Changes in Fair Value on Hedged ltems in Fair Value Hedges
Changes in Fair Value on Hedging Instruments in Fair Value Hedges
Gains/(Losses) of Ineffective Portion on Cash Flow Hedge

Others (to be specified)

Total

(4,180,308) 32,115,900
(9,020,948) 5,627,388
(13,201,256) 37,643,288

31 Net Realised Gains/ (Losses)

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Realised Gains/(Losses) on Derecognition of Financial Assets Measured at FVTPL
i) Equity Instruments

i) Mutual Fund

iii) Others (to be specified)

Realised Gains/(Losses) on Derecognition of Financial Assets at Amortised Costs
i) Debentures

ii) Bonds

iii) Others (to be specified)

Total

3,214,888 69,389,980
85,200 8,518,031
3,300,088 77,908,011

68hikhar
nsurance

appysmurance

| 198



Shikhar Insurance Company Ltd.

Notes to the Financial Statements

For The Year Ended Ashad 32, 2079 (July 16, 2022)

32 Other Income

Fig. in NPR

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Unwinding of discount on Financial Assets at Amortised Cost
i) Employee Loan

i) Bonds

i) Others (to be Specified)

Foreign Exchange Income

Interest Income from Finance Lease

Profit from disposal of Property, Plant and Equipment
Amortization of Deferred Income

Stamp Income

Others (Other Direct Income)

Management Income

Grant Income

Miscellaneous Income

Total

597,565 (181,429)
14,397,703 7,009,070
54,587,305 25,395,644
69,582,573| 32,223,285

33 Gross Claims Paid

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Gross Claims Paid

2,381,582,017

2,203,988,377

Total

2,381,582,017

2,203,988,377

34 Claims Ceded

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Claims Ceded to Reinsurers

1,340,833,187

1,311,409,304

Total

1,340,833,187

1,311,409,304

Portfolio-wise detail of Gross Claims Paid and Claims Ceded

Particulars Current Year | Previous Year | Current Year Previous Year Current Year Previous Year
Fire 498,823,656 143,810,910 395,779,999 108,538,654 103,043,657 35,272,256
Motor 1,056,590,705 811,660,853 288,148,367 209,566,969 768,442,338 602,093,884
Marine 103,408,226 40,935,913 91,101,087 35,717,672 12,307,139 5,218,241
Engineering 113,510,382 87,455,953 108,194,388 78,650,682 5,315,994 8,805,271
Micro 42,237,551 711,313,511 41,826,551 632,135,468 411,000 79,178,043
Aviation - - - - - -
Cattle and Crop 233,415,268 141,998,987 186,646,812 112,947,323 46,768,456 29,051,664
Miscellaneous 333,596,229 266,812,250 229,135,983 133,852,536 104,460,246 132,959,714
Total 2,381,582,017 | 2,203,988,377| 1,340,833,187 1,311,409,304 1,040,748,830 892,579,073
Sh | khar
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Shikhar Insurance Company Ltd.

Notes to the Financial Statements
For The Year Ended Ashad 32, 2079 (July 16, 2022)

35 Change in Contract Liabilities

Particulars

(a) Gross Change in Contract Liabilities
Change in Contract Outstanding Claim
Change in IBNR and IBNER
Change in Margin for Adverse Deviation (MAD)
Change in Provision for Premium Deficiency
Total Gross Change in Contract Liabilities

(b) Change in Reinsurance Assets

Change in Reinsurance Assets Created on Outstanding Claim Provisions

Change in Reinsurance Assets Created on IBNR and IBNER

Change in Reinsurance Assets Created on Margin for Adverse Deviation (MAD)
Change in Reinsurance Assets Created on Provision for Premium Deficiency

Total Change in Reinsurance Assets
Net Change in Contract Liabilities

Fig. in NPR
Current Year | Previous Year
43,372,461 1,508,609,136
52,855,186 1,355,323
3,613,767 (816,412)
108,812 930,180
99,950,226 1,510,078,227
26,929,764 1,493,971,154
40,454,405 (7,877,695)
3,169,166 (1,465,581)
70,553,335 1,484,627,878
29,396,891 25,450,349

Portfolio-wise detail of Net Change in Contract Liabilities

Gross Change in Change in Net Change in
Contract Liabilities Reinsurance Assets Contract Liabilities
Particulars Current Year | Previous Year | Current Year Previous Year Current Year Previous Year
Fire 166,471,961 259,559,881 130,789,876 263,017,976 35,682,085 (3,458,095)
Motor 56,525,639 (16,272,806) 72,453,719 (56,710,567) (15,928,080) 40,437,761
Marine 4,705,663 1,826,961 3,098,659 2,896,616 1,607,004 (1,069,655)
Engineering 26,606,103 (52,214,918) 26,963,214 (42,640,834) (357,111) (9,574,084)
Micro (114,490,166) | 1,297,856,113 | (114,963,931) 1,298,488,528 473,765 (632,415)
Aviation (47,381,172) 4,498,944 (45,629,700) 3,756,403 (1,751,472) 742,541
Cattle and Crop 9,827,796 8,103,010 6,845,070 7,318,950 2,982,726 784,060
Miscellaneous (2,315,598) 6,721,042 (9,003,572) 8,500,806 6,687,974 (1,779,764)
Total 99,950,226 | 1,510,078,227 70,553,335 1,484,627,878 29,396,891 25,450,349

36 Commission Expenses

Particulars Current Year | Previous Year
Commission Expenses on Direct Insurance Contracts 25,697,596 27,509,528
Commission Expenses on Reinsurance Accepted 927,211 -
Deferred Commission Expenses 367 6,847,529
Others (to be specified) - -
Total 26,625,174 34,357,057

Continue...
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Shikhar Insurance Company Ltd.

Notes to the Financial Statements
For The Year Ended Ashad 32, 2079 (July 16, 2022)

37 Service Fees

Fig. in NPR

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Gross Service Fees
Reinsurer's Share of Service Fees
Total

48,758,266 39,212,271
36,048,042 27,474,064
12,710,224 11,738,207

Portfolio-wise detail of Service Fees

Gross Service Fees Reinsurer's Share of Service Fees Net Service Fees
Particulars Current Year | Previous Year | Current Year Previous Year Current Year Previous Year
Fire 11,061,813 10,699,497 10,429,566 9,773,121 632,247 926,376
Motor 15,334,232 14,951,525 7,372,205 5,898,161 7,962,027 9,053,364
Marine 3,617,156 1,921,558 2,155,246 1,522,385 1,461,910 399,173
Engineering 9,027,240 2,201,571 8,168,833 2,199,492 858,407 2,079
Micro 44,952 893,486 8,824 610,938 36,128 282,548
Aviation 1,368,548 2,674,070 1,177,333 2,610,829 191,215 63,241
Cattle and Crop 3,716,105 2,281,693 2,973,193 1,823,681 742,912 458,012
Miscellaneous 4,588,220 3,588,871 3,762,842 3,035,457 825,378 553,414
Total 48,758,266 39,212,271 36,048,042 27,474,064 12,710,224 11,738,207

38 Employee Benefits Expenses

Particulars Current Year | Previous Year
Salaries 308,349,465 262,646,726
Defined Benefit Plans

i) Gratuity - -
i) Leave Benefit 11,581,064 17,677,656
Defined Contribution Plans

i) Provident Fund 23,904,387 8,929,893
ii) Gratuity 5,621,717 7,798,557
Leave Encashments - -
Termination Benefits - -
Dashain Allowance 22,329,676 20,870,425
Other Allowance 19,571,991 16,800,335
Training Expenses 7,805,870 1,470,153
Uniform Expenses 4,518,047 2,062,273
Medical Expenses - -
Staff Insurance Expenses 10,061,270 10,574,518
Staff Welfare 14,527,128 7,497,503
Bonus 40,803,721 50,774,642
Others (To be specified) 740,724 834,796
Total 469,815,060 407,937,477

39 Depreciation & Amortization Expenses

Particulars

Depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipment (Refer Note 5)
Depreciation on Investment Properties (Refer Note 6)
Amortization of Intangible Assets (Refer Note 4)

Total

Current Year | Previous Year
51,530,593 19,303,219
3,552 873,207
51,534,145 20,176,426
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Shikhar Insurance Company Ltd.

Notes to the Financial Statements

For The Year Ended Ashad 32, 2079 (July 16, 2022)

40 Impairment Losses

Fig. in NPR

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Impairment Losses on PPE, Investment Properties and Intangible Assets
i) Property, Plant and Equipment

ii) Investment Properties

iii) Intangible Assets

Impairment Losses on Financial Assets
i) Investment

i) Loans

iii) Other Financial Assets

iv) Cash and Cash Equivalent

v) Others (to be Specified)

Impairment Losses on Other Assets

i) Reinsurance Assets

ii) Insurance Receivables

iii) Lease Receivables

iv) Others (to be Specified)

Total

9,100,000
18,944,314 14,930,340
28,044,314 | 14,930,340.00

41 Other Expenses

Particulars Current Year | Previous Year
Rent Expenses - 31,593,735
Electricity and Water 4,214,811 5,961,807
Repair & Maintenance
i) Building 27,505 362,213
ii) Vehicle 2,925,457 1,320,097
i) Office Equipments 1,439,225 896,946
iv) Others 3,035,873 2,694,999
Telephone & Communication 10,372,784 9,472,518
Printing & Stationary 15,290,030 13,707,774
Office Consumable Expenses 8,618,452 8,925,287
Travelling Expenses
i) Domestic 3,223,465 590,499
i) Foreign 946,823 -
Agent Training - -
Other Agent Expenses - -
Insurance Premium 5,679,798 4,270,162
Security Expenses 4,844,793 4,636,503
Legal and Consulting Expenses 17,223,497 12,503,137
Newspapers, Books and Periodicals 188,512 209,671
Advertisement & Promotion Expenses 19,497,251 20,155,333
Business Promotion 7,115,787 2,876,499
Guest Entertainment 3,064,820 2,965,436
Gift and Donations 2,332,356 3,893,167
Board Meeting Fees and Expenses
i) Meeting Allowances 1,980,000 2,546,000
ii) Other Allowances 765,919 722,861
Continue...
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Shikhar Insurance Company Ltd.

Notes to the Financial Statements

For The Year Ended Ashad 32, 2079 (July 16, 2022 )

Fig. in NPR
Particulars Current Year Previous
YearOther Committee/ Sub-committee Expenses
i) Meeting Allowances 1,937,400 1,545,000
ii) Other Allowances 201,892 400,252
Annual General Meeting Expenses - 3,490,963
Audit Related Expenses
i) Statutory Audit 325,000 325,000
ii) Tax Audit 75,000 75,000
ii) Long Form Audit Report 50,000 50,000
iv) Other Fees 780,760 911,838
v) Internal Audit 500,000 400,000
vi) Others 762,793 947,587
Bank Charges 883,156 1,307,214
Fee and Charges 2,873,789 2,499,470
Postage Charges 3,450,976 3,575,058
Others
a. Membership and subscription fees 451,330 162,500
b. Pooja expenses 584,214 596,415
c. Notice Expenses 955,801 1,015,457
d. Miscellaneous 2,008,779 884,539
e. Computer support service 2,897,471 4,653,679
f. Exchange loss - 2,389,747
g. CSR expense 1,609,515 -
h Cleaning Expenses 2,526,397 1,868,568
i. Vehicle Running Expenses 18,078,874 10,285,540
j.  Other direct expenses 17,338,929 11,986,789
Total 171,079,234 179,675,260

42 Finance Cost

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Unwinding of discount on Provisions

Unwinding of discount on Financial Liabilities at Amortised Costs
Interest Expenses - on Financial Liabilities at Amortised Costs

Interest Expenses - Lease

Interest expenses - Overdraft Loan
Others (to be specified)

Total

10,392,840 -
13,610,183 8,815,432
24,003,023 8,815,432
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Shikhar Insurance Company Ltd.

Notes to the Financial Statements

For The Year Ended Ashad 32, 2079 (July 16, 2022 )

43 Income Tax Expense

(a) Income Tax Expense

Fig. in NPR

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Current Tax

i) Income Tax Expenses for the Year

ii) Income Tax Relating to Prior Periods

Deferred Tax For The Year

i) Originating and reversal of temporary differences
ii) Changes in tax rate

iii) Recognition of previously unrecognised tax losses
iv) Write-down or reversal

v) Others (to be Specified)

Income Tax Expense

141,847,500 | 149,776,364

948,606 -
(39,486,067)| (19,988,287)
103,310,039 | 129,788,077

(b) Reconciliation of Taxable Profit & Accounting Profit

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Accounting Profit Before Tax

Applicable Tax Rate

Tax at the applicable rate on Accounting Profit

Add: Tax effect of expenses that are not deductible for tax purpose
i) Donation

ii) Inadmissible Expenses

iii) Unabsorbed repairs

iv) Depreciation as per books

v) Provision for leave

vi) Other Expeses

Less: Tax effect on exempt income and additional deduction
i) Dividend Income

ii) Provision written back

iii) Depreciation as per the Act

iv) (Profit) Loss on Sale of Fixed Asset

Less: Adjustments to Current Tax for Prior Periods

i) Additional tax for Prior Periods

Add/ (Less): Others

i) Adjustment for Profit as per NFRS and previous GAAP
i) Fine and Penalties

Income Tax Expense (Current)

Effective Tax Rate

367,233,491 441,776,018
30.00% 30.00%
110,170,047 132,532,805
699,707 1,167,950
583,251 349,487
36,365 78,508
8,752,291 7,730,935
2,434,599 1,703,424

- 4,479,102
(2,294,455) (607,950)
(4,479,102)|  (2,194,425)
(8,928,539)|  (7,661,615)
(143,228) 15,848
948,606 -
35,016,564 | 12,182,295
142,796,106 | 149,776,364
38.88% 33.90%

Income Tax Calculation is based on Profit as per previous GAAP so figures stated above are part of Financial

Statements prepared as per previous GAAP
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Shikhar Insurance Company Ltd.

Notes to the Financial Statements
For The Year Ended Ashad 32, 2079 (July 16, 2022)

Fig. in NPR
44 Employee Retirement Benefits

a) Post Employment Benefit - Defined Contribution Plans
For the year ended Ashad 32, 2079 (16th July, 2022 ) the company has recognised an amount of NPR.
29,526,104.00 as an expenses under the defined contribution plans in the Statement of Profit or Loss.

b) Post Employment Benefit - Defined Benefit Plans
For Defined Benefit Plans, the cost of providing benefits is determined using the Projected Unit Credit
Method, with Actuarial Valuations being carried out.

c) Total Expenses Recognised in the Statement of Profit or Loss

Home Leave Sick Leave

Particulars Current Year | Previous Year Current Year Previous Year

Current service cost 4,323,211 1,307,501 1,994,255 1,002,130
Past service cost - - = -
Net interest cost - - = -
a. Interest expense on defined benefit obligation (DBO) 1,282,035 687,453 731,008 362,491
b. Interest (income) on plan assets - - - -
c. Total net interest cost - - 5 -
Net Actuarial Losses/(Gains) Recognised during the period - 8,672,303 - 3,167,712
Defined benefit cost included in Statement of Profit or Loss 5,605,246 10,667,257 2,725,263 4,532,333

d) Remeasurement effects recognised in Statement of Other Comprehensive Income (OCI)

Home Leave Sick Leave

Particulars Current Year | Previous Year | Current Year Previous Year
a. Actuarial (gain)/ loss due to financial

assumption changes in DBO (2,552,890) - (1,223,745)
b. Actuarial (gain)/ loss due to experience on DBO 28,408,901 - 1,932,694
b. Actuarial (gain)/ loss due to demographic assumptions (19,400,630) - 287,526
d. Return on plan assets (greater)/ less than discount rate - -
Total actuarial (gain)/ loss included in OCI 6,455,381 - 996,475

e) Total cost recognised in Comprehensive Income

Home Leave Sick Leave
Particulars Current Year | Previous Year | Current Year Previous Year
Cost recognised in Statement of Profit or Loss 5,605,246 10,667,257 2,725,263 4,532,333
Remeasurements effects recognised in OCI 6,455,381 - 996,475 -
Total cost recognised in Comprehensive Income 12,060,627 10,667,257 3,721,738 4,532,333
f) Change in Defined Benefit Obligation
Home Leave Sick Leave
Particulars Current Year | Previous Year | Current Year Previous Year
Defined benefit obligation as at the beginning of the year 17,691,269 13,556,402 8,654,517 6,988,614
Service cost 4,323,211 1,307,501 1,994,255 1,002,130
Interest cost 1,282,035 687,453 731,008 362,491
Benefit payments from plan assets (9,741,837) (6,532,390) (2,688,873) (2,866,430)
Actuarial (gain)/ loss - financial assumptions (2,552,890) 8,672,303 (1,223,745) -
Actuarial (gain)/ loss - demographic assumptions (19,400,630) - 287,526 -
Actuarial (gain)/ Loss - experience 28,408,901 - 1,932,694 -
Defined Benefit Obligation As At Year End 20,010,059 17,691,269 9,687,382 5,486,805
Continue...
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Shikhar Insurance Company Ltd.

Notes to the Financial Statements
For The Year Ended Ashad 32, 2079 (July 15, 2022)

Fig. in NPR
g) Change in Fair Value of Plan Assets
Home Leave Sick Leave
Particulars Current Year | Previous Year Current Year Previous Year
Fair value of plan assets at end of prior year - - = -
Expected return on plan assets - - - -
Employer contributions - - - -
Participant contributions - - - -
Benefit payments from plan assets - - - -
Transfer in/ transfer out - - - -
Actuarial gain/ (loss) on plan assets - - - -
Fair value of Plan Assets At End of Year
h) Net Defined Benefit Asset/(Liability)
Home Leave Sick Leave
Particulars Current Year | Previous Year Current Year Previous Year
Defined Benefit Obligation 20,010,059 17,691,269 9,687,382 5,486,805
Fair Value of Plan Assets - - - -
(Surplus)/Deficit Recognised in Statement of
Financial Position 20,010,059 17,691,269 9,687,382 5,486,805
i) Expected Company Contributions for the Next Year
Home Leave Sick Leave
Particulars Current Year | Previous Year Current Year Previous Year
Expected company contributions for the next year - - - -
(Surplus)/Deficit Recognised in Statement of
Financial Position
j) Reconciliation of amounts in Statement of Financial Position
Home Leave Sick Leave
Particulars Current Year | Previous Year Current Year Previous Year
Net defined benefit liability/(asset) at prior year end 17,691,269 13,556,402 8,654,517 6,988,614
Defined benefit cost included in Statement of Profit or Loss 5,605,246 10,667,257 2,725,263 4,532,333
Total remeasurements included in OCI 6,455,381 - 996,475 -
Acquisition/ divestment - - - -
Employer contributions (9,741,837) (6,532,390) (2,688,873) (2,866,430)
Net defined benefit liability/(asset) 20,010,059 17,691,269 9,687,382 8,654,517

k) Reconciliation of Statement of Ot

her Comprehensive Income

Home Leave

Sick Leave

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Current Year

Previous Year

Cumulative OCI - (Income)/Loss, beginning of period
Total remeasurements included in OCI

6,455,381

996,475

Cumulative OCI - (Income)/Loss

6,455,381

996,475

Sh

Kk
n
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Shikhar Insurance Company Ltd.

Notes to the Financial Statements
For The Year Ended Ashad 32, 2079 (July 16, 2022)

Fig. in NPR
1) Current/Non - Current Liability
Home Leave Sick Leave
Particulars Current Year | Previous Year Current Year Previous Year
Current Liability 2,624,080 1,220,196 1,271,202 596,540
Non - Current Liability 17,385,979 16,471,073 8,416,179 8,057,977
Total 20,010,059| 17,691,269 9,687,381 8,654,517
m) Expected Future Benefit Payments
Home Leave Sick Leave
Particulars Current Year | Previous Year Current Year Previous Year
Within 1 year 2,886,489 - 1,398,323 -
Between 1-2 years 3,079,559 - 1,518,450 -
Between 2-5 years 7,554,801 - 3,652,265 -
From 6 to 10 30,431,324 - 14,492,078 -
Total 43,952,173 - 21,061,116 -
n) Plan assets
Home Leave Sick Leave
Particulars Current Year | Previous Year Current Year Previous Year
(% Invested) (% Invested) (% Invested) (% Invested)
Government Securities (Central and State) - - - -
Corporate Bonds (including Public Sector bonds) - - - -
Mutual Funds - - - -
Deposits - - - -
Cash and bank balances - - - -
Others (to be Specified) - - - -
Total - - - -
o) Sensitivity Analysis
Home Leave Sick Leave
Particulars Current Year | Previous Year Current Year Previous Year
Effect in Defined Benefit Obligation Due to 1%
Increase in Discount Rate 18,944,580 - 9,176,379 -
Effect in Defined Benefit Obligation Due to 1%
Decrease in Discount Rate 21,204,314 - 10,259,489 -
Effect in Defined Benefit Obligation Due to 1%
Increase in Salary Escalation Rate 21,213,396 - 10,263,364 -
Effect in Defined Benefit Obligation Due to 1%
Decrease in Salary Escalation Rate 18,918,506 - 9,164,292 -
Effect in Defined Benefit Obligation Due to 1%
Increase in Attrition Rate 20,010,059 - 9,764,541 -
Effect in Defined Benefit Obligation Due to 1%
Decrease in Attrition Rate 20,012,909 - 9,601,743 -
Continue...
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Shikhar Insurance Company Ltd.

Notes to the Financial Statements
For The Year Ended Ashad 32, 2079 (July 16, 2022)

Fig. in NPR
p) Assumptions

Particulars Home Leave Sick Leave

Discount Rate 10.00% 10.00%

Escalation Rate (Rate of Increase in Compensation Levels) 8.00% 8.00%

Attrition Rate (Employee Turnover) 8.50% 8.50%

Mortality Rate During Employment NALM 2009 NALM 2009

45 Insurance Risk

Insurance risk includes the risk of incurring higher claims costs than expected owing to the random nature
of claims, frequency and severity and the risk of change in the legal or economic conditions of insurance
or reinsurance cover. This may result in the insurer having either received too little premium for the risks it
has agreed to underwrite and hence has not enough funds to invest and pay claims, or that claims are in
excess of those expected.

The Company seeks to minimise insurance risk through a formalised reinsurance arrangement with an
appropriate mix and spread of business between classes of business based on its overall strategy. This is
complemented by observing formalised risk management policies.

The Company considers insurance risk to be a combination of the following components of risks:
a) Product development

b) Pricing

¢) Underwriting

d) Reinsurance

e) Claims Handling

f) Reserving

a) Product development:
The Company principally issues the following types of Non-Life Insurance contracts:
- Fire
- Motor
- Marine
- Engineering
- Micro
- Aviation
- Cattle and Crop
- Miscellaneous

The significant risks arising under the Non-Life Insurance portfolio emanates from changes in the climate
leading to natural disasters, behavioral trends of people due to changing life styles, the steady escalation
of costs in respect of spares in the auto industries.

The above risk exposure is mitigated by the diversification across a large portfolio of insurance contracts
and geographical areas. The variability of risks is improved by careful selection and implementation of
underwriting strategies, which are designed to ensure that risks are diversified in terms of type of risk
and level of insured benefits.

Furthermore, strict claim review policies to assess all new and ongoing claims, regular detailed review
of claims handling procedures and frequent investigation of possible fraudulent claims are put in place
to reduce the risk exposure of the Company. The Company further enforces a policy of actively managing
and promptly pursuing claims, in order to reduce its exposure to unpredictable future developments that
can negatively impact the business.

Continue...
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Shikhar Insurance Company Ltd.

Notes to the Financial Statements
For The Year Ended Ashad 32, 2079 (July 16, 2022)

Fig. in NPR

b) Pricing:
The pricing of an insurance product involves the estimation of claims, operational and financing costs
and the income arising from investing the premium received. The pricing process typically comprises
collecting data on the underlying risks to be covered, determining the pricing assumptions and the base
rate, setting the final premium rate, and monitoring the review of the appropriateness of pricing.

The Company collects adequate data to validate the reasonableness of the underlying assumptions
used for pricing. The base rate represents the amount required to meet the value of anticipated benefits,
expenses, and margins for risks and profit. Data primarily relates to the company's own historical
experience and that of the industry where relevant. These may be supplemented by other internal and
external data, and could include trends observed in claims costs and expenses.

Pricing is done by modelling all identified risks, using appropriate methodologies depending on the
complexity of the risks and available data. Adequate buffers are kept in the premiums to cushion against
the risk that actual experience may turn out to be worse than expected.

¢) Underwriting:
The Company’s underwriting process is governed by the by the internal underwriting procedures. Some
of the actions undertaken to mitigate underwriting risks are detailed below:

i) Investments are made on the training and development of underwriting and claims management
staff, including those attached to the distribution network. \

ii) Application of Four-Eye principle on underwriting process.

iii) Pre-underwriting inspections are made on new business over a predetermined threshold to evaluate
risk prior to acceptance

iv) Post-underwriting reviews are conducted to ensure that set guidelines have been observed.

v) Adequate reinsurance arrangements are in place and reviews are undertaken to ensure the adequacy
of these covers

d) Reinsurance

The Company purchases reinsurance as part of its risks mitigation programme. Premium ceded to the
reinsurers is in accordance with the terms of the programmes already agreed based on the risks written
by the insurance companies. Recoveries from reinsurers on claims are based on the cession made in
respect of each risk and is estimated in a manner consistent with the outstanding claims provisions
made for the loss. Although we mitigate our exposures through prudent reinsurance arrangements, the
obligation to meet claims emanating from policy holders rests with the Company. Default of reinsurers
does not negate this obligation and in that respect the Company carries a credit risk up to the extent
ceded to each reinsurer.

e) Claims handling:
Some of the actions undertaken to mitigate claims risks is detailed below:
i) Claims are assessed immediately.

i) Assessments are carried out by in-house as well as independent assessors / loss adjustors working
throughout.

iii) The service of a qualified independent actuary is obtained annually to assess the adequacy of
reserves made in relation to Incurred But Not Reported (IBNR) and

iv) Incurred But Not Enough Reported (IBNER) claims.
v) Post-underwriting reviews are conducted to ensure that set guidelines have been observed.

vi) Adequate reinsurance arrangements are in place and reviews are undertaken to ensure the adequacy
of these covers
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Shikhar Insurance Company Ltd.

Notes to the Financial Statements
For The Year Ended Ashad 32, 2079 (July 16, 2022)

f) Reserving

Fig. in NPR

Insurance Contract Liabilities are created to cover this risk based on the actuarial valuation report.

The table below sets out the concentration of risk associated with above mentioned products. Risk as at year
end has been measured as insurance contract liabilities and disclosed as below:

Current Year Previous Year
Gross Gross
. Insurance | Reinsurance Net Insurance Reinsurance Net
Particulars Liabilities Assets Liabilities Liabilities Assets Liabilities
Fire 1,232,251,862| 1,131,789,198 100,462,664 | 1,047,664,084 968,177,063 79,487,021
Motor 1,315,213,073| 540,309,322 774,903,751| 1,239,552,078 394,153,439 845,398,639
Marine 409,824,715 304,918,676 104,906,039 313,856,571 259,750,708 54,105,863
Engineering 615,716,560 561,910,885 53,805,675 247,827,021 236,480,618 11,346,403
Micro 1,187,923,217| 1,185,237,739 2,685,478 1,344,555,425 1,330,250,416 14,305,009
Aviation 82,457,838 72,312,350 10,145,488 195,998,986 189,793,657 6,205,329
Cattle and Crop 223,855,525 173,654,665 50,200,860 142,307,125 109,333,994 32,973,131
Miscellaneous 329,837,257| 268,211,681 61,625,576 282,185,427 233,150,768 49,034,659
Total 5,397,080,047( 4,238,344,516| 1,158,735,531| 4,813,946,717 3,721,090,663 1,092,856,054

46 Fair Value Measurements

(i) Financial Instruments by Category & Hierarchy
This section explains the judgements and estimates made in determining the Fair Values of the Financial
Instruments that are (a) recognised and measured at fair value and (b) measured at Amortised Cost
and for which Fair Values are disclosed in the Financial Statements.
To provide an indication about the reliability of the inputs used in determining Fair Value, the Company
has classified its financial instruments into Three Levels prescribed as per applicable NFRS.
Current Year Previous Year
Particulars Level FVTPL FVOCI | Amortised Cost | FVTPL FVOCI | Amortised Cost
Investments
i) Investment in Equity Instruments 1,2and3 | 566,263,611 - 1439,638,506
ii) Investment in Mutual Funds 1 21,932,612 31,985,659
iii) Investment in Preference Shares of
Bank and Financial Institutions - -
iv) Investment in Debentures 663,281,000 616,555,000
v) Investment in Bonds (Nepal Government/
NRB/ Guaranteed by Nepal Government) - -
vi) Fixed Deposits - 2,719,748,000 - 2,043,600,000
vii) Others (to be specified) 1 15,034,938 14,907,422 -
Loans - - - -
Other Financial Assets - 392,427,477 - 256,069,546
Cash and Cash Equivalents 1 316,060,603 -1352,212,651 -
Total Financial Assets 919,291,764 3,775,456,477 (838,744,238 2,916,224,546
Loans and Borrowings - 200,228,619 - 216,548,738
Other Financial Liabilities 200,736,039 85,522,830
Total Financial Liabilities 400,964,658 302,071,568
Continue...
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Shikhar Insurance Company Ltd.
Notes to the Financial Statements
For The Year Ended Ashad 32, 2079 (July 16, 2022)
Fig. in NPR
Level 1 : Level 1 Hierarchy includes Financial Instruments measured using Quoted Prices.
Level 2 : Fair Value of Financial Instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined using
valuation techniques which maximises the use of observable market data and rely as little as

possible on entity-specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to determine Fair Value of an
instrument are observable, the instrument is included in Level 2.

Level 3 : If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is
included in Level 3.

There is no transfer of Financial Instruments between different levels as mentioned above during the year.

(i) Valuation Technique Used to Determine Fair Value
a) Use of quoted market prices or dealer quotes for similar instruments
b) Fair Value of remaining financial instruments is determined using discounted cash flow analysis

(iii) Valuation Process
The finance and accounts department of the Company performs the valuation of financial assets and liabilities
required for financial reporting purposes. Discussion on valuation processes and results are held at least
once in a year.
The main level 3 inputs are derived and evaluated as follows:
a) Discount rate is arrived at considering the internal and external factors.

b) Discounting has been applied where assets and liabilities are non-current, and the impact of the
discounting is material

(iv) Fair Value of Financial Assets and Liabilities Measured at Amortised Cost

Current Year Previous Year
Particulars Carrying Amount |  Fair Value Carrying Amount Fair Value

Investments
i) Investment in Preference Shares of Bank and
Financial Institutions - - - -
i) Investment in Debentures 663,281,000 663,281,000 616,555,000 | 616,555,000
iii) Investment in Bonds (Nepal Government/ NRB/
Guaranteed by Nepal Government) - - - -
iv) Fixed Deposit 2,719,748,000 | 2,719,748,000 2,043,600,000 | 2,043,600,000
v) Others (to be Specified) - - -
Loans
i) Loan to Associates - - - -
ii) Loan to Employees - - - -
v) Others (to be Specified) - - - -
Other Financial Assets 392,427 477 392,427 477 256,069,546 | 256,069,546

Total Financial Assets at Amortised Cost 3,775,456,477 | 3,775,456,477 2,916,224,546 | 2,916,224,546
Loans and Borrowings
i) Bond - - - -

ii) Debenture - - - -
iii) Term Loan - Bank and Financial Institution - - - -
iv) Bank Overdraft 200,228,619| 200,228,619 216,548,738 | 216,548,738

v) Others (to be Specified) - - - -
Other Financial Liabilities 200,736,039 | 200,736,039 85,522,830 85,522,830
Total Financial Liabilities at Amortised Cost 400,964,658 400,964,658 302,071,568 | 302,071,568

The fair values of the above financial instruments measured at amortised cost are calculated based on cash
flows discounted using current discount rate.

The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents are considered to be the same as their fair values, due to
their short-term nature.
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Shikhar Insurance Company Ltd.

Notes to the Financial Statements
For The Year Ended Ashad 32, 2079 (July 16, 2022)

Fig. in NPR
47 Financial Risk Management
The Company's activities expose it to Credit Risk, Liquidity Risk & Market Risk.

i) Credit Risk
Credit risk is the risk of financial loss as a result of the default or failure of third parties to meet their
payment obligations to the Company. Thus, for an insurance contract, credit risk includes the risk that
an insurer incurs a financial loss because a reinsurer defaults on its obligations under the reinsurance
contract.

The following policies and procedures are in place to mitigate the Company’s exposure to credit
risk:

a) Company has credit risk policy which sets out the assessment and determination of what constitutes
credit risk for the Company. Compliance with the policy is monitored and exposures and breaches
are reported to the Company’s risk committee. The policy is regularly reviewed for pertinence and
for changes in the risk environment.

b) Reinsurance is placed with counterparties that have a good credit rating and concentration of risk
is avoided by entering into agreement with more than one party. At each reporting date, management
performs an assessment of creditworthiness of reinsurers and updates the reinsurance purchase
strategy, ascertaining suitable allowance for impairment.

c) The company deals with only creditworthy counterparties and obtains sufficient collateral where
appropriate, as a means of mitigating the risk of financial loss from defaults.

Expected Credit Losses for Financial Assets at Amortised Costs as at Ashad 32, 2079

Gross Expected Carrying
. Asset | Carrying | Probability of| Expected |Amount After
Particulars Group | Amount Default | Credit Losses| Provision

Loss allowance
measured at 12 months
expected credit losses

Credit Risk has not significantly increased
since initial recognition

Credit Risk has significantly increased and

U Loss allowance
not credit impaired

measured at life-time
expected credit losses

Credit Risk has significantly increased and
credit impaired - - - R

Expected Credit Losses for Financial Assets at Amortised Costs as at Ashad 31, 2078

Gross Expected Carrying
) Asset | Carrying | Probability of| Expected |Amount After
Particulars Group | Amount Default | Credit Losses| Provision

Credit Risk has not significantly increased
since initial recognition

Credit Risk has significantly increased and
not credit impaired

Credit Risk has significantly increased and
credit impaired

Loss allowance
measured at 12 months
expected credit losses

Loss allowance
measured at life-time
expected credit losses
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Shikhar Insurance Company Ltd.

Notes to the Financial Statements
For The Year Ended Ashad 32, 2079 (July 16, 2022)

Reconciliation of Loss Allowance Provision

Fig. in NPR

Particulars

Measured at 12 months
expected credit losses

Measured at life-time expected credit losses

Credit Risk has
significantly increased
and not credit impaired

Credit Risk has
significantly increased
and credit impaired

Loss Allowance on Ashadh 31, 2078

Changes in loss allowances

Write-offs
Recoveries

Loss Allowance on Ashadh 32, 2079

ii) Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that an entity will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with financial
liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. In respect of catastrophic events there
is also a liquidity risk associated with the timing differences between gross cash out—flows and expected
reinsurance recoveries.

Maturity of Financial Liabilities:

The table below summarises the Company's Financial Liabilities into Relevant Maturity Groupings based
on their Contractual Maturities for all Financial Liabilities.

Current Year Previous Year
1 Year to More than 1 Year to More than
Particulars Upto 1 Year 5 Year 5 Year Upto 1 Year 5 Year 5 Year
Loans and Borrowings 200,228,619 - 216,548,738 - -
Other Financial Liabilities 200,736,039 - 85,522,830 - -
Total Financial Liabilities 400,964,658 302,071,568

iii) Market Risk

a1) Foreign Currency Risk Exposure
Foreign exchange risk is the potential for the Company to experience volatility in the value of its assets,
liabilities and solvency and to suffer actual financial losses as a result of changes in value between
the currencies of its assets and liabilities and its reporting currency. The Company does not maintain
foreign currency denominated assets in its investment portfolios and as such is not exposed to foreign
exchange risk related to investments.

Operation of the Company has exposed it to foreign exchange risk arising from foreign currency
transactions, with respect to the USD and Indian Rupees. The risk is measured through a forecast of
highly probable foreign currency cash flows. The objective of the hedges is to minimise the volatility
of the NPR cash flows of highly probable forecast transactions.
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Shikhar Insurance Company Ltd.

Notes to the Financial Statements
For The Year Ended Ashad 32, 2079 (July 16, 2022)

Fig. in NPR

The Company's exposure to foreign currency risk at the end of the reporting period expressed in NPR, are
as follows:

Current Year Previous Year

Particulars usb Indian Rupees usD Indian Rupees

Investments S - - -
Loans = - - -
Insurance Receivables - 480,583,819 | 140,990,191 390,905,906
Other Financial Assets = - .

Less: Derivative Assets
i) Foreign exchange forward contracts - Sell Foreign Currency - - - -
i) Foreign exchange option contracts - Sell Foreign Currency - - - -

Net Exposure to Foreign Currency Risk/ (Assets) - 480,583,819 [ 140,990,191 390,905,906
Insurance Payables 132,037,705 - -
Other Financial Liabilities =

Less: Derivative Liabilities
i) Foreign exchange forward contracts - Buy Foreign Currency - - - -
ii) Foreign exchange option contracts - Buy Foreign Currency -
Net Exposure to Foreign Currency Risk/ (Liabilities) 132,037,705

a2) Foreign Currency Risk - Sensitivity
The sensitivity of profit or loss to changes in the exchange rates arises mainly from foreign currency
denominated financial instruments and the impact on the other components of equity arising from
foreign forward exchange contracts, foreign exchange option contracts designated as cash flow hedges

Impact on profit after tax Impact on other component of equity
Particulars Current Year Previous Year | Current Year | Previous Year
USD sensitivity
NPR/ USD - Increases by 10% * (8,402,399) - (14,099,019) -
NPR/ USD - Decreases by 10% * 8,402,399 - 14,099,019 -
INR sensitivity
NPR/ Currency A - Increases by 10% * - - - -
NPR/ Currency A - Decreases by 10% * - - - -

* Holding all other variable constant

b1) Interest Rate Risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market interest rates.

The major interest rate risk that the Company is exposed to is the discount rate for determining insurance
liabilities.

b2) Interest Rate Sensitivity
Profit or Loss is sensitive to changes in Interest Rate for Borrowings. A change in Market Interest Level

by 1% which is reasonably possible based on Management's Assessment would have the following
effect on the Profit After Tax.

Particulars Current Year | Previous Year
Interest Rate - Increase By 1%* (1,458,721) (1,399,773)
Interest Rate - Decrease By 1%* 1,458,721 1,399,773

* Holding all other Variable Constant
Continue...
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Shikhar Insurance Company Ltd.

Notes to the Financial Statements
For The Year Ended Ashad 32, 2079 (July 16, 2022)

Fig. in NPR

c1) Equity Price Risk
Equity price risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in equity prices (other than those arising from interest rate risk or currency risk),
whether those changes are caused by factors specific to the individual financial instrument or its issuer,
or by factors affecting all similar financial instruments traded in the market.

The Company has invested in equity securities and the exposure is equity securities price risk from
investments held by the Company and classified in the statement of financial position as fair value
through OCI.

c2) Sensitivity
The table below summarises the impact of increase/decrease of the index in the Company’s equity
and impact on OCI for the period. The analysis is based on the assumption that the equity index had
increased/ decreased by 1% with all other variables held constant, and that all the Company's equity
instruments moved in line with the index.

Particulars Current Year | Previous Year

Interest Rate - Increase By 1%* - -
Interest Rate - Decrease By 1%* - -

* Other components of equity would increase/decrease as a result of gains/ (losses) on equity securities classified as fair
value through other comprehensive income.

48 Operation Risk

Operational Risk is the risk of direct or indirect loss, or damaged reputation resulting from inadequate or
failed internal processes, people and systems or external events. When controls fail to perform, operational
risks can cause damage to reputation, have legal or regulatory implications or can lead to financial loss.
The Company cannot expect to eliminate all operational risks, but by initiating a rigorous control framework
and by monitoring and responding to potential risks, the Company is able to manage the risks. Controls
include effective segregation of duties, access controls, authorisation and reconciliation procedures, staff
education and assessment processes, including the use of internal audit. Business risks such as changes
in environment, technology and the industry are monitored through the Company’s strategic planning and
budgeting process.

49 Capital Management
The Company's objectives when managing Capital are to:

a) Safeguard their ability to continue as a going concern so that they can continue to provide returns for
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders, and

b) Maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the amount of dividends paid
to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares.

Regulatory minimum paid up capital
Non-Life insurance companies were required by the Directive issued by Nepal Insurance Authority to attain
a stipulated minimum paid up capital of NPR 2.5 billion by Chaitra, 2079. As on the reporting date, the
company's paid up capital is NPR 2,28,60,81,200

Continue...
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Shikhar Insurance Company Ltd.

Notes to the Financial Statements

For The Year Ended Ashad 32, 2079 (July 16, 2022)

Dividend

Fig. in NPR

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

(i) Dividends recognised
Final dividend for the year ended Ashad 32, 2079 of NPR .../-

(Ashad 31, 2078 - NPR 38./-) per fully paid share

401,778,028

401,778,028

Dividends not recognised at the end of the reporting period

For the year ended the directors have recommended the payment
of a final dividend of NPR 16.8421/- per fully paid equity share
(Ashadh 31, 2078 - NPR 0 /-). This proposed dividend is subject to
the approval of shareholders in the ensuing annual general meeting.

(i)

385,024,082

385,024,082

50 Earnings Per Share

Particulars Current Year | Previous Year
Profit For the Year 263,923,452 311,987,941

Add: Interest saving on Convertible Bonds - -
Profit For the Year used for Calculating Diluted Earning per Share 263,923,452 311,987,941

Weighted Average Number of Equity Shares Outstanding During the

Year For Basic Earning per Share 18,871,612 17,185,490
Adjustments for calculation of Diluted Earning per Share:

i) Dilutive Shares - -
ii) Options - -
iii) Convertible Bonds - -
Weighted Average Number of Equity Shares Outstanding During the

Year for Diluted Earning Per Share 18,871,612 17,185,490
Nominal Value of Equity Shares - -
Basic Earnings Per Share 13.99 18.15
Diluted Earnings Per Share 13.99 18.15

51 Segmental Information

Segment information is presented in respect of the Company's business segments. Management of the
Company has identified portfolio as business segment and the Company's internal reporting structure is
also based on portfolio. Performance is measured based on segment profit as management believes that
it is most relevant in evaluating the results of segment relative to other entities that operate within these

industries.
Segment asset is disclosed below based on total of all asset for each business segment.

The Company operates predominantly in Nepal and accordingly, the Management of the Company is of
the view that the financial information by geographical segments of the Company’s operation is not necessary
to be presented.

Business Segments of the Company’s are:

i) Fire
i) Motor
iii) Marine
iv) Engineering
v) Micro
vi) Aviation
vii) Cattle and Crop
viii) Miscellaneous
Continue...
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Shikhar Insurance Company Ltd.

Notes to the Financial Statements
For The Year Ended Ashad 32, 2079 (July 16, 2022)

c¢) Reconciliation of Segmental Profit with Statement of Profit or Loss

Fig. in NPR

Particulars

Segmental Profit
Less: Depreciation and Amortization

Less: Non-cash expenses other than Depreciation and Amortization
Less: Unallocable Corporate Expenditures

Add: Unallocable Other Income
Less: Finance Cost
Profit Before Tax

Current Year | Previous Year
470,667,412 490,741,428
(51,534,145) (20,176,426)
(28,044,314) (14,930,340)

147,561 (5,043,212)
(24,003,023) (8,815,432)
367,233,491 441,776,018

d) Reconciliation of Assets

Particulars Current Year | Previous Year
Segment Assets 5,090,716,8424,510,914,519.00
Intangible Assets 996,448 -
Property, Plant and Equipment 779,675,638 661,237,904
Investment Properties - -
Deferred Tax Assets 129,355,730 89,896,106

Investments

Loans

Current Tax Assets (Net)

Other Assets and Other Financial Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents

Total Assets

4,039,211,324
100,225,081
790,868,937
316,060,603

3,199,490,189

65,616,985
627,298,103
352,212,651

11,247,110,603

9,506,666,457

e) Reconciliation of Liabilities

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Segment Liabilities
Provisions

Deferred Tax Liabilities
Current Tax Liabilities (Net)
Loans and Borrowings
Other Financial Liabilities
Other Liabilities

Total Liabilities

5,642,192,231

4,948,260,092

173,804,740

200,228,619
200,736,039
333,950,194

120,549,364

216,548,738
85,522,830
292,183,235

6,550,911,823

5,663,064,259
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Shikhar Insurance Company Ltd.

Notes to the Financial Statements
For The Year Ended Ashad 32, 2079 (July 16, 2022)

Fig. in NPR
52 Related Party Disclosure

(a) Identify Related Parties

Holding Company:
N.A.

Subsidiaries:
N.A.

Associates:
Machhapuchchhre Capital Limited
Kriti Venture Fund

Fellow Subsidiaries:
N.A.

Board of Director & Key Management Personnel:
Rajendra Prasad Shrestha - Chairperson

Saurav J.B. Rana - Director

Ramesh Kumar Luitel - Director

Dr. Shrujana Shrestha - Director

Dinesh Bajra Bajracharya - Director

Skand Amatya - Director

Dip Prakash Panday - Chief Executive Officer
Bimal Raj Nepal - General Manager
Pushkar Mahat - General Manager

Sabita Maskey - General Manager

(b) Key Management Personnel Compensation:

Particulars Current Year | Previous Year
Short-term employee benefits 10,336,396 13,988,255
Post-employment benefits - 595,741
Other long-term benefits 909,000 562,333
Termination benefits - -
Total 11,245,396 15,146,329

Payment to Chief Executive Officer (CEO)

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Annual salary and allowances 12,118,161 12,058,750
Performance based allowances
i) Employee Bonus - -
ii) Benefits as per prevailing provisions 7,044,267 4,904,448
iii) Incentives - -
Insurance related benefits
i) Life Insurance 461,428 461,428
ii) Accident Insurance 3,900 3,900
iii) Health Insurance (including family members) 8,400 8,400
Total 19,636,156 17,436,926
Continue...
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Shikhar Insurance Company Ltd.

Notes to the Financial Statements
For The Year Ended Ashad 32, 2079 (July 16, 2022)

(c) Related Party Transactions:

Fig. in NPR

Particulars

Holding
Company

Subsidiaries

Associates

Fellow
Subsidiaries

Key Managerial
Personnel

Total

Premium Earned
For The Year Ended Ashad 32, 2079 (July 16, 2022)
For The Year Ended Ashad 31, 2078 (July 15, 2021)

Commission Income
For The Year Ended Ashad 32, 2079 (July 16, 2022)
For The Year Ended Ashad 31, 2078 (July 15, 2021)

Rental Income
For The Year Ended Ashad 32, 2079 (July 16, 2022)
For The Year Ended Ashad 31, 2078 (July 15, 2021)

Interest Income
For The Year Ended Ashad 32, 2079 (July 16, 2022)
For The Year Ended Ashad 31, 2078 (July 15, 2021)

Sale of Property, Plant & Equipment
For The Year Ended Ashad 32, 2079 (July 16, 2022)
For The Year Ended Ashad 31, 2078 (July 15, 2021)

Purchase of Property, Plant & Equipment
For The Year Ended Ashad 32, 2079 (July 16, 2022)
For The Year Ended Ashad 31, 2078 (July 15, 2021)

Premium Paid
For The Year Ended Ashad 32, 2079 (July 16, 2022)
For The Year Ended Ashad 31, 2078 (July 15, 2021)

Commission Expenses
For The Year Ended Ashad 32, 2079 (July 16, 2022)
For The Year Ended Ashad 31, 2078 (July 15, 2021)

Dividend
For The Year Ended Ashad 32, 2079 (July 16, 2022)
For The Year Ended Ashad 31, 2078 (July 15, 2021)

Meeting Fees
For The Year Ended Ashad 32, 2079 (July 16, 2022)
For The Year Ended Ashad 31, 2078 (July 15, 2021)

Allowances to Directors
For The Year Ended Ashad 32, 2079 (July 16, 2022)
For The Year Ended Ashad 31, 2078 (July 15, 2021)

Others
For The Year Ended Ashad 32, 2079 (July 16, 2022)
For The Year Ended Ashad 31, 2078 (July 15, 2021)

3,271,800
3,691,000

3,271,800
3,691,000

(d) Related Party Balances:

Particulars

Holding
Company

Subsidiaries

Associates

Fellow
Subsidiaries

Key Managerial
Personnel

Total

Receivables including Reinsurance Receivables
As at Ashad 32,2079 (July 16, 2022)
As at Ashad 31,2078 (July 15, 2021)

Other Receivables
As at Ashad 32,2079 (July 16, 2022)
As at Ashad 31,2078 (July 15, 2021)

Payables including Reinsurance Payables
As at Ashad 32,2079 (July 16, 2022)
As at Ashad 31,2078 (July 15, 2021)

Other Payables
As at Ashad 32,2079 (July 16, 2022)
As at Ashad 31,2078 (July 15, 2021)

166,267
466,267

166,267
466,267
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Shikhar Insurance Company Ltd.

Notes to the Financial Statements
For The Year Ended Ashad 32, 2079 (July 16, 2022)

Fig. in NPR

53 Leases
(a) Leases as Lessee

(i) Operating Leases:

The Company has various operating leases ranging from 1 year to 10 years. The leases are renewable
by mutual consent and contain escalation clause.

Disclosure in respect of Non-cancellable lease is as given below

There is no non- cancellable lease as such . All the lease (rental agreements) can be cancelled by
serving the notice period as per the agreement.

Future Minimum Lease Payments Current Year | Previous Year

i) Not Later than 1 year - -
i) Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years - -
ii) Later than 5 years - -

(ii) Finance Lease:
The Company does not hold assets under finance leases.

Future Minimum Lease Payments Current Year | Previous Year

i) Not Later than 1 year - -
ii) Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years - -
ii) Later than 5 years - -
Total Future Minimum Lease Payments - -
Less: Effect of Discounting - -
Finance lease liability recognised = -

(b) Leases as Lessor

(i) Operating Lease:
The Company has leased out certain office spaces that are renewable on a periodic basis. Rental
income received during the year in respect of operating lease is NPR 17,341,997 (Ashad 31, 2078
NPR 17,030,045).

The Company building situated at Ward No.11, Thapathali, Kathmandu is 8.5 storied and the
comapny has leased out 4 stories for rental purpose.

Disclosure in respect of Non-cancellable lease is as given below

There is no non- cancellable lease as such . The lease (rental agreement) can be cancelled by
serving the notice period as per the agreement.

Future Minimum Lease Income Current Year | Previous Year

i) Not Later than 1 year - -
ii) Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years - -
ii) Later than 5 years - -
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Shikhar Insurance Company Ltd.

Notes to the Financial Statements
For The Year Ended Ashad 32, 2079 (July 16, 2022)

Fig. in NPR
(ii) Finance Lease:
The Company has not leased out its asset under Finance Lease.
Current Year Previous Year
) Gross Unearned Net Gross Unearned Net
Particulars Investment | Finance Income| Investment | Investment |Finance Income| Investment

i) Not Later than 1 year
ii) Laterthan 1 year and not later than 5 years -
iii) Later than 5 years

Total

54 Capital Commitments

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed and not provided for: No capital Commitments has

been made

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Intangible Assets

Property, Plant and Equipment
Investment Properties

Total

55 Contingent Liabilities

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Claims against Company not acknowledged as debts
a) Income Tax

b) Indirect Taxes

c) Other

Total

105,084,796 100,226,142
15,065,942 15,065,942
120,150,738 115,292,084

56 Events occuring after Balance Sheet
N/A

57 Assets Pledged as Security
The carrying amount of assets pledged as security are:

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Reinsurance Receivables
Investments in equity

Fixed Deposits

Property, plant and equipment
Others

Total

60,500,000 60,500,000
559,510,000 556,724,000
620,010,000 617,224,000

58 Miscellaneous

(i) All amounts are in Nepalese Rupees unless otherwise stated.

(ii) All figures are in the Nearest Rupee & Rounded off.
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A.

Shikhar Insurance Company Ltd.

Annexure Il

Minimum Disclosure in Management Report
(Year Ended Upto Ashadh 32, 2079)

Information related to Non Life Insurer

Under this title following matters shall be disclosed

1.

2
3.
4
5

Date of establishment: 2061/02/15

Insurer licence date: 2061/07/26

Insurance business type, nature: Non-life Insurance Business
Date of commencement of business: 2061/08/02

Other matters which insurer wish to include: Not available

Insurer's Board of Directors shall approve following matters

1.
2.

10.
1.

12.
13.
14.

15.
16.

Validity of license issued by Nepal Insurance Authority to carry insurance business is validated.

Tax, service charges, fine and penalties to be paid under laws & regulation is paid and no any dues
remains.

Share structure and changes if any in line with prevailing laws & regulation is made.
Solvency ratio as prescribed by Nepal Insurance Authority is maintained.

a) Assets that financial amount contained in SOFP are not overstated than it's fair value.

b) The assets recognized in financial statements is based upon expert's advice.
Investment made are in line with prevailing laws.

Number of claim settled within the year is 16,312 and number of outstanding claim is 13,340.

The provision of Insurance Act, Insurance Regulation, Company Act 2063, NFRSs and other prevailing
laws & regulation to which insurer shall adhere to is complied.

Appropriate accounting policy has been consistently adopted.
Financial Position and Financial Performance are presented true & fairly.

Board of Directors have implemented adequate and appropriate provision to safeguard the assets and
for identification and mitigation against losses due to fraud, embezzlement and irregularities.

Financial Statements have been prepared based on going concern basis.
The internal control system is commensurate with the size, nature & volume of the insurer's business.

Any transactions contrary to Insurance Act, Companies Act, 2063, related regulations and directions
with any person, firm, company and insurer's director or with any entity in which insurer's director has
interest has not been conducted.

Theres is no any penalties, levied by Nepal Insurance Authority for the financial year 2078-79.

Other disclosure which is deemed appropriate by management:Not Available

Shikhar
o+

ﬂFPllIll?'ﬂl’lﬁe




Shikhar Insurance Company Ltd.

Annexure lll
Major Financial Indicator

Fiscal Year
S.N. | Particular Indicators|  2078/79 2077/78 2076/77 2075/76 2074/75
1| Net worth NRs. 4,696,198,780 |3,843,602,198 |3,322,862,901 |2,709,939,5152,282,547,821
2 | Number of Shares Number | 22,860,812 17,585,240 | 10,573,106| 10,573,106| 10,573,106
3 | Book value per shares NRs. 205 219 314 256 216
4 | Net Profit NRs. 263,923,452 | 311,987,941 | 409,258,334 | 402,574,306 | 455,577,921
5 | Eaming per Shares (EPS) NRs. 12 18 39 38 43
6 | Dividend per Shares (DPS) NRs. 16.8421 - 38 - -
7 | Market Price per Shares (MPPS) NRs. 807 1,952 1,019 7m 985
8 | Price Earning Ratio Ratio 70 10 26 20 23
9 | Return on Equity % 9.23% 6.90% 13.91% 0.80% -5.82%
10 | Return on Investment % 1.801% 1.916% 2.23% 2.23% 9.21%
11 | Loss Ratio {(Claim Paid + change in reserve)/
(Net Written Premium)} % 86.68% 79.51% 65.12% 77.23% 61.81%
12 | Expense Ratio (Underwriting Expense including
Commission/Net Written Premium) % 1.15% 11.74% 5.07% 2.96% 2.30%
11 | Combined Ratio (Loss Ratio + Expense Ratio)' % 87.83% 91.25% 70.19% 80.19% 64.10%
13 | Net Insurance Premium/ Gross Insurance Premium % 28.10% 30.76% 36.53% 43.21% 47.711%
14 | Net Profit/ Gross Insurance Premium % 6.01% 8.31% 12.38% 11.94% 13.65%
15 | Gross Insurance Premium/ Total Assets % 39.06% 39.49% 40.82% 45.85% 62.66%
16 | Investment & loan income/ Total investment &
loan amount % 6.46% 7.56% 8.78% 8.97% 8.33%
17 | Reinsurance commission/
Gross Reinsurance Premium % 21.09% 19.16% 25.68% 27.95% 20.37%
18 | Management expenses/ Gross Insurance Premium % 16.95% 16.82% 18.07% 16.69% 11.05%
19 | Agent Related Expenses/ Gross Insurance Premium % 0.61% 0.92% 0.91% 1.01% 0.91%
20 | Number of Agents Numbers 93 143 131 95 75
21 | Number of Branch and Sub-Branch Numbers 110 106 103 103 87
22 | Employee expenses/ Management expenses % 63.11% 64.59% 66.65% 67.33% 57.38%
23 | Employee expenses/ Employee numbers 756,546 659,027 656,090 620,963 391,952
24 | Outstanding Claim Expenses/ Claim Paid % 47.73% 52.37% 51.52% 45.80% 56.63%
25 | Outstanding Claim Number/ Number of Claim Paid % 81.78% 105.82% 21.99% 26.34% 56.94%
26 | Total Number of Existing Insurance Policies Numbers 235,242 342,557 326,032 346,455 302,434
27 | Renewed Insurance Policy/ Total Insurance
Policies last year % 27.66% 26.85% 17.97% 21.48% 20.14%
28 | Number of Claim Insurance Policies/
Total Number of Policy Outstanding % 4.49% 1.53% 1.70% 1.27% 1.74%
29 | Technical Provisions/ Total Equity % 24.67% 28.43% 31.55% 43.75% 59.49%
30 | Gross Premium/ Owner Equity % 93.54% 97.67% 99.48% 124.40% 146.19%
31 | Net Premium/ Equity % 26.29% 30.04% 36.34% 53.75% 69.75%
32 | Insurable Debt/ Total Equity % 18.15% 20.55% 36.54% 35.08% 44.88%
33 | Net Premium Growth Rate % 6.92% -4.39% -17.09% -8.50% 12.49%
34 | Change in Gross Written Premium % 117.01% 113.57% 98.06% 101.03% 121.56%
35 | Cession Ratio % 71.90% 69.24% 63.47% 56.79% 52.29%
36 | Net Technical Reserve/ Average of
Net Claim Paid for Last 3 Years % 247.10% 278.68% 49.30% 79.25% 119.58%
37 | Liquidity Ratio % 44.61% 70.69% 112.07% 89.36% 56.69%
38 | Affiliate Ratio % 1.13% 1.37% 2.39% 11.21% 8.38%
39 | (Unquoted Equities + Debtors)/ Net Total Assets % 4.02% 1.78% 1.12% 1.10% 4.58%
40 | Solvency Margin % 3.41% 4.30% 6.80% 5.32% 1.75%
41 | Change in Equity % 22.18% 15.67% 22.62% 18.72% 26.72%
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B.K. AGRAWAL & CO. Saraswati Vatika

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS ; 7";21"13“?5"3 Mr;rg.
iral - wa 0.
MEMBER CROWE GLOBAL P.0. Box 3761, Kathmandu, Nepal.

T: +977-1-4581865, 4567694, 4567568
E: bkag@crowe.com.np
W: www.crowe.com/np
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SGTSH T TATIR AT MU afd (effective interest method) T STATRHET TS ATRAT AQTSH
THI GTaeT T8 9 F9Td STHT G (MaeTaaHisTd T AhRe] aadqad a1 Hoda a1
TS FIHRH! STHTT YT HITTTHT TS AATHIATE AfFd Aed a1 TR Hed Hed S a3
el HeHT J@Te TRUH B | AHIH Alhd Hed 9wl R Hed d¢ AUHT &l q6] IhHATS
FIRT et ARAT ATe@s T TRUHT 3 |

Afecter fafHds FFITIl ST Tl HITAEER A AGTFT I Hedhl ATIRHT TRUH G | TR
A 92T a9R Hed FH AUHT FH AUH THHE] FTGT T Al [qUH G |

AT ATATART a9 SHITTH Gl FFIATR SRE TR HeAHT TUH] TRATAR] BRI oIl
HUH ATHATS T@TST TRTEHT T |

Sk T faxiTa F=ATehT gl (MErd®T Tl AMHIes Arar THAHT I@ISUH B | aY Al ATTHIHT
e gEIf U3 & FROE TobTA (Rl g AFRAT AT THTHT FAT AT FRTaTHT a7
T At feaar 3 )

9. ULl TEdE QHTANSH st
fargeft W T TR UF SIfacEEeTs auTRTHT el AT aYer T SUATAT TR T
T | FFIAT faef qa1 ura fAfq a1 gereer fAfaar #em wE AT e R A s
TRUH B faT a7 o9 ATAT qUHT SAAAT FHTAH @bl (A7 T ATIRHAT FXeh I A IHHATS
faf T |11 ar e fEredT S@reT Aid AgdaET AUH G |

T. SMWeE WG qETE did
T 9Tk ATRETAT ATAT UA, ST ST IIIeROTeRl [T aHITSTH A8 Yl ATaRAT dfed (i
fAUeT @, ST A9TA TG THITH &7 | aY ST STesh ATFRTAT A9 T (0fd a1 S 9ok
ARt O fAfq afg aoAr afgedr ffaar oo e ater Hifg faguar g )

AT TR X 19 I g ATHT 9ok ATFRTATR] T@ISHhd UIEHTAl Accrual HTATRAT TRUHT &
[&THT 9[cd Ueh TUNRT Gl AR AT THHSE YTl FUHT ST Al dfedl auar g9 A3
STHTTeF ATFATAT ATl AThT Teehl YA Gg Uidl @IaTHT AU g |
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gRTAT @TATHT AGUHT THHATE UfSeet] TUEEHT STHT SAaferehl THTINTH STH ST e ATETHT
e AT bl G |

B. UWET SV STl qErse st
TS FFIAETE I FATAATS A8 Y a1 GAATAT FFIArare o YTeqehl ATRHT AR
KECIED Wﬁ"{?ﬁ @ | Profit commission @Tg ‘fﬁﬁm FEHATET W‘{?ﬁ FERTAT ERAIES fereor ‘Tﬁ"'\fﬂ?\r
Y FAAG GICAl AT ASHT FFIAATE GHEAT b ATIRAT AT A@IZHA TRUH G |

0. 3T 3T q@TEa aAtfer
ATHTI 31T
IR FATHIETE YT g AT ATHIST |1 AT IT g AfrehR ¥nfua Woafs, s/amse 1iees | @ka
TR THAHT G AT ATHT ATRTATE ST D] ATAITATS @¥E FHAH] AT a1 qiegen
AT AT GEATIA HIoATE Ageoldd ANTAD] AFAR] TTH] q@IFH g | e FHIH AT AT
qegehT AT A FEATIT FoA1E HUAT Ioh ATHIATE AI%h ATRTAIHT STHT FAGTFH g, |

T AT ATH FIHT FX FHEdl T JHTAT g HURA TG ATHIT ATg FTTHT FLbadl TRT
T ATehl Teehl THHBT ATIRHT @TFT TR B |

T ST AT T AT OUT g ATTepY T WUATA HTT oI W@ed d@rse e |

grafaeT foreiaTe WoeT ani/gmet
fear Teafaept AT/ SToet@ TXhT RO TUHT AT TAT &THIETs AT qIq@d TEb THIAT ATRT a7
FHFITTHT FHTALT TG, | AT TAT BTATRT 0T AT F¥(Aepl [(Aaware Y @2 I qdr {arar
e et faearens fag i |

AT AT @3 9T [@TATT ATAR YIEHTAT ATIRAT (Accrual Basis) TRUH T |

T ATAT IR0 (Rl ATITAT TEl A, Holl AT AT AUHI ATIATS AT A9, HT
Tead STAT SFAAITIRT X qIT FFIAIET T TURT ATIE HATTHT ¢ 99 (Net Worth) &Tg ATHT
AT fedrererr AR AT e ST a1 9y [§ETeHr ¥ AR A [§9TeHr aighis
T AT WH B

99. oIl AT st
FHIAIERT FHAT (AT TANTH qIT ATk AATA 0T TARTHT ATRaAITTH FHAREEdTS
FAT J&TT TS, |

9Q. SAALYUTUT G ATSHIS aier
Arar atefaerr FETeRT ATaRuT SqaeraT @<l 10 Yiaerd TeH AThRT AT fEarear @« I@rs
ATehT THHATS FFatedd AT AR TAET ATHTIHHT ATTRAT HITT Fel T & AT ThHATS
TG ST AR AR WA G STAT AGAIHT AT 9T [GFEAT aighie T4 Afd EH 3 |

q3. T Tt TR @ qETEa st
AT IR TAT ST @ FHTALT T A@TgA TR B, | T AHbebl TIMIRTT AT HHATIA
TERT HTHD GIRHTHE T o7 @ aTqcehl THH T THT G |

98. AT qTat JTUd qTRICT SAGeAT qaTEa Alfer
ATk TTPT ATHT ATHTAT & Alebl Toehl (Al ATqd IMAcA AALAT G2 o+ @l Tl THABN 194
gieeTaer MRTH G |
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V.

%.

0.

gg AR STSWhig Hifd

ATRT ATFT [Edraere ATCH @3 ATHRTATE T F2 SISl (Deferred Tax Reserve) aTqad! THH
FHTATSTA T AT ThT THHBT YO TFAeTd ITHH TATe ATHT TAFR TR e STAITTH =[ehT qotiehl
TFH TR AUGE ATHT HITHT TET T AT TEh0 S | TAP [hqHBT STHT BITHAT AT FT
feqrerdTa SATUehT Tl ATATAHT T ATRITH ATTHT | HITHT T STl THH MG ATSHIS TRTHT
T | ATebrehl Yo YiaeTd A ATSHISHN AN IUAs THT AT ATHT Ar4gT [EFTTAT TR S |

e e
FFIAT FHAREEATE AT TR FaT AT AR I G (BIqebl SAgelg FHART @ HIATER
E)

FHAT GAHT 8T THITHET TS
(F) ATFIET FHART Goews, ST qod, 9T, foar araaer afadfd
g) Farare e AudiE TRl g1 U, I5ud HY AT, T

HABTATT FHAT Gob] @3 FHAN GaT JEF T I a7 Far FaF Tl BRI &ffadia
(ITTTreR) 9Teq T ffaep fasir 9 o= g |

- ¥ar fAaq auafg IRl 89 @Ha] d@rsd FHERM 941 939 TWH R T Afaafdes
(qTeifer) 9T T AfEReEr s AOHT TR |

HHART A STqEAT
Tt e gfeeraa aHitaw qar TRuwr fadra faawor awiawer ArRT A feara =t
FX AR G& ATHRIH 0% THA FHAT ATFE ATIdH] FIIT TR G |

wHTR! fagT amuder =
FHAT {1 araas @< faar arad qehmr g afdqafd g1 T A7 HFTer @ik faaaaradr auie
FHANEEATS AT o faar, R faar amva gem it afaafd 95ed |

SUGT AT oI BIST

TEAd HH UA (ARl T aedT FHIH IJTETH,Fad H[T qdT ATHINSF GRET FIIH AT
TRTF B | FFAATR] W [ATTHTTAH] HUR] AT THINTH FHAREE Tl JTEH, T =9
HIIET TcA ITUAT T qTebebl SATATY (accrual basis) AT ATHT AR fEATEAT @ ATGUHRT T |

VIHTEUG THTHT AGEAT AT TAT FUAET el q@Tga sAlfel

F GEITAHT (Rl FATT qqA ST g Hed FH AU FROS g TTHT G a1 FHA FIAT
LT FET & TTHT TAATS &7 ATTAH] AT FTHT ATHRI-AFT [EATEAT dq@rse 1w, |
YTHTEAE ATATHI, @IS T qIT HeheUed b qo7 (I Gearg®dl TUHT qroardelrg aTayiaerd
FEEIT TR ATHRT AR [EdTe =ad @oAT A@IsH A AMd HFAe AIATTEH B | ITh TaedT
TRUPT THEA T ATAT G TR AT AT AR A@TFA A 3 |

fordro SIS G ATIH] GHHT, Fel ATHIH] ARTATAET [Gdqra= ssRare dAqa T4 Ficbe
THH FHH g IMGUHT ST AT ATRITATR] ATET T g, | [aards aoRd] AnaeaAl HRIAR
g TR EHT, A T Al THH (recoverable amount) T TUMAT AT fIATTTdl ST AH!
ATITRAT =g | &7 AT AFITAH] AT fFATl e Ired g T Hedswal dal SUHl a@d

g wiveg |
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qrY FuTA ATHT TIfrRRoeTe S AT THITH U AUNeaT ad GHastg Jardr e ¥ qHae
I AHUHT GHATHE AT AT AMHHATE TR YT g9 aThl THHBT W, FIqeTd THAATS AT
FAXT d@iHA TRUH F |

[T STATHT SATITRAT (equity basis) AR =g | AL AR qUHT qFqA T Alh THH
TR AT Aval HH TURT ATLITH, &7 AT FaLdT S, |

qT. I difaew

YT SIREH SIST (Unexpired Risk Reserves):

FEOATS T, ATEiEF, Hiew, sfettates, gars | & qur fafag S % gg §mr e R
Yo% THH FFATT SITEH SHISTHT I@TSUHT T | TI HFLAT TRUH! THAATS Argedl] ATfdeE TIHT
ATFRTAT STHATSUHT & | OY ATAEF SR SFAT T AGRAT AT THHATS 3 a9 qlegepl AT
AT ATFTAT TATSTHT 3 |

AT BT

AT STHT FfeRROTeRT (Gt ST ek fepfamepr srament it gErgy ST B9 AT 9 rad
T | ATHRT ATFAATE ATTHT & ATRIATE G ATTHT FT ATIAH] THH 215 T SATST ATIA L0%
THHATS TUh (h(GHeB! ATAT HITHT TMBT THITAH TTSHIE TRTH B |

AETfeufa RISt &er

TYT ST GTIHROraTe AT (A9 aHIfTy SighigH! AT IUaed ThHe! 0% Helaqrd SrsT
FIIHT AT TRTHT G | TAL A9 SHIST HITHT ATAT TR ThHATs HHHT, ATEMATE,
ST HETqataTe gorT g ST Hedad START T g |
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ey =i sruet fafes

(3Mma. R019¢/06R) G- 2%

facha faeruritn grafeua w@T grwit fecaufies

FRITlaa giiacaes

9.9 THT AT HTHTAT g ST TOIT
FFIATRT <[THT AT ATHTAT & STl AT ST |

9.9 wMfa ufaagar (Underwriting Commitments)
FEATA Elfrf afe fepferserr Wﬁiﬁf gfdergar (Underwriting Commitments) ST TTLERT S |

9.3 HHTIE ROIAHRGT AT SHHIUY GIET UNh! A% STHGW GIIcd THIhIY doIeh! Gl

THTET

9.8 SHIOE w0 Hegl aTehaTe [GIUHT JATRUET
FEIA ATHICE A AT ATeeh F I [hTaaepT ARUdr faust & |

9.y 3T FRTlead qTRIcaEe

ATA.RO%3 /Y, ROTY /Y, ROTL /TR, ROTK /%Y, R0%8/%5, R0UR /83 R083/9¥ T 309Y¥ /94
HT G R [LROTATE AT H.S (LR Tehr 99 HF FAT JIRATT a9 &, 90,940,935
e TRTRT B | ATRAE TSTIT FTATATS (MR bl I T JAT ANEAT [a%g ATAE
7T TAATTHT (AR AT AT aad [GguawhET |1 aae e aumaa Tsied =i
qIT FAT=a ASTATAT THT [FoRIgT T@hi AT HL (TR TR0 g9 T qGT FLATAT
JEATIT TR TTAT IEH T |

[T quEES AqTT T AW AHATA T TH] qTAT HeATSHAR! ATIHT ATATAT FTal (a0
TR G | e TRTRT b ATHAT STAEAT BRI ATR 994% o §A ATIT THH Arall

AT TFEAT TRTHT T |

grufawAT Hifiaar qur faegee

FEIATRT FERTHT B qfe Aifaaar qur faardes drgeEr S |

. st wftegar: F9TE |

TG Gt @iy fosk aRPmETsT AT
givg MRS e e qred TR © S |
ferr Tifeuerr TedfaerT STTRT™T T & A=hET ¢ B |

Tq aeE TIRgHT ot qur faset ¥ fiRat fager womeieT faavor

et IRyeT wndEEST faaxur

feramor @ T,
AT HPIT HOTT -
aiforsar ST OIS ¥%, 83,000
afoTsr SreheRr HEedT e 4%5,3¥5,000
fereprar Sepept 113?‘?[ frera 99%,¥00 000
farcirar gearepr " fAar 4,400,000
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0.

9.

ast WWT fiRat WgsT aoret

faamur TRH ¥
AT FIHRBT HIAT -
TS SFepep TS -
ISy el ﬂ??ﬁ e %,000 000
fereprer Srepept Hgalr fAerT 3,000,000
forefr sear) weAT e i

¥ e fram
7 (e GEgEdre Hisard TS IF YT bl o |

Lesiea o RENIERTRICH
TASTAEGET foe ¥ fae affebl fedra awmgar e o R00s /9% ATUTE AATg ! [dre (Har
T THAT TF I T HHAT TWH G |

Tt fordreet afvurers

I IR TN AU 6L Apepl FUg FEqeawdT T FATH A ATEF T FFIATS TEHT
A F=tad ST U, (aTaeil gor 9t SraT7 YRl et THias® WEhl @ | J97d ah?
qAT AU T Sbapl AL FGATAHT A AT THHATE A SHT FTTHRore fAder awifors
foTSY SepehT HEAT (ETTHT Ry TRUeT 3 |

rafeud SafchioreT HRER
AT ATHITHT HEAEETS T&T TRUE] e

FATAF AR TaTewdTs A9, 09519 H qhTH! TRTHI THA T GH! faqawo

faavur IEHH T
oA FATTHR! TS T 4,250,000
el IAfae! dok @ eY, 294
o QAT 5k W 9,239 ¥00
a1 afafqesr doF = 309,54

TS HESR! SRGT TUT T JaRIGATS UqTa TRt Fheur

AT a6 005198, HT FFIAIE] THG FTAE AlTETATS FA & 9% 535,94% TR TRTH ) |
THE FAFN AGRT Aed A TaaFbes a5 & & 98999443 ThAT TRUH S | I IHAAT
Aifeed qoda TTeT qTd g9 AT, SedivasT S19d TehH FHTIT TRTRT 3 |

lagn a1 LT Giagr AAT T T iadm GHT JEH TR G |

FEIATA ATAISAHT AT AT SFheeeh] Hedl AFaee qdT FFIAH] TR q97 qa7 ferdr afa
HHFIAT T FfaaT (U G | I AThIfad T adq [qeF $.93%90,953 AT Godrs TqTIT
G AT AT TRTH G |
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N.

93.

8.

9.

%.

9.

.

@©.

HHHA B TTHT YATITUS WIeT IRHT ST.d. T A%l TThT JATOT U g &l ama. T &r
rawfl faaRuteT Tl Stftreaiy 3T g%t &Y FASAET =TSl aTued gTdl UReT ¥ T 3T.a.AT Hehm!

HUST IH

FEIIHT 1.9, 099/ 95 FI FT FhT TH T I TLARE 3, |

firat ReT deTyem®T ufvAToT ¥

FHRUT

T AT AT FHATA &, 03Y 353,530 ATHT 9ok [HF FRUEES &I HAl TWH G |

F. [afAde! ARgHT AHF THH TR

g FERI AHEE ST g TR

M. HFYET GUTAFRT BRI A S g T
o 9iqad 3E & TUH

T, GIAT@HAT d8d TS AMGH aTUH

RS g afeht weiT faavoT

qqor@ g aiehl G THUH |

IR Gt Aed TR TRl UTeT (Paid in advance), HTRTHT WIGT &40 af@T (Calls in arrears)
X SO ARTHT aX G forsaprora Forivyst et faaror
A ThTA I, AThTAT 9T & a1eh! (Calls in arrears) T ST TRTHT q% G BT

TAARTHT AT AHTHT |

far gieg Trufe T WIaT STUQ@s (Amortization) TFewiT faavur

FHEHIHT fool Blee Fw © G |

AATT ATERDT BRIARBT fqauT

FEATS a9 GRAT AT ATfeRert B qf fEfaHeEr FRER TE S |
SifercaT g Frfoud EegEd! faawor

FFIATH] ATeeA] THIT FeIfead & @ €.9,53%,¥5% Wl G |
FAHY T WA HY

ATRT AT [EHTeaAT TEeUH! #¥ gaawEid fgawer MaHiiay a3
faaRur IHA .
=TS AT AT G 9¥9,5%9 400
T ar 3 @1 AT HY AGTIRIEAETe

frameor wfvuesr 99 #= @ R Y5 %0%
AT SI&Y @l 983, 9B&, 909

0%, AR 3R FH AT THTaT q91 TR T FFI /Sl (qaR0 FHEAar g |

T FH R X qrdea fqasor ¥ dieer | a9 anfie asier | sifew disera
JURH q4T faeT arad s 9%,949,0H R,¥3¥ 4%5 3,954,532
v AT 5,5939%¥%|  IR,%0%,090 3,995 945
ECRIEEERIREIERE ’35,99Y - 235, 0oy
fem et amaa (RIR,3R9) (43%,%%%) (94,0%3)
SFAT T,TeR, Yy8 29,20T,B93 |  Y8,00Z 859
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0. faferr et
fafae AT A= ATl qAT H ATHT ATTT ATIAH] [ATI TH TATIL G |

9.

F. IR TS
FFITR] FTh FhT Tol €.9,945 LR¥,000 TEHTHT FFIWTH] Tedf T ATel ATt ATeo THTEH!
[9r SIS ST TRUSHT 30 Giqerd Eh9E 9% 99=d FFIATR =[Thl 9811 %.%,35%,059,300
FAH ATH T |

FHEIAIH] o] T HiEl ATiies QIR e 0d SHITH ST TRUE §69E % Fwaid arel
THUHT EFIE STARATS [AATH TSTIGHTE [ah! TRT T WUehT AT ThH €.54,95%,59% @
97 fufae =T QTR |

9. HHAN! a9 AaeT
qurer fa<irg gfqasaare auifad g TRusr faxdra fgaeer aaifaysr [T [ Eara
FAIAHRT H ATTFT & ATRT & ¥05,039 393 FI 0% FT T THA %.¥0,503 039 FHHATT
Y ATIART FTLIT TTRTH B, |

W AT TUT VHTEUG STATHIDT ATRN et

TR FFIATAT TRUH] AT AR BBHAT, HA AID] ANTAR] AT TARATE TG
T Fiche THH AUH AT AMMAEE AHb FH IHHATIAH A THH T.¥5,303 359 AT5
FAATHAT AR AT A ATGAT 19 AT @U@ | AITA STH] IIIRR a9
FHITH A=y Fed @ AT TARTHT AT THHAATS AT FFIAT AN TRTET 3 THAFH
qf GFEeRd ATTHT FaT FHe AT THH 3.4,000,000 TAT AU ATHT FTIHTETE ST (ST
TR T 9 AT A& THISNG [TAHERATE TThTAT YT & aiehl THHPT Y AfTeTd Tehwamad
¥.33,59% SUY T FA THH T ¥R Q0¥ SUY ATe A FALT A= AT 44 AT i@ T
e

foTa aHT U a9 ARl g€l RIS TAATHEETE WThAT UTl §H aiehl ThHeb! AT HaH
TRUHT AR HAETATTTR TR 5. 1%,230,3%0 BT AHAST HAHE! §aT Iah ITHAATY
ATRT AT (EATerAT et fRdl d=id A=l STAEuH & |

g fafar swewl
T qUEEAT TR TR FT TIT H.3 FIH fedre (HATT 9= Afdqer ST qUHl THH
%.30,003353 q4T ATHI AAGRG HThTA & ] T8l qT A7 AT [a7 T949 ariaed
AT THEH ¥, 35,559,333 @5 [afqe ATFTAT vaiid g X A I@TEUH g |

FFIAMH] AT, 09519, HIH! [aRUERT ATRTATE SRl HETTHIdewdTs 81d HIaH =hl
OSITeRT 9% TfTeTaer & 38Y\99R 2R3 SRTERH aid X 9T &l AT AR FR YISl AT 790G
AT 0.5%¥3] IATAA & 93,349,020 T FA %.5%¥39 Jqerq AT I&d TRTH |

0. THAB THAITEhRUT TUT UHaHTEeh T

TT qUPT TEHEEHATE ATTITFRAT AAAR TR TAT TTAHEHIRLI TS A T T AT
feFaaw EIATHT FTEETH B |
s t5rance
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R =R srost fates
M. o0¢[o8] BT oY A= STguTd

BOIIRHT
F.4. KGRI HTT oS wfcra
q | siferamrl suTEEET TR
1.9 | % faATeerHT afg (@@ T FMH JAATHE) - - -
Fd fawreresrar afg (Tfaedr ad |E qaqTeHE) QYUY U8R 3,839,339 R¥.3¥
29 | G AT afg (F" A HE JAATCHE) - - -
9.9 | @f dr - - -
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Shikhar Insurance Co. Ltd. _
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Graphs of Key Indicators
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Gross Claim Paid (Crore)
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Who are our Reinsurers?
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Shikhar Insurance Co. Ltd.
Head Office

Shikhar Biz Centre, Thapathali
P.O. Box: 10692, Kathmandu, Nepal
Tel: 5346101, 5346102, Fax: 977-1-5346103
E-mail: shikharins@mos.com.np

Our Branch Offices

www.shikharinsurance.com

Achham Narayangarh (Bharatpur) Dang
9802333258 Balmandir chowk, Bharatpur Shahid Umesh marga 15, Ghorahi, Dang
achham@shikharinsurance.com 056-590137/590237 082-563549
Anbukhaireni narayangarh@shikharinsurance.com dang@shikharinsurance.com
Anbukhaireni, Tanahu - 3 Bhojpur Dhading
9801986,1 72, o Bhojpur -7, Bich Bazar Nilakanth -3, Dhading besi, Shanta bazar
anbukhaireni@shikharinsurance.com 029-420185 01-0521300
Arghakhanchi . bhojpur@shikharinsurance.com dhading@shikharinsurance.com
g??ir;gggg(a-t Arghakhachi Bijuwar Dhangadhi
‘@shikhari Bijuwar- 4, Pyuthan Godawari road, Chauraha
argha.khanch|@sh|khar|nsurance.com 086460121 091_4171.95 o
Attaria ] bijuwar@shikharinsurance.com dhangadi@shikharinsurance.com
Godawari-13, Attariya .
091-590254 Biratnagar Dhargn
attaria@shikharinsurance.com Chandra complex, Mahendra chowk Laxmi Sadak, Dharan-1
021-578391/021-578390 025-571430
Baglung O b dharan@shikharinsurance.com
Dhawalagiri Chowk-2, Baglung birt@shikharinsurance.com :
068-521896 Birgunj Dolpa )
baglung@shikharinsurance.com Adarshanagar, Birgunj Dunai Bazar, Guthi chaur, Dolpa
Bajhang 051-528181/051-528088 sz
Jay Prithivi -10, Chainpur, Bajhang birg@shikharinsurance.com olpa@shikharinsurance.com
9801912427 Birtamod Dot
bajhang@shikharinsurance.com Aduwapul, Birtamod, Jhapa Pipla Bazar, Dipayal, Doti
" 094-590048
Banepa 023-535666 doti@shikhari
Banepa-5, Tindobatok, Kavre birtamod@shikharinsurance.com oti@shikharinsurance.com
011-663855 Butwal Dulegauda
banepa@shikharinsurance.com . Khairenitar, Tanahu
Milan chowk, Butwal J
Baneshwor 071-532568 065-412158 =
Baneshwor - 31/0ld Baneshwor, butwal@shikharinsurance.com dulegauda@shikharinsurance.com
01-4464193/01-4464184 ] Dumkibas
baneshwor@shikharinsurance.com Chabahil ) Sardiroad, Nawalpur
Chabahil, chuchchepati -
Bardaghat 01-4481707 / 4481932 078-416052
Bardaghat - 4, Nawalparasi h S dumkibas@shikharinsurance.com
078-590968 chabahil@shikharinsurance.com —
bardaghat@shikharinsurance.com Chanauli . Bandipur - 1, Dumre Bazar, Tanahu
Bardibas Bharatpur-20, Chanauli Bazar 065-580380
Bardibas - 1, Mahottari 056'531,636 o dumre@shikharinsurance.com
044-550697 chanauli@shikharinsurance.com _
bardiba.s@shikharinsurance.com ChlanO!rautal g::gﬁ:tt 11, Udayapur
Belauri Shivraj, Kapilvastu 035-422270
Belauri -4, Kanchanpur 076-540568 gaighat@shikharinsurance.com
099-580374 chandrauta@shikharinsurance.com - )
belauri@shikharinsurance.com ongabu
) Chapagaon ) Buddha Mall, Machhapokhari, Gongabu
Beni Godabari -11, Chapagaon, Lalitpur 01-4950722/4950793
Beni - 7, Newroad, Myagdi 01-5265088 g
069-521335 o gongabu@shikharinsurance.com
"0£1999 chapagaon@shikharinsurance.com .
beni@shikharinsurance.com . Gulari ya
Bhainsepati Charikot Jilla Prahari Karyalaya, Chowk, Gulariya
. . ) . Charikot, Dolakha 084-421606
Sainbu, Bhaisepati - 4, Lalitpur 049-421414 ; -
01-5900633 ‘ o gulariya@shikharinsurance.com
bhaisepati@shikharinsurance.com charikot@shikharinsurance.com Gulmi
Bhandara Dadeldhura Resunga -1, Putali Bazar, Gulmi
Rapti-5, Bhandara Amargadi-5, Dadeldhura 079-520991
9801235137 096-410315 guimi@shikharinsurance.com
anbukhaireni@shikharinsurance.com dadeldhura@shikharinsurance.com Gwarko
Bhairahawa Dailekh Gwarko - 7, Lalitpur
Naya Sadak-7, Bhairahawa Devkota Chowk, Narayan Municipality-1, Dailekh 01-5200783
071-570141 089-410227 gwarko@shikharinsurance.com
bhw@shikharinsurance.com dailekh@shikharinsurance.com Hetauda
u
Bhaktapur . Damak Bank Road, Hetauda
Barahi sthan Suryabinayak, Bhaktapur Damak-10, Main Road 057-526778/057-526779
01-6617471/01-6610720 023-584634 hetauda@shikharinsurance.com
bhaktapur@shikharinsurance.com damak@shikharinsurance.com
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Hile
Dhankuta-1, Hile

026-540715
hile@shikhrainsurance.com
Humla

Simikot - 5, Humla
087-680226
humla@shikharinsurance.com
lllam

lllam-7, Bhanu path
027-521837
ilam@shikharinsurance.com
Itahari

Main road, Itahari
025-585273
itahari@shikharinsurance.com
Jaleshwor

Jaleshwor-4, Mahottari
044-590063

Janakpur

Shiv Chowk, Station Road, Janakpur
041-590134
janakpur@shikharinsurance.com

Jeetpur

Jeetpur-4, Kapilvastu
076-550317
jitpur@shikharinsurance.com

Jumla

Chandannath - 5, Khalanga Bazar, Jumla
087-520625
jumla@shikharinsurance.com

Kalikot

Khadachakra -1, Kalikot
087-440033
kalikot@shikharinsurance.co

Kawasoti

Kawasoti - 8, Savapati chowk
078-541141/078-541142
kawasoti@shikharinsurance.com

Khandbari

Khandabari-1, Pokhari bazar
029-590355
khandbari@shikharinsurance.com
Kirtipur

Kirtipur, Bahiri Gaun-9, Nayabazar
01-4334385
kirtipur@shikharinsurance.com

Kohalpur

Newroad Ganesh Chowk - 4, Kohalpur
081-540273
kohalpur@shikharinsurance.com

Kalimati

Kalimati-13, Kathmandu
01-5389458
kalimati@shikharinsurance.com

Kumaripati

kumaripati, Lalitpur
01-5452805/01-5439804
kumaripati@shikharinsurance.com

Kushma

Kushma-6, Dhaneshwor Chowk, Parbat
067-420497
kushma@shikharinsurance.com

Lahan

Lahan-8, Purbabus Stand, Mainroad, Siraha
033-560932

lahan@shikharinsurance.com

Lalbandi

Sarlahi, Lalbandi -7
046-501344
lalbandi@shikharinsurance.com
Lamahi

Bus Park, Lamahi-5
082-540878
lamahi@shikharinsurance.com
Lamki

Lamki chuha-1, Lamki, Kailali
091-590275

lamki@shikharinsurance.com

Lekhnath

Talchowk- 27, Lekhnath, Pokhara
061-561832
lekhnath@shikharinsurance.com

Lubhu

Mahalaxmi-8, Labhu, Lalitpur
01-5580735
lubhu@shikharinsurance.com

Madi

Basantapur-3 Madi, Chitwan
056-501056
madi@shikharinsurance.com

Maharajgunj

Chakrapath, Maharajgunj
01-4370190/01-4370089
maharajgunj@shikharinsurance.com

Mahendranagar

Vimdatta-18, Campus road, Mahendranagar
099-524464
mahendranagar@shikharinsurance.com

Manthali

Manthali-1, Ramechhap
048-540612
manthali@shikharinsurance.com

Mirchaiya

Mirchaiya- 6, Siraha

033-550343
mirchaiya@shikharinsurance.com

Mugu

Chhayanath Rara -1, Gamgadhi, Mugu
087-460236
mugu@shikharinsurance.com

Mulpani
Kageshwori, Mahanara-5, Thali, Mulpani
01-4451565

Murgiya

Murgiya, Sainamaina - 3, Rupandehi
071-440389
murgiya@shikharinsurance.com

Mustang

Gharapjhong - 3 Airport, Jomsom
069-440442
mustang@shikharinsurnce.com

Naubise

Dhunibesi - 6, Dharke, Naubise
010-414142
naubise@shikharinsurance.com

Naxal

Naxal-1, Kamalpokhari
01-4446138/4446139
naxal@shikharinsurance.com

Nepalgunj

Dhamboji-2, Surkhet road
081-537464/537465
nepg@shikharinsurance.com

New Baneshwor

Standard Chattered Bank, New Baneshwor
01-5907542
newbaneshwor@shikharinsurance.com

Newroad

Shiva Arcade, Newroad
01-4239960/4215799
newroad@shikharnsurnce.com

Nuwakot

Bidur - 4, Batar Nuwakot
010-561829
nuwakot@shikharinsurance.com
Palpa

Tansen - 4, Silkhantole, Palpa
075-521517
palpa@shikharinsurance.com
Phidim

Main Road, Phidim-1, Phidim
024-590082
phidim@shikharinsurance.com
Palung

Makawanpur, Tala Na.Pa.-4
9849566916
palung@shikharinsurance.com

Pokhara

Newroad, Pokhara
061-573100/570333
pokhara@shikharinsurance.com
Rajbiraj

Rajbiraj-7, Saptari

031-530065
rajbiraj@shikharinsurance.com

Rampur

Rampur-4, Palpa

075-400200
rampur@shikharinsurance.com

Rasuwa

Dhunche-8, Rasuwa
9867077909
rasuwa@shikharinsurance.com

Garuda

Garuda - 4, Rautahat
055-565249
rautahat@shikharinsurance.com

Simara

Simara - 1, Main Road
053-521550
simara@shikharinsurance.com

Sunawal

Nawalparasi road, Sunawal
078-570471
sunawal@shikharinsurance.com

Sundar Bazar
Sundar Bazar, Lamjung

066-402162
lamjung@shikharinsurance.com
Surkhet

Birendranagar-6, Hulak chowk, Surkhet
083-523410
surkhet@shikharinsurance.com
Tandi

Ratnanagarpalika-1, Bakulahar chowk, Tandi
056-561114
tandi@shikharinsurance.com
Taplejung

Phungling -5, Birendra chowk, Taplejung
024-460883
taplejung@shikharinsurance.com
Taulihawa

Kapilvastu-1, Taulihawa

079-590217
taulihawa@shikharinsurance.com
Terhathum

Terhathum myaglung -2, BN Bhawan
026-460350
tehrathum@shikharinsurance.com
Thamel

Thamel- 27, Tridevi Marg, Kathmandu
9841634669
udayashahi@shikharinsurance.com
Thimi

Thimi, Gaththaghar, Bhaktapur
01-6635765
thimi@shikharinsurance.com
Tulsipur

Tulsipur- 5, BP Chowk, Dang
082-523515
tulsipur@shikharinsurance.com
Waling

Waling - 3, Syangja

063-440701
waling@shikharinsurance.com

West Rukum

Musikot-1, Tribenichowk, Kalanga
088-530213

west.rukum@shikharinsurance.com
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